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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the
“Directors” and “Board” respectively) of Goldpac
Group Limited (the “Company”), | am delighted to

present the Annual Report of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2017.
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“Regulatory Reinforcement” was the theme for the financial
industry’s development in China for the year of 2017. The
Government Work Report delivered in March 2018 by the State
Council emphasized the importance of enhancing financial
regulations in order to prevent systemic financial risks. Substantial
measures were reinforced by the Chinese governmental authorities
aimed at eliminating financial irregularities, circumvention of
financial regulations and facilitation of regulatory arbitrage. These
measures have promoted the progressive, steady and healthy
development of China’s financial industry. As such, a favorable
external environment is created for the Group’s development.

Banks have always held a dominant position in China’s financial
system. Their stringent security has made them an important
cornerstone for national financial security. The secure payment
model based on bank account forms the core foundation and
mainstay of the banking payment system and has always maintained
its steady development. In 2017, the number of bank card
transactions in China reached nearly 150 billion times, representing
an increase of approximately 29.4% as compared with that of the
previous year. Furthermore, the average single transaction amount
for bank cards was approximately RMB5,097, which is ten times as
compared to third party payment services.

Credit card is a globally recognized payment tool and possesses
a competitive advantage that drives consumer credit. Under the
strong push of major banks, China’s credit card market obtained
a rapid growth in 2017. The number of credit cards per capita has
increased from approximately 0.31 to approximately 0.39 in the year
of 2017. The total value of credit card loans reached approximately
RMB12.48 trillion, representing an increase of approximately 36.6%
as compared with that for the year of 2016.

In 2017, the Group maintained its leading market share position in
China’s payment card market with credit card shipment volumes
increased approximately 40% as compared with that of the previous
year. The year of 2017 also marked the fifth anniversary of the
Group's listing on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Over the
past five years, the Group has maintained a steady pace of growth
and has achieved approximately a total turnover and profit for
the year of RMB7.1 billion and RMB966 million respectively. The
dividend rate has been increasing progressively. The Board proposed
to declare a final dividend of HK10.0 cents and a special dividend
of HK6.0 cents per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December
2017. If this proposal is approved at the forthcoming annual
general meeting, the dividend rate for the year of 2017 would be
approximately 81.8%.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FERS (@)

The Group is now establishing its second Five-Year Development
Plan with the focus on becoming the expert in smart financial
service solutions within the next three to five years.

Despite the increasingly intense competition in the smart secure
payment products market, the Group has distinguished itself
through its competitive advantages in technology, innovative
products and financial capability. The Group is fully capable of
striving for more market share in China and in overseas countries,
especially in Asia.

The Group is committed on the future advancement of R&D
(research and development) of secure encryption technology
applications. At present, the Group has made progress in its
technical preparations for loT (Internet of Things) secure modules,
mobile phone APP white boxes, smart homes, machine interaction
and other related areas. In the application of elD (electronic
identity), the Group also possessed essential technologies and
related products. In the future, these technologies will be fully
utilised to the emerging areas including Al (artificial intelligence)
financial self-service kiosks and overseas trusted identity documents,
becoming the new driving forces for the Group’s growth.

In response to the trend of unmanned and mobile financial services,
the Group’s proprietary intelligent financial self-service kiosks are
going to be launched. Using Al, these financial self-service kiosks
utilize the advantages of human-computer interaction, facial
recognition as well as other biometrics and will assist financial
institutions in improving their intelligent operation efficiency,
while reducing staff cost. The Group will expand the functionality
and areas of application for financial self-service kiosks towards
opportunities in intelligent unmanned counters and branches to
help bringing the Group new areas of growth.

Precise and efficient intelligent automated operation systems,
technologies and management experience are the core strengths of
the Group and have built a solid foundation for the Group’s larger-
scale global operation in the future.

The Group will prudently utilize its cash reserves and will focus
on the core security technology and expand the IoT business. The
Group will seek for new growth drivers in the field of intelligent
operation upgrade and expansion, expansion in financial services
outsourcing industry chain and “Platform + Service” upgrade.

12 Goldpac Group Limited  Annual Report 2017
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Despite China is the most essential market for the Group, the
Group’s products and services have already been distributed to 25
countries and regions. In response to the “Belt and Road” initiative,
the Group’s overseas key markets include Bangladesh, Mongolia,
the Philippines, Pakistan and other Southeast Asian and Central
Asian countries. In 2017, the Group successfully entered into the
Central American market. In 2018, the Group will rapidly enter
into the overseas financial payment market and accelerate China’s
national financial chip’s overseas expansion, with the advantage of
the China national chip. China UnionPay is increasing its expansion
in countries as stipulated by the “Belt and Road” initiative. The
Group will capitalize opportunities on China UnionPay’s overseas
promotion, striving for more market share.

Last but not least, | would like to take this opportunity to extend

my sincere gratitude to all our shareholders, members of the Board,
management teams, the staffs and business partners of the Group.

LU Run Ting
Chairman & Executive Director

Hong Kong, 16 March 2018
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Executive Director & CEO: HOU Ping
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

“Regulatory Reinforcement” was the theme for the financial
industry’s development in China for the year of 2017. The
Government Work Report delivered in March 2018 by the State
Council emphasized the importance of enhancing financial
regulations in order to prevent systemic financial risks. Substantial
measures were reinforced by the Chinese governmental authorities
aimed at eliminating financial irregularities, circumvention of
financial regulations and facilitation of regulatory arbitrage. These
measures have promoted the progressive, steady and healthy
development of China’s financial industry. As such, a favorable
external environment is created for the Group’s development.

Banks have always held a dominant position in China’s financial
system. Their stringent security have made them an important
cornerstone for national financial security. The secure payment
model based on bank account forms the core foundation and
mainstay of the banking payment system and has always maintained
its steady development. In 2017, the number of bank card
transactions in China reached nearly 150 billion times, representing
an increase of approximately 29.4% as compared with that of the
previous year. Furthermore, the average single transaction amount
for bank cards was approximately RMB5,097, which is ten times as
compared to third party payment services*.

Credit card is a globally recognized payment tool and possesses
a competitive advantage that drives consumer credit. Under the
strong push of major banks, China’s credit card market obtained
a rapid growth in 2017. The number of credit cards per capita has
increased from approximately 0.31 to approximately 0.39 in the year
of 2017. The total value of credit card loans reached approximately
RMB12.48 trillion, representing an increase of approximately 36.6%
as compared with that for the year of 2016*.

At the same time, third-party payment services have maintained
a positive development. With a majority of these services typically
bounding with consumer bank cards, the third-party payment
services act as complementary tools in the banking system in
terms of convenience and small amount payment amongst others.
The coordinated development between the banks and third-party
payment services has gradually merged the boundary between
online and offline payment services. For example, the “Cloud Pay”
service launched by China UnionPay is a powerful tool that can
support various types of online and offline scenarios. In the future,
with maturation and popularization of the loT, online and offline
payment services may be further integrated to an loT transaction
era.

* Payment System Report by People’s Bank of China
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEENWR D@

2017 REVIEW

In 2017, the Group maintained its leading market share position in
China’s payment card market with credit card shipment volumes
increased by approximately 40% as compared with that of the
previous year. Turnover was approximately RMB1,400.8 million,
representing an increase of approximately 0.5% as compared with
that of the previous year. Gross margin was 29.8%, remaining
approximately at par as compared with that of the previous year.

The profit for the year decreased by approximately 19.7% to
RMB164.5 million as compared with that of the previous year, as
a result of the depreciation of USD denominated bank deposits
against the RMB. Adjusted for the unrealized exchange loss of
approximately RMB49.8 million, the profit for the year would have
increased by approximately 31.0% as compared with that of the
previous year to approximately RMB214.3 million. Operating profit
was approximately RMB250.3 million, representing an increase of
approximately 21.8% as compared with that of the previous year.

R&D costs increased by approximately 11.2% as compared with
that of the previous year to approximately RMB109.1 million. This
accounts for approximately 7.8% of turnover. With the efforts on
improving operation efficiency, the sales and distribution costs,
and the administrative costs decreased by approximately 14.2%
as compared with that of the previous year to approximately
RMB141.6 million.

In the business segment, turnover of the embedded software and
secure payment products segment was approximately RMB1,150.0
million, representing a decrease of approximately 1.3% as
compared with that of the previous year. By adopting “Platform
+ Service” strategy, turnover of the platform and service segment
was approximately RMB250.9 million, representing an increase of
approximately 9.5% as compared with that of the previous year,
resulting in an increase in contribution to turnover to approximately
17.9%.

16 Goldpac Group Limited  Annual Report 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

The year of 2017 marked the fifth anniversary of the Group’s listing
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Over the past five years,
the Group has maintained a steady pace of growth and has achieved
approximately a total turnover and profit for the year of RMB7.1
billion and RMB966 million respectively. With the growing scale of
the business, the Group has maintained a robust profitability. The
dividend rate has been increasing progressively. The Board proposed
to declare a final dividend of HK10.0 cents and a special dividend
of HK6.0 cents per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December
2017. If this proposal is approved by the shareholders of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting, the dividend
payout ratio for the year of 2017 would be approximately 81.8%.

CONTINUOUSLY REINFORCING OUR FOUR
CORE STRENGTHS

The Group has reinforced and enhanced the following four core
competitive advantages.

1. Secure Encryption Technology

Secure encryption and authentication are the Group’s
core technological capabilities, which provide an effective,
economical, and reliable way to ensure the security of
financial payments as well as forming the foundation and
core technology for the popularization and commercialization
of l1oT deployments. The Group’s world’s largest financial
data personalisation center integrates with the secure
chip technologies and the cloud platform to establish the
Group's core technological strengths in the field of smart
secure payment as well as building up the Group’s core
competitiveness in the future loT era.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEBEEBNmERDNTE)
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The Group has also proactively engaged in technology
exchange and cooperation with the world’s top universities,
globally leading secure technology companies and chip
manufacturers, focusing on the future advancement of R&D
of secure encryption technology applications. At present, the
Group has made progress in its technical preparations for loT
secure modules, mobile phone APP white boxes, smart homes,
machine interaction and other related areas. In the application
of elD, the Group also possessed essential technologies and
related products. In the future, these technologies will be fully
utilised to the emerging areas including Al financial self-service
kiosks and overseas trusted identity documents, becoming the
new driving forces for the Group’s growth.

The Group is the IoT Secure Payment Engineering Technology
Center for Guangdong Province, excelling in its role on
commercializing the national financial IC chip as assigned by
the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology of China.
The Group is committed to accelerating the development
of OSCCA (Office of State Commercial Cryptography
Administration)-compliant financial chips to contribute to the
enhancement of China’s national information security.

In 2017, the Group’s proprietary EMV products based on
China’s national financial IC chip has successfully attained
accreditation by the most stringent international payment
standards and opened the international financial payment
markets for China national financial IC chips.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Intelligent Operation

The Group’s intelligent operation capabilities are at the
forefront of the global industry. As the “National Standards
Implementation Pilot Enterprise in the Integration of
Information Technology and Industrialization (2i Integration)”,
the Group has been awarded the title of “The Model
Enterprise for the 2017 Innovative Pilot Enterprise in
Guangdong Province” and “the Backbone Enterprise for the
2017 Strategic Emerging Industries in Guangdong Province”,
as recognition and affirmation of the Group’s remarkable
achievements in intelligent operation.

With its versatile and automated intelligent operation system,
the Group was able to shorten product delivery cycle, swiftly
respond to customers’ unique demands and reduce operating
cost. The balance between manufacturing customized
products, maintaining operational flexibility and cost control
has been achieved and will aid the Group in improving
operational efficiency.

Precise and efficient intelligent automated operation systems,
technologies and management experience are the core
strengths of the Group and have built a solid foundation for
the Group's larger-scale global operation in the future.
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Creating Demand for Innovation in
Fashion

With international leading design capabilities, trend-setting
innovative idea and technical craftsmanship, the Group is
able to generate market demand, boost growth and create
value for customers. This also contributes greatly to induce a
differentiating competitive advantage for the Group.

In 2017, the credit card market experienced a rapid growth
in China. Market demand for high-end, fashionable designed
and customized product continued to increase. The Group's
competitive advantages in innovative fashion came into
full play. The Group’s credit card shipment volume in 2017
increased by approximately 40% as compared with that of
the previous year. All three fastest-growing credit card issuing
national banks in China were the Group’s long-term and
stable customers. Furthermore, the Group received in 2017
seven ICMA Elan Awards, the most renowned award in the
global payment card industry. The Group was also recognized
as world leader in terms of number of awards received.

The Group has launched six major product categories in 24
innovative products spanning payment watches, payment
jewelry, payment mobile phone accessories and blue-tooth
payment tools. In 2017, the Group launched payment
wristband, payment bracelets for VISA, mobile payment phone
accessories for an internationally recognized franchised coffee
chain, GPS navigation payment watches for a domestic leading
joint-stock commercial bank during the Shanghai Marathon,
and joint development of payment jewelry with a leading
jewelry brand in the Shanghai Fashion Week. The Group
demonstrated that its core security encryption technology has
been applied to much broader and fashionable fields. The
products were well-recognized, implicating potential growth
of the Groups’ product portfolio.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Metal card products are one of the main focuses of the
Group's innovative fashion product portfolio. The prestigious
and luxurious product design allows financial institutions such
as banks to enhance their brand image and to attract high-
end and fashion-conscious consumers. At present, the metal
card has already experienced a fast pace of growth in markets
such as the United States. The Group believes its technologies
and market experiences will allow it to become a leading
forerunner in China’s metal card market segment.

Stable, Sizable and Diverse Customer Base

The Group has a broad, stable and diverse customer
base comprising more than 1,000 banks globally, over
200 government authorities in China as well as over 40
multinational enterprises.

Despite China is the most essential market for the Group, the
Group’s products and services have already been distributed
to 25 countries and regions. In response to the “Belt and
Road” initiative, the Group’s overseas key markets include
Bangladesh, Mongolia, the Philippines, Pakistan and other
Southeast Asian and Central Asian countries. In 2017, the
Group successfully entered into the Central American market.
At the same time, through setting up of office in Mongolia,
the Group has aimed to strengthen its expansion into Russia
and Central Asian countries.

In addition to maintaining its leading edge in the financial
sector, the Group has been expanding into various non-
financial sectors such as in government, social security,
transportation, healthcare, enterprises and retail segments to
establish a multi-level customer structure.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEENWR DT @

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

The Group is now establishing its second Five-Year Development
Plan with the focus on becoming the expert in smart financial
service solutions within the next three to five years.

Despite the increasingly intense competition in the smart secure
payment products market, the Group has distinguished itself
through its competitive advantages in technology, innovative
products and financial capability. The Group is fully capable of
striving for more market share in China and in overseas countries,
especially in Asia.

Additionally, the Group will prudently utilize its cash reserves and
will focus on the development of the following six aspects.

1. Continual Strengthening in Core Security
Technologies and Expansion of loT.

The Group will engage in the future development of loT
through the secure chip and trusted service platforms (TSM,
TSP). loT security chips enable secure data transmission
while trusted service platforms enable secure authentication.
With secure cloud technologies, the Group is delivering
total solutions that enable inter-equipment interaction and
connectivity, so as to create huge development opportunities
for the Group in fields including automobile networking, smart
cities, smart homes, human-computer interactions, the sharing
economy and other related fields. The Group will continue
to participate in the formulation of IoT security technology
standards and will actively promote industry standardization.

22 Goldpac Group Limited  Annual Report 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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Al Financial Self-service Kiosks and - St ESRERERSY

Solutions

In response to the trend of unmanned and mobile financial
services, the Group's proprietary customized and intelligent
kiosks, and solutions are going to be launched. Using artificial
intelligence, these financial self-service kiosks and solutions
utilize the advantages of human-computer interaction,
facial recognition as well as other biometrics. The Group
will amalgamate all these specifications to enable account
enquiry and application, card retrieval and replacement.
The technology will assist financial institutions in improving
their intelligent operation efficiency, while reducing staff
cost and providing an easier and faster service experience
for consumers. The Group will expand the functionality and
areas of application for financial self-service kiosks towards
opportunities in intelligent unmanned counters and branches
to help bringing the Group new areas of growth.

Intelligent Operation Upgrades and
Expansion

The Group will further optimize its operational processes.
Capitalizing on the Group's world-leading automation
equipment and their core technologies and systems, the Group
will promote loT technology applications to a larger extent.
The Group is in the position of building an advanced, practical
and independent industrial loT system so as to improve
operational stability and efficiency as well as preparing for a
wider global operation in the future. At the same time, the
Group will utilize its experience and technologies to develop a
modular industrial 10T system and provide relevant consulting
services to potential third parties in the area of industrial loT
technology.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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Expansion of the Financial Service
Outsourcing Industry Chain

The increasingly competitive financial industry is giving rise
to the inevitable trend for financial institutions to seek for
broader financial services outsourcing as a way for financial
institutions to maintain their performance growth and
competitiveness. The Group’s relationship with its broad,
stable and diverse financial customer base and over 20 years
of experience have given the Group a deep understanding
of their operational processes and needs, and full capability
of providing a broad range of financial services outsourcing.
The Group will jointly develop a series of training, services
and internship platforms for financial industry related systems
and software outsourcing with financial information service
enterprises. It will extend the Group’s financial services
outsourcing industry chain further. Simultaneously, the Group
will make full use of the technical strength and experience
of its R&D team to provide diversified solutions for financial
institutions to optimize their operation processes and expand
their businesses in emerging areas.

“Platform + Service” Upgrade

The Group continues to execute its strategy of upgrading its
“Platform + Service” by utilizing its personalized solutions
to undertake customer operated functions, such as credit
card operations, urban transportation operation and other
value chain systems. At present, relevant projects have been
implemented in Shanghai, Zhuhai, Zhongshan, Handan and
other locations. In 2018, the Group will utilize its experience
with successful projects and will start building customized
platforms for national small and medium-sized financial
institutions and national public transportation, further
expanding its coverage area and business scale through the
personalized and customized concept of “Platform + Service”
upgrade.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

6. Expansion into Overseas Markets

In 2018, the Group will rapidly enter into the overseas
financial payment market and accelerate China’s national
financial chip’s overseas expansion, with the advantage of
the China national chip. China UnionPay is increasing its
expansion in countries as stipulated by the “Belt and Road”
Initiative. By the end of 2017, China UnionPay has issued
nearly 100 million payment cards overseas. The Group
will capitalize opportunities on China UnionPay’s overseas
promotion, striving for more market share.

Along with the Group’s efforts in reinforcing profitability, the Group
will also pay attention to external expansion, seek opportunities
in areas such as collaboration within the same industry, loT,
banking services, payments, and further upstream. By means of
capital operations such as domestic and international mergers
and acquisitions, the Group will combine internal growth and
external expansion, to create synergies and accelerate the overall
development of the enterprise.

The construction of the Goldpac Fintech Innovation Hub will
be commenced in the middle of 2018 and will be one of the
key strategic platforms for external expansion of the Group.
With substantial government support, the Group aims to attract
innovative enterprises, projects, and talents from financial
technology fields within the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Bay
area. Building financial information services industry cluster area
and innovation city, as well as forming collaborative integration
development allied with the Group, will allow a constant supply
of innovation and business opportunities leading to the synergistic
development of financial technology.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent to 31 December 2017, no material events have
occurred.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to be eligible for attendance and for voting at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held
on Thursday, 17 May 2018, all transfer documents accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at
Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
for registration by 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 11 May 2018. The register
of members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 14 May
2018 to Thursday, 17 May 2018, both days inclusive, during which
period, no transfer of Shares will be registered.

In order to determine who are entitled to the proposed final
dividend and special dividend, all transfer documents accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong for registration by 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 1 June 2018. The
register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 4
June 2018 to Wednesday, 6 June 2018, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares will be registered. Subject to
shareholders’ approval of the proposed dividends at the annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, 17 May
2018, the dividends will be paid on Friday, 29 June 2018 to the
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company at the close of business on Wednesday, 6 June 2018.

26 Goldpac Group Limited  Annual Report 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

USE OF PROCEEDS RAISED FROM THE
INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

The Company's shares were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 4 December 2013 with net proceeds from
the global offering of approximately RMB975 million (after
deducting underwriting commissions and related expenses).
As at 31 December 2017, the Company utilized approximately
RMB757 million for the purposes of production capacity expansion,
innovative product and service research and development,
investment in associates and acquisition, market expansion
outside of China, working capital supplementation and other
general corporate purposes. The balances of the net proceeds
were deposited in banking account. The Company has utilized
and will utilize the net proceeds pursuant to the purposes and the
proportions as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 22
November 2013.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

By assuming a conservative financial management attitude, the
Group continued to maintain the healthy financial position.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's aggregate amount of bank
balances and cash, fixed bank deposits and pledged bank deposits
reached approximately RMB1,617.0 million (2016: approximately
RMB1,763.1 million), of which approximately RMB781.7 million
(2016: approximately RMB892.5 million) was denominated in RMB,
representing approximately 48.3%, and approximately RMB835.3
million (2016: approximately RMB870.6 million) was denominated
in USD, HKD or other foreign currencies, representing approximately
51.7%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEENWR DT @

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the Group had no
bank loans.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s trade receivables was
approximately RMB417.7 million (2016: approximately RMB340.0
million). It is the industry practice that settlement of trade
receivables peaks around the end of year.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s total current assets amounted
to RMB2,196.9 million (2016: approximately RMB2,145.4 million),
representing an increase of approximately 2.4% compared with that
of the previous year.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s current ratio was 2.9 (2016:
3.0), representing a high liquidity.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's gearing ratio (gearing ratio is
equivalent to total debt divided by total assets as at the end of the
year) was 28.7% (2016: 27.9%).

CURRENCY EXPOSURE

In terms of currency exposure, the majority of the Group’s sales
were denominated in RMB, USD and HKD while the majority of
operating expenses and purchases were denominated in RMB with
portions were in USD and HKD. The Group manages its foreign
currency risk by closely monitoring the fluctuation of foreign
currency rates.

28 Goldpac Group Limited  Annual Report 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group's capital
expenditure was approximately RMB213.0 million. (2016:
approximately RMB11.1 million). The capital expenditure includes
expenses in fixed assets, intangible assets and deferred assets.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

The aggregate capital commitment of the Group as at 31 December
2017 was approximately RMB14.8 million (2016: approximately
RMB146.2 million).

PLEDGED ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, bank deposits of approximately RMB111.3
million (2016: approximately RMB139.7 million) was pledged to
secure the bills payables and bank guarantee.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

The Group had no significant investments for the year ended 31
December 2017.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURE

The Group had no material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures for the year ended 31
December 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEENWR DT @

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2017, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Shares.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to maintaining high levels of environmental
and social standards to ensure sustainable development of its
business. During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group'’s
environmental, social and governance (“ESG"”) management
team had managed, monitored, recommended and reported on
environmental and social aspects. An ESG report is prepared with
reference to Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules (Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide) and will be published on the
Company’s and the Stock Exchange’s websites.

The Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations
in relation to its business including health and safety, workplace
conditions, employment and the environment. The Group
encourages its employees, customers, suppliers and other
stakeholders to participate in environmental and social activities.

The Group maintains strong relationships with its employees. The
Group also enhances cooperation with its suppliers and provides
high quality products and services to its customers so as to ensure
continued and sustainable development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had 1,731 employees (as
at 31 December 2016: 1,642), with an increase of 89 employees
as compared with that as at 31 December 2016. This was mainly
attributable to the enlargement of the operation scale, overseas
market expansion and further optimization of the structure of R&D
professionals.

The human resources are one of the Group’s most important assets.
In addition to offering competitive remuneration and welfare
packages, the Group is also committed to providing specialized and
challenging career development and training programs. Generally,
a salary review is conducted annually. The Group also adopted the
Pre-IPO share option scheme, the share option scheme and the
share award scheme to motivate prospective employees. Apart
from basic remuneration, for employees in the Mainland China,
the Group makes contributions towards employee mandatory
social security, pensions, work-related injury insurance, maternity
insurance and medical and unemployment insurance in accordance
with the applicable laws and regulations of the Mainland China.
The Group also provides full coverage of housing provident fund
contributions as required by local regulations in the Mainland China.
For overseas employees, the Group also make contributions towards
relevant insurance scheme as required by the local regulations.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREER

DIRECTORS

S

The Board is consisted of nine Directors, including five executive BEE@MmNEZEDANK  BIEALHTE
Directors, one non-executive Director and three independent % - —Z3EHITEE - BB IIEHNITE
non-executive Directors. The following table sets forth certain = - LN RBEARZESEMN -

information relating to the Directors:

Name Age
7R Fi#R

Position in the Group

EEBB

Executive Directors

BITES

LU Run Ting 63
EEE

HOU Ping 57
& ¥

LU Runyi 60
EEfe

LU Xiaozhong 49
B/ R

WU Sigiang 45
RE®

Non-executive Director

FHITES

LING Wai Lim 31
BB Bk

Independent Non-executive Directors

BYFIITES

MAK Wing Sum Alvin 65
EKER

LIU John Jianhua 67
Elj=ts

YE Lu 55
B
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Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer
BITEERERATE

Executive Director & Senior Vice President
BITES R REEE

Executive Director & Senior Vice President
HWITESE L= RBEIRE

Executive Director & Chief Operating Officer
BITEERERERETE

Non-executive Director

FRNTER

Independent Non-executive Director
BIUIFMITES
Independent Non-executive Director
BIUFMITES
Independent Non-executive Director

BUINTES



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Executive Directors

Mr. LU Run Ting (EBE), aged 63, is the chairman and an
executive Director of the Company, and the founder of the Group.
He was first appointed as Director on 10 December 2004 and was
designated as an executive Director with effect from 15 November
2013. Chairman LU is primarily responsible for the overall strategic
planning and overseeing the general management of the Group.
He has over 25 years of experience in financial card industry and
was honored as the finalist award of CNBC Asia Business Leaders
Award in October 2015. Chairman LU has been the chairman of
the Company and the Company’s subsidiaries, Goldpac Datacard
Solutions Company Limited (“Goldpac Datacard”) and Goldpac
Limited (formerly named as “Goldpac Secur-Card (Zhuhai) Limited”)
since 2011 and also has been the director of Goldpac Fintech
Singapore Private Limited and Goldpac Investment Limited, the
Company’s subsidiaries, since 2016. He was the managing director
and a Director of the Group from 2004 to 2011 and also served
as the vice chairman and president of both Goldpac Datacard and
Goldpac Limited from 2000 to 2011 and 1995 to 2011 respectively.

Prior to the establishment of the Group in 1995, Chairman LU had
interest in Goldpac International (Holding) Limited (“GIHL"), the
Company’s controlling shareholder since 1993. Chairman LU also
served as various management positions at the subsidiaries of the
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China prior to the establishment
of GIHL in 1993. He currently also serves as the chairman of GIHL.
Chairman LU received a Master of Business Administration degree
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 2004.
Chairman LU had not been a director of any other listed companies
in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.

Chairman LU is currently holding 100% interest of GIHL, the
Company’s controlling shareholder. Chairman LU is the elder
brother of Mr. LU Runyi, who is an executive Director of the
Company, and is the father of Mr. LING Wai Lim, who is a non-
executive Director of the Company.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

BEERSREEE @)

Mr. HOU Ping (&¥), aged 57, is an executive Director and the
chief executive officer of the Company, and joined the Group
in 2011. He was first appointed as a Director on 30 August
2011, and was designated as an executive Director with effect
from 15 November 2013. He is primarily responsible for the
overall management of the Group. Mr. HOU has over 30 years of
experience in the banking industry, including approximately 20
years of experience in the card industry. He has been a Director and
the chief executive officer of the Company since 2011. He has also
served as a director of Goldpac Datacard and a director of Goldpac
Limited since 2011 and a director of Goldpac Fintech Singapore
Private Limited since 2016.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. HOU was the head of credit card
centre at Deutsche Bank (China) Co., Ltd, and was seconded to
Huaxia Bank as chief executive officer of the credit card centre
from 2006 to 2011. Mr. HOU served various positions at Bank of
China group and subsequently, BOC Credit Card (International)
Limited since 1999, including as deputy general manager of BOC
Credit Card (International) Limited in Hong Kong from 1999 to
2004. He also currently serves as an independent non-executive
director of the Huijin Technology (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd (B/BE &R
FRRD B R /AR]) (a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange,
Stock Code: 300561). Mr. HOU received a Master of Business
Administration degree from the Hong Kong Baptist University in
December 2003. Saved as disclosed herein, Mr. HOU had not been a
director of any other listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas in
the past three years.

Mr. LU Runyi (E818), aged 60, is an executive Director and a
senior vice president of the Company, and joined the Group in
1995. He was first appointed as a Director in December 2004, and
was designated as an executive Director with effect from November
2013. He is primarily responsible for the management of the sales
department of the Group. Mr. LU Runyi, has approximately 25
years of experience in the financial cards industry. He has been a
senior vice president of the Group since 2004 and was a Director
of the Company from 2004 to 2010. He has also been a director
of Goldpac Datacard and Goldpac Limited since 2011. He currently
also serves as a Director of GIHL. Mr. LU Runyi had not been a
director of any other listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas in
the past three years.

Mr. LU Runyi is the younger brother of Chairman LU, who is the
Chairman and an executive Director of the Company, and is the
uncle of Mr. LING Wai Lim, who is a non-executive Director of the
Company.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. LU Xiaozhong (E/N&), aged 49, is an executive Director
and a senior vice president of the Company, and joined the Group
in 1995. He was first appointed as a Director on 21 May 2013,
and was designated as an executive Director with effect from 15
November 2013. He is primarily responsible for the management
of the corporate business, quality and security department of the
Group. Mr. LU has approximately 25 years of experience in the card
industry. He has been the senior vice president, general manager of
the corporate business management department and chief officer of
the information security of Goldpac Limited since 2012. Since 2011
to 2014, he acted as the Director of Goldpac Limited and Goldpac
Datacard. He also served various management positions at Goldpac
Limited from 1995 to 2012.

Mr. LU has been an external expert consultant of China UnionPay
since 2010. He served as a member of the Economic Crime
Consultancy expert team of the Zhuhai Police Bureau. Through
these appointments, he has accumulated relevant experience
in compliance, quality control and confidential information
management and intellectual property right of customers. Mr.
LU graduated from the Shanghai Jiao Tong University in the
P.R.C. (/8B KE) with a Bachelor of Engineering degree in
Polymer Materials in July 1990 and received a Master of Business
Administration degree from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
December 2006.

Mr. LU had not been a director of any other listed companies in
Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.

Mr. WU Siqiang (R 23&), aged 45, is an executive Director and
the chief operating officer of the Company, and joined the Group
in 2001. Mr. WU is primarily responsible for the overall operation
of the Group. Mr. WU was designated as an executive Director
with effect from 18 May 2017, he has approximately 20 years of
experience in the card industry. Mr. WU was a manager of the
production division, vice general manager of the operation division,
general manger of the production management division of Goldpac
Limited from 2001 to 2011 successively and has been the chief
operating officer of Goldpac Limited since 2011. Mr. WU also
served as a manager of the procurement division of Goldpac Limited
since 2004. Mr. WU graduated from the Guangdong Mechanics
University (BHR##Z0t) (now part of Guangdong University of
Technology (B T % KX 2) with a Bachelor of Mechatronics degree
in July 1993.

Mr. WU had not been a director of any other listed companies in
Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EENSREEE &)

Non-executive Director

Mr. LING Wai Lim (E&EBE), aged 31, is a non-executive Director
of the Company, and joined the Group in 2017. He was appointed
as a non-executive director with effect from 18 May 2017. Mr. LING
has over 10 years of experience in biomedical research and research
project management. Mr. LING has been the project manager of
China Regenerative Medicine International Limited (Stock Code:
8158), a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange, since September 2016, in which he served as a
project analyst from June 2015 to August 2016. Mr. LING served as
a research assistant of The University of Hong Kong, Department of
Paediatrics and Adolescent Medicine, from December 2010 to May
2012. Mr. LING received the Bachelor of Science (Biotechnology)
from The University of Hong Kong in 2008, the Master of Philosophy
in Microbiology from The University of Hong Kong in 2010, and
also the Doctor of Philosophy in Immunology from The University of
Hong Kong in 2015. Mr. LING had not been a director of any other
Listed Companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.

Mr. LING is the son of Chairman LU, who is the Chairman and an
executive Director of the Company. He is also the nephew of Mr. LU
Runyi, who is an executive Director and senior vice president of the
Company.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin (Z k%) (also known as Mr. MAK Wing
Sum), aged 65, is an independent non-executive Director. He joined
the Group on 15 November 2013, when he was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director.

Mr. MAK is currently an independent non-executive director of
Hong Kong Television Network Limited (a company listed on the
Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 1137), I.T Limited (a company listed
on the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 999), Luk Fook Holdings
(International) Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange,
Stock Code: 590), Lai Fung Holdings Limited (a company listed on
the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 1125) and Crystal International
Group Limited (a company Listed on the Stock Exchange, Stock
Code: 2232). Mr. MAK is a member of Hong Kong Housing Society
and a member of its audit committee, remuneration committee
and special committee on investment. Mr. MAK, after working in
Citibank for over 26 years, went into his retirement in April 2012
where he last served as the Head of Markets and Banking for
Citibank Hong Kong. Whilst at Citibank, he has held various senior
positions, managing the regional global asset management business
and financial control for North Asia.

Mr. MAK graduated from the University of Toronto in Canada
with a Bachelor of Commerce degree in June 1976. He has been
a Chartered Accountant of the Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants since September 1979, a Chartered Professional
Accountant of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants
since November 2012 and currently also a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Save as disclosed
herein, Mr. MAK had not been a director of any other listed
companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

BEERSREEE @)

Mr. LIU John Jianhua (8| %), aged 66, is an independent non-
executive Director. He joined the Group on 15 November 2013,
when he was appointed as an independent non-executive Director.

Mr. LIU has been the chairman of the Academy of International
Transport of the City University of Hong Kong since 2012. Mr.
LIU served as the director of the Center for Transport, Trade and
Financial Studies and the visiting professor at the department of
management science of the City University of Hong Kong since
2011 to December 2015 and 2016 respectively. Mr. LIU has been
a visiting professor of Faculty of Business Administration of Beijing
Institute of Technology, Zhuhai since 1 January 2017.

Mr. LIU received a Master in Engineering degree in March 1982
from Huazhong Engineering University (224 T2f5%) (now known as
Huazhong University of Science & Technology (Z£/RRHE K E2)). He
received a Master of Science degree major in Engineering-Economic
Systems from Stanford University in the United States in June 1983
and a Doctor of Philosophy degree in Industrial Engineering from
Pennsylvania State University in August 1986 in the United States.
Mr. LIU had not been a director of any other listed companies in
Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.

Ms. YE Lu (¥3%), aged 55, is an independent non-executive
Director. She joined the Group on 18 May 2017 when she was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director.

Ms. YE Lu has more than 30 years of experience in cross border
commercial dispute resolution. Ms. YE joined King & Wood
Mallesons in 2004, and is currently a partner of King & Wood
Mallesons. Ms. YE is a member of the Council of the London
Court of International Arbitration, and an arbitrator of American
Arbitration Association, China International Economic and Trade
Arbitration Commission and Hong Kong International Arbitration
Center and Singapore International Arbitration Center. Prior to
2004, Ms. YE was a consultant and worked for an international law
firm for 9 years, and was a lawyer and a partner in two other Beijing
law firms for 6 years.

Ms. YE received the Bachelor of Laws from the Law School of
Peking University in June 1983, and received the Master of Laws
from the Law School of Chinese Academy of Social Sciences in
June 1986, and also received the Master of Laws from the Harvard
Law School in June 1994. Ms. YE was admitted as lawyer in the
People’s Republic of China and New York State in 1988 and 1999
respectively. Ms. YE had not been a director of any other listed
companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENRESREEE @)
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Name Gender Age Position

HE 5l File B

LI Yijin Female 47 Chief financial officer & Company Secretary
F o o8 BREVBERARWE

LI Jun Male 56 Chief technology officer

£ = BREKME

Ms. LI Yijin (Z25#), aged 47, is the chief financial officer of
the Company, and joined the Group in 2001. She is primarily
responsible for the management of the accounting and finance
department of the Group. Ms. LI has approximately 25 years of
experience in the accounting and financial reporting matters. She
was the financial controller of the Group from 2004 to 2012 and
has been the chief financial officer of the Group since 2012.

Ms. LI received an Executive Master of Business Administration
degree from the Hong Kong University of Science & Technology in
November 2012. Ms. LI has been a member of CPA (Certified Public
Accountants) Australia since October 2004 and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since May 2013. Ms. LI had
not been a director of any other listed companies in Hong Kong or
overseas in the past three years.

Mr. LI Jun (ZE), aged 56, is the chief technology officer of the
Company, and joined the Group in 2013. He is primarily responsible
for the management of the technical solutions department and
R&D department of the Group. Mr. LI has approximately 20 years
of experience in the technology related industry. He has been the
chief technology officer of the Company since January 2013. He has
also been the chief technology officer of both Goldpac Limited and
Goldpac Datacard since January 2013.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EENSREEE &)

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. LI joined Giesecke & Devrient
GmbH as engineer in 1997 and from 1999 to 2012 served as the
director for security equipment in Giesecke & Devrient (China)
Information Technology Co., Ltd. Mr. LI graduated from the Beijing
University of Posts and Telecommunications (1t R#$E £f5%) with
a degree in radio communication and received a master degree
in engineering from Universitat-Gesamthochschule Paderborn in
Germany and a master certificate in project management from the
George Washington University through its program in Beijing in July
1983, June 1997 and May 2005 respectively. Mr. LI had not been a
director of any other listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas in
the past three years.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. LI Yijin (Z25#), aged 47, is the company secretary of the
Group, and joined the Group in 2001. She is responsible for the
secretarial matters of the Group.

Please refer to the paragraph headed “Directors and Senior
Management — Senior Management” above for the biography of
Ms. LI.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTOR

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, there is no changes in
information of Directors required to be disclosed for the year
ended 31 December 2017 pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).

42 Goldpac Group Limited  Annual Report 2017

RMAREER - FRERI1997F MA
Giesecke & Devrient GmbH ¥ £ T2 fif -
WHR1999F B 2012 F R EEFEE(FEH)
EAREERAANEZERELRE - F
FHER1983F 7 A + 19979 6 A F12005F
SADRESERHELERESEBRESR
¥ 24 R EEEEE R KE (Universitat-
Gesamthochschule Paderborn) L1218 + £
il - WEBBARERERENIE AR
BERSEEERELIRE - TEERBRE=
FAREETEMBEBIBINEMATNE
=

DNAME

FHELL  ATH RARBNRRWE -
R2001FIMAKREE - AEAKEH R EM
EEH-

ERFLIHNERHEF2HLXIEER
SREEE—RREEE] K-

ESEREE

BEBXAMES EMRA( EWAHRA])
13.51B(N &k - REE2017F12A31H 1k
ZFE  BAFREEBREEBEZIN 0 AAF]
EEEENEEEEHEE -



The Board hereby presents this Annual Report together with the
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Incorporated in Hong Kong on 8 October 2004, the Company
was publicly listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
4 December 2013. Primarily operated through its subsidiaries in
the Mainland China and Hong Kong, the Company is specialised
in delivering embedded software and secure payment products
for global customers and leveraging innovative Fintech to provide
personalisation service, system platforms and other total solutions
for customers in a wide business range including finance,
government, healthcare, transportation and retails. The Company
is the exclusive secure payment products supplier in the PRC, which
is certified by all six of the world-leading credit card organisations
of China UnionPay, VISA, MasterCard, American Express, JCB and
Diners Club.

As a global leading secure payment total solution supplier,
the Company is actively involved in drafting and formulating
of industrial standards and criterion. To drive the innovation
by customers’ diversified demands and evolving front-line
technologies, the Company watches the cutting-edge technologies
trends with the closest interests, covering internet banking, mobile
payment, loT, to reinforce the Company’s leading industrial position
and boost the whole industry’s evolution. Motivated by the strong
R&D aptitudes and affluent practical experiences, the Company
was actively involved in numerous significant industrial events and
projects, including China’s secure and reliable financial IC card
chip promotion project, the first EMV projects in Hong Kong and
the Mainland China, the first provincial social security card project,
the first financial social security card project, the first citizen card
project and the first healthcare card project in the Mainland China.
Committed to essential sustainable development philosophies of
delivering value and innovation, the Company is fully engaged
in promoting the wider and in-depth application of smart secure
payment technologies, with its leading technologies, preeminent
qualities and superior service, to provide people worldwide with the
safer, easier and more convenient payment experience.

The principal activities of the Group for the year 2017 are set out
in the Note 5 to Consolidated Financial Statements on page 164 to
page 166 of this Annual Report.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year 2017 are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income of page 118 of this Annual Report.

A final dividend of HK10.0 cents (2016: HK7.0 cents) and a special
dividend of HK6.0 cents (2016: HK6.0 cents) per ordinary share in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2017 has been proposed by
the Board of Directors.

PERFORMANCE

A discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance during the
year 2017, the material factors underlying its results and financial
position and details of the Group’s principal activities are provided
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
page 14 to page 31 of this Annual Report.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to be eligible for attendance and for voting at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held
on Thursday, 17 May 2018, all transfer documents accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at
Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
for registration by 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 11 May 2018. The register
of members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 14 May
2018 to Thursday, 17 May 2018, both days inclusive, during which
period, no transfer of Shares will be registered.

In order to determine who are entitled to the proposed final
dividend and special dividend, all transfer documents accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong for registration by 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 1 June 2018. The
register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 4
June 2018 to Wednesday, 6 June 2018, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares will be registered. Subject to
shareholders’ approval of the proposed dividends at the annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, 17 May
2018, the dividends will be paid on Friday, 29 June 2018 to the
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company at the close of business on Wednesday, 6 June 2018.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A number of factors may affect the results and business operations
of the Group, some of which are inherent to the payment solutions
business and some are from external sources. Major risks are
summarized below.

(i)

(ii)

The financial performance of the Group
depends on the future growth of the
consumer financial services industry and
trends

As the Group relies on financial institutions, government
agencies (such as social security, public health and
transportation agencies) and other organisations that issue
financial cards as its customers or potential customers,
the financial performance of the Group depends on the
future growth of the consumer financial services industry
and trends in that industry towards greater outsourcing of
certain functions such as the production and personalisation
of financial cards. The consumer financial services industry
is characterised by rapid launches of new products and
services, continuous technological advancement, evolving
industry standards and changing customer needs, all of which
translate to shorter life cycles for new products and services.
Organisations that issue financial cards, such as the Group’s
customers, may face difficulty in anticipating changes in
consumer tastes, preferences and requirements and designing
financial products to meet such changes, which could lead to
a lower demand for financial cards and in turn decrease these
organisations’ demand for the products and services, which
may adversely affect the financial results of the Group.

As a supplier to financial institutions and
government agencies, the Group is subject
to rigorous industry standards and/or
government regulations

Many of the industry organisations, government regulatory
agencies and other bodies to which the Group’s customers
belong or are subject to have issued their own sets of
standards and criteria relating to the facilities and products
of payment solutions manufacturers and providers, which
the Group must satisfy in order to be eligible to supply
products and services to these customers. For example, as
required by the Group’s financial institution customers, the
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
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Group has obtained certifications from all six of the leading
worldwide payment card organisations (VISA, MasterCard,
American Express, China UnionPay, JCB, and Diners Club)
with respect to the Group’s card manufacturing and
personalisation services. To maintain such certifications, the
Group is subject to rigorous periodic audits by these payment
card organisations to review the Group's compliance with
their standards and criteria. The Group makes significant
investments in order to meet these standards and criteria,
which vary depending on the organisation or body, including
investments required to satisfy changes adopted from time
to time by these organisations and bodies in their respective
standards and criteria. Further investments to meet these
standards and criteria may be costly, and if the Group is unable
to continue to meet these standards and criteria, the Group
may become ineligible to provide products and services that
have constituted in the past an important part of the Group'’s
revenue and profitability.

(iii) The Group faces significant competition in

46

each of the markets in which it operates,
which could affect its profitability

The Group’s market position depends upon its ability to
anticipate and proactively deal with changes in economic and
market conditions and evolving industry trends, as well as the
following factors: introduction of new or superior products
and services or more advanced technologies, adoption of
more flexible pricing strategies by the Group’s competitors
and changes in customers’ needs and preferences. The Group
cannot assure that its current or potential competitors will not
produce the same or similar products or products of a better
quality and/or provide similar or higher quality services at the
same or lower prices than the prices at which the Group’s
products and services are provided.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Group’s competitors may also react more quickly to new
or emerging technologies or changes in customer preferences.
In addition, the Group may face greater than expected
downward pricing pressure as a result of possible price
competition by competitors seeking to stimulate demand in
order to maintain or increase market share. Such competition
could adversely affect the Group’s results of operations and
business prospects. Any adverse changes in the Group’s
competitive environment could cause a reduction in the sales
guantity, its market share, or the sales price of its products,
which would lower the Group’s profitability. As a supplier
to the major financial institutions in China, the Group’s
performance and profitability may be adversely affected if
its customers, when faced with operational difficulties and
decreasing profit margins, seek to demand more favourable
trading terms from the Group in relation to price and credit
period. The Group’s performance and profitability will also be
adversely affected if any of its customers faces cost control or
cash flow problems due to such operational difficulties.

(iv) Fluctuations in consumer spending and

financial services in the PRC may affect
the Group’s business and financial
performance

During the past few years, the Group derived most of the
Group's revenue from operations in the PRC. The Group's
sales and growth are dependent on consumer spending
and consumer banking, which in turn depend on continued
improvement of macroeconomic conditions, in Asia generally
but in the PRC in particular. There are many factors affecting
the level of consumer spending and consumer banking,
including but not limited to, interest rates, currency exchange
rates, recession, inflation, deflation, political uncertainty,
taxation, stock market performance, unemployment levels
and general consumer confidence. In addition, the Group
believes that the Group’s historical growth rates were largely
dependent on the general growth of the PRC economy.
The Group can provide no assurance that the PRC economy
will continue to grow at historical rates, or at all, and any
slowdowns or declines in the PRC economy or consumer
spending or consumer banking may adversely affect the
Group's business, financial condition, results of operations and
growth prospects.
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(v) Adverse changes in China’'s economic,

48

political and social conditions as well
as laws and government policies, may
adversely affect the Group’s business,
financial condition, results of operations
and growth prospects

The economic, political and social conditions in China differ
from those in more developed countries in many respects,
including structure, government involvement, level of
development, growth rate, control of foreign exchange,
capital reinvestment, allocation of resources, rate of inflation
and trade balance position. Before the adoption of its reform
and opening up policies in 1978, the PRC was primarily a
planned economy. In recent years, the PRC government has
been reforming the PRC economic system and government
structure. For example, the PRC government has implemented
economic reform and measures emphasising the utilisation
of market forces in the development of the PRC economy
in the past three decades. These reforms have resulted in
significant economic growth and social prospects. Economic
reform measures, however, may be adjusted, modified or
applied inconsistently from industry to industry or across
different regions of the country. The Group cannot predict
whether the resulting changes will have any adverse effect
on the Group's current or future business, financial condition
or results of operations. Despite these economic reforms and
measures, the PRC government continues to play a significant
role in regulating industrial development, allocation of natural
and other resources, production, pricing and management
of currency, and there can be no assurance that the PRC
government will continue to pursue a policy of economic
reform or that the direction of reform will continue to be
market friendly.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Group’s ability to successfully expand its business
operations in the PRC depends on a number of factors,
including macro-economic and other market conditions, and
credit availability from lending institutions. Stricter credit or
lending policies in the PRC may affect the Group’s customers’
consumer credit or consumer banking business, and may
also affect the Group’s ability to obtain external financing,
which may reduce its ability to implement its expansion
strategies. The Group cannot assure that the PRC government
will not implement any additional measures to tighten
credit or lending standards, or that, if any such measure is
implemented, it will not adversely affect the Group's future
results of operations or profitability. Demand for the Group'’s
goods and services and its business, financial condition
and results of operations may be adversely affected by the
following factors:

o political instability or changes in social conditions of the
PRC;

. changes in laws, regulations, and administrative
directives or the interpretation thereof;

o measures which may be introduced to control inflation
or deflation; and

o changes in the rate or method of taxation.

These factors are affected by a number of variables which are
beyond the Group’s control.
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(vi) The Group’s business may be adversely

affected by the introduction of new
payment technologies

The Group face competition from new payment technologies,
which could reduce the demand for financial cards as a
payment method. If there are any new payment technologies
which will reduce the demand for financial card products
or other new products the Group may introduce from time
to time, including new products arising from the Group’s
research and development activities, the Group may
experience material and adverse effects on its business,
financial condition and results of operations.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS

(i)

50

Employees

Human resources are one of the greatest assets of the Group
and the Group regards the personal development of its
employees as highly important. The Group wants to continue
to be an attractive employer for committed employees.

The Group strives to motivate its employees with a clear career
path and opportunities for advancement and improvement
of their skills. The Group provides pre-employment and
on-the-job training and development opportunities to its
staff members. The training programs cover areas such
as managerial skills, innovative technologies, sales and
production, customer services, quality control, workplace
ethics and training of other areas relevant to the industry.
In addition, the Group seriously consider all those valuable
feedback from its employees for enhancing workplace
productivity and harmony.
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(ii)

REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Generally, a salary review is conducted annually. Aside from
basic remuneration, for all employees in Mainland China, the
Group provides employee mandatory social security funds,
pensions, work-related injury insurance, maternity insurance,
medical and employment insurance, and full coverage of
housing provident fund contributions in accordance with
the applicable laws and regulations of the Mainland China.
For overseas employees the Group also make contributions
towards relevant insurance schemes required by the local
regulations. Meanwhile the Group adopted the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme, Share Option Scheme and Share Award
Scheme to recognize and motivate the contribution of the
employees and attract suitable personnel for the long-term
growth and further strategic expansion of the Group. As at
31 December 2017, 10,374,000 shares have been granted or
agreed to be granted to the scheme participants (2016: nil)
under the Share Award Scheme.

Suppliers

The Group has developed long-standing relationships with a
number of its suppliers and takes great care to ensure that
they share the Group’s commitment to quality and ethics. The
Group carefully selects its suppliers and require them to satisfy
certain assessment criteria including track record, experience,
financial strength, reputation, products qualities and quality
control effectiveness. The Group also requires its suppliers to
comply with the Group’s anti-bribery policy.

(iii) Clients

The Group is committed to maintain and develop its diversified
clients’ portfolio consisting of the governmental organizations,
world-leading financial institutions, transportations projects
and multinational companies. The Group maximizes client
value by offering professional and effective operation model
and innovative and differentiated products and services, to
intensify the interaction and viscosity between clients and the
Group and enhances the client experience.

(ii)
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in the Mainland China and Hong Kong while the
Company itself is listed on the Stock Exchange. The Group’s
operations accordingly shall comply with relevant laws and
regulations in the Mainland China and Hong Kong. During the
year 2017, the Group have complied with all the relevant laws and
regulations in the Mainland China and Hong Kong.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year 2017 are set out on pages 121, 122 and 123 of
this annual report and in Note 38 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements on page 219 of this Annual Report respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year 2017 are set out in Note 13 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 180 and 181 of this
Annual Report.

BANK LOANS
The Group had no bank loan during the year 2017.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year 2017 are set out in Note 28 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements on pages 193 to 194 of this Annual Report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for the distribution to the
shareholders as at 31 December 2017 amounted to RMB146.2
million (31 December 2016: RMB321.3 million).
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BT ERRER

AEEHNEBETEAARARANE L
MEBARET  MARBRI B L
me At - AEBEZ EBEETAMKLEE
MBRDERKER - M2017F - AEECE
SRR EER A BRRIAERER

(G

AEBRARRIR2017FHHEBEE B FI5E
DRIMAEZEREE121 - 122~ 123BUK
F219B MERE TS RMIFE3S ©

M - RMERRE
REEYE - BERREN2017EHBE

BHRE180E NN 181 BFA MK RERM
sF13 °

WITER
REBMR2017F W EIBITE ©
N

BREARRIR2017FHRAFHBINAFE
WBEPFI193EET194BEEVERRMTE
28 o

o] 70 K B9 fei 8

ARATIA2017E12A31 BRI DR R R
HEEAARE146. 2B E (201612 A
3TEAARKEI2I3HET) °



REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL SUMMARY OF THE PAST 5
YEARS

The results, assets and liabilities of the past 5 years of the Group are
set out in the Financial Summary on page 220 of this Annual Report.

INCENTIVE SCHEMES
(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The pre-IPO share option scheme was adopted pursuant to a
written resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company
on 15 November 2013 (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”)
for the primary purpose of recognising the contribution of
certain employees and directors made or may have made to
the growth of the Group and/or the listing of the Group on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, and will expire on 3
December 2019.

At 31 December 2017, the number of shares in respect of
which options had been granted and remained outstanding
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was 28,117,000
(2016: 30,126,000), representing approximately 3.37%
(2016: 3.61%) of the shares of the Company in issue on that
day.

Options granted must be taken up on 19 November 2013,
upon payment of HKD1.0 by the grantee. All the options
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme were granted on
19 November 2013. The exercise price of each Pre-IPO share
option of the Company is HKD2.71 per share.
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The Pre-IPO share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme of the Company may be exercised by each

grantee in the following manner:

Vesting Period
5B

Exercise period

TES

ARAERAFEERBRER S AT
BTHERAREERBRENET
AT LAMRBRAT 7 AT BB AR AE -

Maximum percentage of options exercisable

ATEBEBRENRAB DT

From 19 November 2013
to 3 December 2014

201311198 %
2014512 A3H

From 19 November 2013
to 3 December 2015

2013F 11 A19H=
201512838

From 19 November 2013
to 3 December 2016

2013F 11 A19H=
2016512 A3H

From 19 November 2013
to 3 December 2017

2013F11A198 =
2017412 A3H

From 19 November 2013
to 3 December 2018

2013F11H198 =
2018412 A3H

From 4 December 2014
to 3 December 2019

2014F12 H4AB &
2019412 A3H

From 4 December 2015
to 3 December 2019

201512 A48 &
2019412 A3H

From 4 December 2016
to 3 December 2019

20165F12 F4ABE
2019512 A3H

From 4 December 2017
to 3 December 2019

2017912 4B &
201912 H3H

From 4 December 2018
to 3 December 2019

201812 A4BZE
2019412 A3H
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The following table discloses details of the Company’s Pre-IPO TREBEARNAESNREEMRMEAEN §§§
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The fair values of the share options granted during the year
ended 31 December 2013 were calculated at RMB69,935,000
(equivalent to HKD88,954,000) using the Binominal Option
Pricing pricing model. The inputs into the model were as
follows:

Share price HKD4.52
Exercise price HKD2.71
Expected life 6 years
Expected volatility 46.9963%
Expected dividend yield 1.0822%
Risk-free interest rate 1.2426%

Fair value per option HKD2.4250 to HKD2.4791

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the selected comparable companies in the
same industry. The expected life used in the model has
been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for
the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioural considerations.

The Group recognised the total expense of RMB4,426,000

(2016: RMB10,502,000) for the year ended 31 December 2017
in relation to share options granted by the Company.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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(b) Share Option Scheme

The principal terms of the share option scheme, approved by
the shareholder’s resolution passed on 15 November 2013
(the “Share Option Scheme”), are substantially the same as
the terms of the Pre-IPO Option Scheme except that:

(i)  the maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted shall not exceed 10% of the
total number of shares in issue at the date of listing of
the shares of the Company on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange;

(i) the maximum entitlement of each eligible participant in
any 12-month period up to the date of offer to grant
shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the date
of offer to grant; and

(iii)  The exercise price is determined by the directors of the
Company at their discretion and will not be lower than
the highest of: (a) the closing price of the ordinary shares
on the Stock Exchange at the offer date, which must be a
trading day; (b) the average closing price of the ordinary
shares on the Stock Exchange for the five business
days immediately preceding the offer date; and (c) the
nominal value of the Company’s share.

On 7 September 2016, 20,000,000 share options were
granted and all share options were forfeited during the year
ended 31 December 2016. As at 31 December 2016 and 2017,
no shares in respect of which options had been granted are
remained outstanding under the Share Option Scheme.

Assuming all options under the Share Option Scheme have
been granted, the total number of shares available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme shall be 80,000,000,
representing approximately 9.6% of the Company’s issued
share capital as at the date of the Company’s 2017 Annual
Report.
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(c) Share Award Scheme

58

The Company adopted a share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) on 30 November 2015 (the “Adoption
Date”) with a duration of 15 years commencing from 11
December 2015. The objectives of the Share Award Scheme
are to (i) align the interests of any employee, adviser,
consultant, agent, contractor, client or supplier of any member
of the Group whom the directors in its sole discretion considers
may contribute or have contributed to the Group (the
“Participants”); (ii) recognise and motivate the contribution
of the Participants and to provide incentives in retaining the
Participants for future operation and development of the
Group; and (iii) attract suitable personnel for the long-term
growth and further strategic expansion of the Group.

The Company has engaged BOCI-Prudential Trustee Limited
(the “Trustee”) to administer and hold the Company’s shares
before they are vested and transferred to the Participants. The
Trustee purchases the Company’s shares being awarded from
the open market with funds provided by the Company by way
of contributions.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, no ordinary shares
of the Company have been acquired (2016: 10,814,000
ordinary shares at an aggregate cost of HKD29,776,000,
equivalent to approximately RMB25,038,000). As at 31
December 2017, 10,374,000 shares have been granted or
agreed to be granted to the Participants (2016: nil). The
share awarded shall vest in 3 years on each anniversary of
the first vesting date in equal portions. The first vesting date
is 26 November 2017. The estimated fair value of the awards
granted are RMB24,239,000 (equivalent to HK$27,564,000)
based on the market price of the relevant shares at the
grant date. The Group recognised the total expenses of
RMB12,737,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017 in
relation to the share awards granted by the Company (2016:
nil). There are 7,867,000 (2016: 10,841,000) shares held by
the Trustee and RMB2,792,000 (2016: RMB1,342,000) was
placed to the Trustee as prepayments at the end of reporting
period.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year 2017 and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. LU Run Ting (Chairman)

Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. LU Runyi

Mr. LU Xiaozhong

Mr. WU Sigiang (appointed on 18 May 2017)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Christophe Jacques PAGAZY
(retired on 18 May 2017)
Mr. TING Tao | (resigned on 18 May 2017)
Mr. LING Wai Lim (appointed on 18 May 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin

Mr. LIU John Jianhua

Mr. ZHU Lijun (resigned on 18 May 2017)
Ms. YE Lu (appointed on 18 May 2017)

DIRECTORS’ PROFILES

Details of the Directors’ profiles are set out in the “Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 32 to 42 of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The directors who have served on the boards of the subsidiaries of
the Company during the year 2017 and up to the date of this report
are as follows:

Goldpac Datacard Solutions Company Limited
Mr. LU Run Ting

Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. LU Runyi

Goldpac Limited
Mr. LU Run Ting
Mr. HOU Ping
Mr. LU Runyi

Goldpac Smart Card (Guangzhou) Limited
Mr. LIU Xuhui

Goldpac Investment Limited
Mr. LU Run Ting

Goldpac Fintech Singapore Private Limited
Mr. LU Run Ting

Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. YAP Mung Hong

SecureTech Holdings Limited
Mr. NG, Chun Hung
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
BEEESHRE @

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years, which shall be
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing served
by either the executive Director or the Company. Each of non-
executive Directors has signed an appointment letter with the
Company for a term of three years. Each of independent non-
executive directors has signed an appointment letter with the
Company for a term of three years. The appointment of each
Director is subject to the provisions of appointment and retirement
of directors under the Articles of Association of the Company.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. HOU
Ping, Mr. LU Xiaozhong, Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin and Mr. LING
Wai Lim, a director appointed by the Board on 18 May 2017, shall
retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting. All the retiring
directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting has unexpired service contract which is
not determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE FROM
THE INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin, Mr. LIU
John Jianhua and Ms. YE Lu, the confirmation of their respective
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company has duly reviewed the confirmation of independence
of each of these Directors. The Company considers that the
independent non-executive Directors had been independent from
the date of their appointment to 31 December 2017.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the interests of the Directors
and Chief Executive in the shares, underlying shares of equity
derivatives and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (all within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO") disclosed in accordance with the Listing
Rules were detailed below:

Interests in Shares

BEEERE (@)

ESNEEITENER

% &
B LB ED(E 5 KB K

=)
e
il

)2 AERR 1D - ARRERR D B (R~ M 2SR

EEMRAEELT

R 17 1 52

Approximate
percentage of
interest in the
Company (%)

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interests Number of securities held™ Ff{EZA 2 TR
EEfR ERME FrsEEgE® BAE D (%)
Mr. LU Run Ting (Chairman) Interest of Controlled Corporation 355,259,422 Shares (L) 42.62%
EERELXE(EE) RYEHEE S 355,259,422 B%(L)
Beneficial owner @ 4,700,000 Shares (L) 0.56%
ZzmA? 4,700,000/%(L)
Mr. HOU Ping Beneficial owner @ 2,700,000 Shares (L) 0.32%
& Fx4&E Zm AL 2,700,0000% (L)
Mr. LU Runyi Beneficial owner @ 4,921,000 Shares (L) 0.59%
EEakE 2 AW 4,921,0000%(L)
Mr. LU Xiaozhong Beneficial owner ® 1,501,000 Shares (L) 0.18%
E/NAREAE Zm AL 1,501,000/%(L)
Mr. WU Sigiang Beneficial owner © 1,931,000 Shares (L) 0.23%
REBEL ZmA© 1,931,0008%(L)
Mr. LING Wai Lim Beneficial owner 16,000 Shares (L) 0.00%
B BRTE Z@mAD 16,000/%(L)

(1

@)

3)

)

(5)

(6)

7)

The letter “L” denotes the Directors’ long position in the Shares or the relevant
associated corporation.

Mr. LU Run Ting (“Chairman LU")’s interests are consisted of: (i) 2,960,000
Shares to be issued subject to options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme; (ii) 740,000 Shares issued by options granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme exercised on 29 July 2015, and (iii) 1,000,000 Shares as
beneficial owner.

Mr. HOU Ping’s interests are consisted of: (i) 1,200,000 shares to be issued
subject to options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme; (ii) 300,000
shares issued by options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
exercised on 25 August 2015, and (iii) 1,200,000 shares awarded on 26 May
2017 under the Share Award Scheme.

Mr. LU Runyi’s interests are consisted of: (i) 1,600,000 shares to be issued
subject to options granted under the Pre-/IPO Share Option Scheme; (ii)
2,120,000 shares transferred from Goldpac International (Holding) Limited
(“GIHL") (being a controlling shareholder of the Company and wholly-owned by
Chairman LU) on 20 March 2015; (iii) 400,000 shares issued by options granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme exercised on 25 August 2015, and (iv)
801,000 shares awarded on 26 May 2017 under the Share Award Scheme.

Mr. LU Xiaozhong's interests are consisted of: (i) 1,000,000 shares to be issued
subject to options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, and (ii)
501,000 shares awarded on 26 May 2017 under the Share Award Scheme.

Mr. WU Sigiang’s interests are consisted of: (i) 1,000,000 shares to be issued
subject to options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme; (ii) 130,000
shares as beneficial owner, and (iii) 801,000 Shares awarded on 26 May 2017
under the Share Award Scheme.

Mr. LING Wai Lim holds 16,000 shares as beneficial owner.

(1)

2)

3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

LI KR EFRA R B R ERE X B 17 5 A7
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£1,000,0008% °
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
BEEESHRE @

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance, to which the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted during or at the year ended 31 December 2017.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance had been entered into between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling shareholders
during the year ended 31 December 2017.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, for the year ended
31 December 2017, no Director had declared interests in any entity
which competes, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of
the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for the
Directors and Senior Management in respect of certain liabilities
arising out of corporate activities. As required by Section 470(1) and
(2) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”), it is confirmed that
the permitted indemnity provision mentioned above is/was in force
for the benefit of the Directors/then Directors when the Directors’
Report prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance with
section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance; and has been in
force throughout the financial year ended 31 December 2017,
respectively. Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association,
subject to the provisions of the Companies Ordinance, every
Director or other officer or auditor may be indemnified out of the
assets of the Company against any liability, loss or expenditure
incurred by him in defending any proceedings, whether civil or
criminal, which relate to anything done or omitted to be done or
alleged to have been done or omitted to be done by him as an
officer or auditor of the Company and in which judgment is given in
his favour or in which he is acquitted, or incurred in connection with
any application in which relief is granted to him by the court from
liability in respect of any such act or omission.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Details of the share option scheme of the Company are set out in
the section headed “Incentive Schemes” above and Note 29 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements on the pages 195 to 203 of this
Annual Report.

Save as disclosed above, no equity-linked agreement will or may
result in the Company issuing Shares or that require the Company
to enter into any agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing Shares, were entered into by the Company during the year
or subsisted at the end of the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year 2017.

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of the Directors for the year 2017 are set out in
Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 169 to
174 of this Annual Report.

NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKINGS

Each of the controlling shareholders has confirmed to the Company
of his/its compliance with the non-compete undertakings provided
to the Company under the Deed of Non-Competition (as defined
in the Prospectus). The independent non-executive Directors
have reviewed the status of compliance and confirmed that all
the undertakings under the Deed of Non-Competition have been
complied with by the controlling shareholders.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group's emolument policies are based on the merit,
qualifications and competence of individual employees and are
reviewed by the remuneration committee periodically.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
remuneration committee and are decided by the Board, having
regard to the Group’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE @)

The Company has adopted two share option schemes and one
share award scheme to motivate and reward its Directors and
eligible employees. Details of these schemes are set out in the
paragraph headed “Incentive Schemes” above and Note 29 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements on the pages 195 to 203 of this
Annual Report.

None of the Directors waived any emoluments during the year
2017.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
IN SHARE CAPITAL

The register maintained by the Company pursuant to the SFO
recorded that, as at 31 December 2017, the following persons and
corporations had interests in the shares or underlying shares in the
Company:

AN R BN IE IR AT B & — E AR (D 2R
TE LB REBEESRAERES -
ERAZSENFBEERN EX [ EEE 1 —
BRARFRPEI1ISEHE203B 454 PR
RMIEE29 ©

R20175A - BEEERREAHE -

FTERREDR

BREARBDKREZRBEHRAMR 2 ERL
fit - 2017128318 » THALTFAFA
A ARR AR AR 2 s

Approximate
shareholding
Name Capacity/Nature of Interests Number of securities held™ percentage
2% MM E FEREHA BOBRE S
Mr. LU Run Ting Interest of Controlled Corporation®®? 355,259,422 Shares (L) 42.62%
ERELE RIEHLEEE OO 355,259,422 %(L)
Beneficial owner@® 4,700,000 Shares (L) 0.56%
X A0 4,700,0004%(L)
Ms. ZHANG Jian® Family 359,959,422 Shares (L) 43.18%
SR A £ O ENIS 359,959,422 K% (L)
Gemalto® Interest of Controlled Corporation 152,931,181 Shares (L) 18.35%
RIEHEE R 152,931,181A%(L)
Areo Holdings Limited Interest of Controlled Corporation 41,723,000 Shares (L) 5.01%
("Areo")® REHDEE R 41,723,0004%(L)
Notes: HaF -
(1) The letter “ L” denotes a person’s long position in the Shares or shares of the (1) [LIXXBFRIA LK1 20K & BIEEL B 22 Ak

relevant Group member.

2) The disclosed interest represents (i) the interest in the Company held by GIHL,
which is wholly-owned by Chairman LU, accordingly, Chairman LU is deemed
to be interested in GIHL's interest in the Company by virtue of the SFO; (ii) his
interests in 2,960,000 underlying Shares of shares options to be issued subject
to exercise of such options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
and 740,000 Shares issued by options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Options
Scheme exercised on 29 July 2015, and (iii) his interests in 1,000,000 shares as
beneficial owner.

3) Ms. ZHANG Jian, the spouse of Chairman LU, is deemed to be interested in
Chairman LU’s interest in the Company by virtue of the SFO.

4) The disclosed interest represents the interest in the Company held by Gemplus
International S.A. (“GISA”), which is wholly-owned by Gemalto, whose shares
are listed and traded on the NYSE Euronext Amsterdam and NYSE Euronext
Paris. Therefore, Gemalto is deemed to be interested in GISA’s interest in the
Company by virtue of the SFO.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

(5) Based on the Disclosure of Interests notices filed on 20 August 2015, the
disclosed interest represents the interest in the Company held by ORCHID ASIA
VI, LP. and ORCHID ASIA V CO-INVESTMENT, LIMITED. ORCHID ASIA VI, LP.
is indirectly wholly owned by Areo while ORCHID ASIA V CO-INVESTMENT,
LIMITED is directly wholly owned by Areo. Accordingly, Areo is deemed to be
interested in the interest in the Company held by ORCHID ASIA VI, LP. and
ORCHID ASIA V CO-INVESTMENT, LIMITED by virtue of the SFO. In addition, Ms.
LAM Lai Ming and Mr. LI Gabriel are deemed to be interested in the Company by
virtue of the SFO through Areo. To the best knowledge of the Company, each of
Ms. LAM Lai Ming and Mr. LI Gabriel is an independent third party.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Aggregate sales to the Group’s largest and five largest customers
accounted for approximately 10.8% (2016: 13%) and 38.9% (2016:
41.1%), respectively, of the Group’s total turnover from continuing
operations.

Aggregate purchases from the Group’s largest and five largest
suppliers accounted for approximately 28.8% (2016: 33.5%) and
50.7% (2016: approximately 54.8%), respectively, of the Group’s
total purchases from suppliers.

None of the Directors, their close associates or shareholders of
the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more
than 5% of the Shares in issue) had interests in the any suppliers or
customers of the Group.

BEEERE (@)
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ORCHID ASIA VI, LP. 1 Areo B # 2 B H © i1
ORCHID ASIA V CO-INVESTMENT, LIMITEDHiAreo
BEEZERG - UL - KREFZRBEED -
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE @)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following related party transactions entered into during the
year ended 31 December 2017 constituted continuing connected
transactions for the Group under the Listing Rules. The Company
confirms that the following disclosure with respect to the
continuing connected transactions has complied with the disclosure
requirement in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Gemalto

The Group had been purchasing certain microprocessors composed
of an electronic component embedding a card operating system,
also known as IC chips (the “Gemalto IC Chips”), from Gemalto
(a substantial shareholder of the Company and hence a connected
person of the Company). On 15 November 2013, a module supply
agreement was entered into among the Company, Goldpac
Datacard Solutions Company Limited, Goldpac Limited (the
“Goldpac Entities”) and Gemalto, pursuant to which, Gemalto
supplied to and the Goldpac Entities purchased from Gemalto or its
affiliates Gemalto IC chips for a term from 4 December 2013 until
31 December 2015. On 25 February 2016, the Goldpac Entities
entered into a mutual supply agreement for a term from 1 January
2016 until 31 December 2018 (the “Mutual Supply Agreement”)
with Gemalto, pursuant to which (i) the Goldpac Entities shall
supply to Gemalto with, among others, products such as banking
card modules, cardbody and personalisation machines, equipments,
spare parts and relevant consumables (the “Supply of Goldpac
Products”); and (ii) Gemalto shall supply to the Goldpac Entities with
Gemalto IC Chips (the “Purchase of Gemalto IC Chips”).

Pursuant to the Mutual Supply Agreement:

o the annual caps in respect of the Supply of Goldpac Products
for the year ended 31 December 2016 and the two years
ending 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2018 are
RMB12,000,000, RMB16,000,000 and RMB20,000,000,
respectively; and

o the annual caps in respect of the Purchase of Gemalto IC
Chips for the year ended 31 December 2016 and the two
years ending 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2018 are
RMB750,000,000, RMB750,000,000 and RMB750,000,000,
respectively.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

As each of the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits
ratio) (as defined under the Listing Rules) calculated by reference
to the annual caps is less than 5%, the Supply of the Goldpac
Products from the Goldpac Entities to Gemalto as contemplated
under the Mutual Supply Agreement is subject to reporting and
announcement requirements, but exempt from the independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (other than
the profits ratio) (as defined under the Listing Rules) calculated by
reference to the annual caps is/are more than 5% and more than
HKD 10,000,000, the Purchase of Gemalto IC Chips by Goldpac
Entities from Gemalto as contemplated under the Mutual Supply
Agreement is subject to reporting, announcement and Independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The Mutual Supply Agreement, the Purchase of
Gemalto IC Chips as contemplated under the Mutual Supply
Agreement and the annual caps contemplated thereunder were
approved by the independent Shareholders on 25 February 2016.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the actual transaction
amount in respect of the Supply of Goldpac Products and
the Purchase of Gemalto IC Chips amounted to nil and
RMB229,015,000, respectively.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (the “Auditor”), the auditor of
the Company, reviewed the Group's continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The Auditor has issued an unqualified letter
containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the Auditor’s letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
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The Auditor has issued a review report to the board and confirmed
that for the year 2017:

(1) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to
believe that the disclosed continuing connected transactions
have not been approved by the Board;

(2) for transactions involving the provision of goods or services
by the Group, nothing has come to their attention that causes
them to believe that the transactions were not, in all material
respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Company;

(3) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to
believe that the transactions were not entered into, in all
material respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions; and

(4) with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the
continuing connected transactions set out above, nothing
has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have
exceeded the maximum aggregate annual cap approved by the
extraordinary general meeting on 25 February 2016 in respect
of each of the disclosed continuing connected transactions.

ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the
continuing connected transactions arising from the Mutual Supply
Agreement with Gemalto in respect with Supply of Goldpac
Products and Purchase of Gemalto IC Chips during the year ended
31 December 2017 and confirmed that the transactions were:

i in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
ii. on normal commercial terms; and
iii. in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them

on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the Shareholders as a whole.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

SUFFICIENCY OF THE PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that has publicly available to the Company
and to the knowledge of the Directors, the Company had
maintained the prescribed minimum percentage of public float
permitted under the Listing Rules since the Listing until the date of
this Annual Report.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out
in the “Corporate Governance Report” in this Annual Report.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent to 31 December 2017, no material event has occurred.

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment
of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting on 17 May
2018.

On behalf of the Board

LU Run Ting
Chairman & Executive Director

Hong Kong, 16 March 2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
LREREE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of the Company is committed to achieving good
corporate governance standards.

The Board believes that good corporate governance standards are
essential in providing a framework for the Group to safeguard
the interests of shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability.

The Company has adopted the code provisions (“Code Provisions”)
as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

In the opinion of the Directors, throughout the year under review,
the Company has complied with all the Code Provisions as set out in
the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions. All Directors have
confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company, that they
have complied with the Model Code throughout the year 2017.

Specific enquiry was made with all the Directors and the Directors
confirmed that they had complied with the Model Code throughout
the year ended 31 December 2017.

The Company has also established written guidelines as stringent
as the Model Code for securities transactions of employees who are
likely to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive information
of the Company (the “Employees Written Guidelines”). No incident
of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by the
employees was noted by the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises nine members, consisting of
five executive Directors, one non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors. Below is the list of Directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. LU Run Ting (Chairman and Chairman of the Nomination Committee
and Member of the Remuneration Committee)

Mr. HOU Ping (Chief Executive Officer and Member of
the Nomination Committee)

Mr. LU Runyi (Senior Vice President)

Mr. LU Xiaozhong (Senior Vice President)

Mr. WU Sigiang (Chief Operating Officer)

Non-executive Director:

Mr. LING Wai Lim

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin (Chairman of the Audit Committee and
Member of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee)

Mr. LIU John Jianhua (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
Member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee)

Ms. YE Lu (Member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee)

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 32 to
42 of this Annual Report.

The relationships between the members of the Board are disclosed
under “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 32 to 42 of
this Annual Report.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held
by Mr. LU Run Ting and Mr. HOU Ping respectively. The Chairman
provides leadership and is responsible for the effective functioning
and leadership of the Board. The Chief Executive Officer focuses on
the Company’s business development and daily management and
operations generally.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board at all times
had complied with the requirements of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors representing one-third of the Board with one of whom
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all independent non-executive Directors are independent.

Non-executive Directors and Directors’ Re-election

Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
Directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election.

Each of the Directors is appointed for a term of three years and is
subject to retirement by rotation once every three years.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions
of the Board and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group's businesses, strategic decisions and
performance and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. The
Board takes decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board
for its efficient and effective functioning.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices
held by them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution
required from each Director to perform his responsibilities to the
Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, environmental and social responsibilities, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities
relating to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and co-
ordinating the daily operation and management of the Company are
delegated to the management.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors keep themselves abreast of responsibilities as Directors
of the Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company.

Every newly-appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on his or her first appointment to the Board
to ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and full awareness of director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, each Director has read
books/journals and attended relevant training to facilitate the
discharge of their responsibilities.

In addition, relevant reading materials including legal and regulatory
update have been provided to the Directors for their reference and
studying. Continuing briefing and professional development for
Directors will be arranged where necessary.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
All board committees of the Company are established with defined
written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the board
committees are posted on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website and are available to shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each board committee of the
Company are independent non-executive Directors and the list of
the chairman and members of each board committee is set out
under “Corporate Information” on page 02 to 04 of this Annual
Report.

Audit Committee

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in
reviewing the financial information and reporting process, internal
control procedures and risk management system, audit plan and
relationship with external auditors, and arrangements to enable
employees of the Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters of the Company.

The Board has also delegated the corporate governance duties to
the Audit Committee for performing the functions set out in the
Code Provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company’s annual results
and Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2017.

The Audit Committee held two meetings to review interim and
annual financial results and reports in respect of the year ended 31
December 2017 and significant issues on the financial reporting
and compliance procedures, internal control and risk management
systems, scope of work and appointment of external auditors,
connected transactions, arrangements for employees to raise
concerns about possible improprieties, the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management,
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and
Employees Written Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with
the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
The Audit Committee comprises three members, namely, Mr. MAK
Wing Sum Alvin (Chairman of Audit Committee), Mr. LIU John
Jianhua and Ms. YE Lu.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

The Audit Committee also met with the external Auditor twice
without the presence of the executive Directors.

REMUNERATION OF THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the remuneration of the
senior management is listed as below by band:

Band of remuneration

48 Bl
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AE

HKD3,000,000 to HKD3,500,000

Further details of the remuneration of Directors, Chief Executive
and Employees are set out in Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements on the pages 169 to 174 of this Annual Report.

Remuneration Committee

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration adjustment principle of all employees as a whole,
the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors, the
remuneration policy and structure for all Directors; and establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy
and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his associates will
participate in deciding his own remuneration.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Remuneration
Committee met for 2 times to review and make recommendation
to the Board on the remuneration adjustment principle of all
employees as a whole, the remuneration policy and structure of
the Company, and the remuneration packages of the Executive
Directors and other related matters. Currently the Remuneration
Committee comprises three members, namely, Mr. LIU John Jianhua
(Chairman of Remuneration Committee), Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin
and Mr. LU Run Ting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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Nomination Committee

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the board composition, developing and formulating relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of Directors,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of Directors, and assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors.

In assessing the board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects set out in the Board
Diversity Policy, including but not limited to gender, age, race,
language, cultural and educational background, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry and regional
experience. The Nomination Committee would review the
Board Diversity Policy at least annually and discuss and agree on
measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board, where
necessary, and recommend them to the Board for adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships,
the Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s gender,
age, character, qualifications, experience, independence and other
relevant criteria necessary to complement the corporate strategy
and achieve board diversity, where appropriate, before making
recommendation to the Board.

The Nomination Committee met once to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors and to consider the
qualifications of the retiring Directors standing for election at the
annual general meeting. The Nomination Committee considered
an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the Board is
maintained. The Nomination Committee comprises five members
currently, namely, Mr. LU Run Ting (Chairman of Nomination
Committee), Mr. HOU Ping, Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin, Mr. LIU John
Jianhua and Ms. YE Lu.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company is Ms. LI Yijin. Details of
the biography of the company secretary of the Company are set out
in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this
Annual Report. Ms. LI confirmed that she took no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training in the year ended 31 December
2017 as required by the Listing Rules.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND EERZE2REMNHERL#
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

Corporate
Information
EER

The attendance record of each Director at the Board and board &N EELEAQTNREE2017F12A31 ;g%
committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company held HIFZEERARITHEEZE - ZEREEL %?‘Cﬁﬂé
during the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out in the table FREAEHEFELIEMTRAR ¢ =at
below: E
Attendance/Number of Meetings g@
HERY, EHAY 2L
Annual =R
General =
Nomination Remuneration Audit Meeting 2
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee B RBF E %g
EEpg Ezg REZE® FMzES ENZES g SEM
Executive Directors % %
HTES 28R
Mr. LU Run Ting @ 4/4 il il N/A 1/1 £ ;;:f
EEE%EW gg%
Mr. HOU Ping @ 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 1/1 g m
ETRED =
Mr. LU Runyi 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 1/1 g =
ERREE AEH
Mr. LU Xiaozhong 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 1”n -t
BB ¢ En
Mr. WU Sigiang @ 22 N/A N/A N/A N/A 8=
RBBELD =
5 ol
Non-executive Directors é‘;ﬁ
FHTES 2om
Mr. LING Wai Lim @ 212 N/A N/A N/A N/A "
ERRTEY :
Mr. Christophe Jacques PAGEZY © 212 n N/A N/A i 5.8
Christophe Jacques PAGEZY 44 ©) 688
Mr. TING Tao | © 212 N/A il N/A 1/1 § "%’5
TE— KA -
Independent Non-executive Directors Em
BYFHITES 3 %
Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin 4/4 171 2/2 2/2 1/1 £ éﬁ
BXRESE se®
Mr. LIU John Jianhua 4/4 171 212 212 11 He
BlEEEfat &
Ms. YE Lu @ 212 N/A N/A il N/A 2
9 3Gl £
Mr. ZHU Lijun © 212 1/1 N/A 11 1/1 i1
PSR sk
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Notes:

(1) Mr. LU Run Ting was appointed as a member of the remuneration committee on
18 May 2017.

(2) Mr. HOU Ping was appointed as a member of the nomination committee on 18
May 2017.

(3) Mr. WU Sigiang was appointed as an executive director on 18 May 2017.

(4) Mr. LING Wai Lim was appointed as a non-executive director on 18 May 2017.

(5) Mr. Christophe Jacques PAGEZY retired as a non-executive director and ceased
to be a member of the nomination committee on 18 May 2017.

(6) Mr. TING Tao | resigned as a non-executive director and ceased to be a member
of the remuneration committee on 18 May 2017.

(7) Ms. YE Lu was appointed as an independent non-executive director and a
member of the audit committee and nomination committee on 18 May 2017.

(8) Mr. ZHU Lijun resigned as an independent non-executive director and ceased
to be a member of the audit committee and nomination committee on 18 May
2017.

Apart from regular board meetings, the Chairman also held
meetings with the non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) without the presence of Executive Directors
during the year 2017.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2017.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 109 to 117 of this
Annual Report.

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditor of the
Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the
year ended 31 December 2017 amounted to HKD1,743,000 and
HKD420,000 respectively.

An analysis of the remuneration paid to the external auditor of the
Company, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, in respect of audit
services and non-audit services for the year ended 31 December
2017 is set out below:

TEEBRE @)

ESRMBRERNVBE

EERREANBRBEARAEET2017F
12A3MH L2 FEMERERNBE -

ESVTABEMABAIEESARAFGE
REENZIERERNEHRIBRANEKN
TNEARERZ -

BAR 1R B8 S A BRI 4 B 7 SR E SR A Y
PR saf 70 AR 6 ¥R 2 B S AZ B $R 5 55 109
178 -

ES

¥ BB BN =

S FARBINEZBEAEBEE2017F
12 A318 1t 2 FERNZERS & IEZER
%2 B & 9 Bl & 1,743,000 70 7 B
420,0007T °

X FARBINERBEEHEERT 5t

B{TEBEE2017F12A31B L2 EERX
RS NI ERIE 2B DT ¢

Fees Paid/Payable
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for continually overseeing
the Group’s risk management and internal control system and
reviewing their effectiveness at least annually through Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee assists the Board in fullfiling its
oversight and corporate governance role in the Group's financial,
operational, compliance, risk management and internal controls and
the resourcing of the finance and internal audit functions.

Risk Management Structure

The Group has established an organizational structure with
defined level of responsibility and reporting procedures. The Board
oversees the overall management of Group’s risks, with assistant
from the Audit Committee on reviewing and monitoring key risks.
Management is responsible for designing and implementing the
risk management and internal control system. Management is
also committed to fostering a risk aware and control conscious
environment. Operating units are responsible for the identification
and management of risks in their operations and a comprehensive
approach is adopted for enterprise-wide risk. Responsibility for risk
management resides at all levels within the Group, from the Board
through the organisation to each manager and employee.

The Group’s risk management framework is guided by the Three
Lines of Defense model as shown below:

BOARD OF
DIRECTORS
E=g

By E R B A ER ER 4R

EXeRREAEARBHEEAEENR
REENMAPEERG  WEBEREZES
ELBFERITERN - ERREEHPES
CERTHEEIOCERERRBE  BEAXK
BmHH - EBE - a8 RREELAE
7 AREBBEIR R A RRERT L -

Bz EERE

AEEDRY —AARGAERE RREEF
MEMRERE ARREZS2REESEE
BoERERE THEZZESHHAAF
ExenfNEREANAR  BEEESR
BERBEEMAMEZERROR RERR -
HAOfeEEERRERNAIMEIZNEZ R
Xt - EBAPIBEERBBEEANRFEE
MERBAIMERE - SEMEREETIFH
ARRBEFEEEBULERB T AR AR
B o

AEENEREERBATEIRN =8
Prsx R 1ERESI

AUDIT

COMMITTEE

GROUP
MANAGEMENT
REEEE

1ST LINE OF DEFENSE
F—ERA

2ND LINE OF DEFENSE
FER A

OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT
AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(RISK OWNERSHIP)
HEEERAIEE
(RBEE)

RISK MANAGEMENT
FUNCTIONS
(RISK CONTROL)
B B B R B
(m Bz )
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Risk Management Framework

The Group has in place a risk management framework to effectively
identify, assess, mitigate and monitor key business, financial,
operational and compliance risks. The framework enables the
Group to adopt a proactive and systematic approach to identifying
and managing risks across the organisation to evaluate risk
severity and likelihood of occurrence. The framework also sets
out the procedures of risk management and clarifies the roles
and responsibilities of various departments in relation to risk
management.

3 'M\Aﬁﬂ:

[ B B I ¥ A

%IEITHAMEW%MﬁW%%~¥
il RMEMEREETERE EL  MBEE
B o E%JJ#&E%%I%G#—TI%W%D,\,.;L
B ITEERBI A E R R - DA R EE R

BREMMBLENKSE - AR - ZHDERE T
SENREREERE - EHEET%%BF‘?EELK@
BEETERNBED T

RISK MONITORING
AND REPORTING
R EIE R W E

RISK
IDENTIFICATION

CORPORATE STRATEGIC

OBJECTIVES
B E 5

ERREEERHE

ACTION AND
CONTROL ACTIVITIES

RISK
ASSESSMENT
LR RS

The Group has embedded its risk management systems into the
core operating practices of the business. On an ongoing basis, the
respective operating units of the Company review and access the
status of potential risks which may impact on their ability to achieve
their business objectives and/or those of the Group, determine and
implement treatment plans where risk mitigations are actionable.
This review process includes assessment as to whether the existing
internal controls continue to remain relevant, adequately address
potential risks, and/or should be supplemented.
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Appropriate policies and controls have been designed and
established to ensure that assets are safeguarded against improper
use or disposal, relevant rules and regulations are adhered to
and complied with, reliable financial and accounting records are
maintained in accordance to relevant accounting standards and
regulatory reporting requirements, and key risks that may impact
the Group’s performance are appropriately identified and managed.
The system and internal controls can only provide reasonable but
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss, as
they are designed to be managed, rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives.

A description of the Group’s main risk factors is shown on pages
45 to 50 of this Annual Report. The Group continuously works to
improve its risk management framework in order to keep pace with
the changing business environment.

Internal Controls

Internal Audit Department conducts independent reviews on the
Group’s risk management and internal control system. Internal
Control Department reports directly to the Audit Committee to
ensure identified internal control weaknesses are communicated
and ractified effectively.

Internal Audit Department adopts a risk-oriented audit approach.
The annual audit plan covers major activities and processes of the
Group's compliance, financial, procurement and operations. On
a regular basis, Internal Audit Department reports to the Audit
Committee the results of their activities during the preceding period
pertaining to the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls,
and follows up the progress of ractification for control weaknesses.

The Group has established and oversees a whistleblower policy and
a set of comprehensive procedures whereby employees, customers,
suppliers and other concerned parties can report any actual or
suspected occurrence of improper conduct involving the Company,
and for such matters to be investigated and dealt with efficiently in
an appropriate and transparent manner.
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The Company formulated the insider information policy and
regularly reminds the Directors and employees about due
compliance with all policies regarding the insider information. The
Company shall prepare or update appropriate guidelines or policies
to ensure the compliance with regulatory requirements.

The Board reviews annually the Group’s risk management and
internal control system. During the year, the Board conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control system of the Group, including the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function.
The Board and the Audit Committee considered that the key areas
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
effectively implemented.

In addition to the review of risk management and internal controls
undertaken within the Group, the external auditor also accessed
the adequancy and effectiveness of certain key risk management
and internal controls as part of their statutory audits. The external
auditor’'s recommendations also provide enhancements to the risk
management and internal controls.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeqguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue at
general meetings, including the election of individual Directors. All
resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each
general meeting.

Right to call a General Meeting

General meetings may be convened by the Board on requisition of
shareholder(s) of the Company representing at least 5% of the total
voting rights of all the shareholders having a right to vote at general
meetings or by such shareholder(s) who made the requisition (as
the case may be) pursuant to Sections 566 and 568 respectively
of the Companies Ordinance. The general nature of the business
to be dealt with at the meeting must be stated in the request.
Shareholders should follow the requirements and procedures as set
out in the Companies Ordinance for convening a general meeting.
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Right to Circulate Resolution at Annual
General Meeting

Pursuant to Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance,
shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights
of all shareholders; or at least 50 shareholders (as the case may be)
who have a right to vote at the relevant Annual General Meeting,
may request to circulate a resolution to be moved at an Annual
General Meeting. Shareholders should follow the requirements and
procedures as set out in the Companies Ordinance for circulating a
resolution for annual general meeting.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not
normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: Room 1301, 13th Floor, Bank of East Asia,
Harbour View Center, No. 56 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

(For the attention of the Company Secretary)
Fax: +852 2834 6759

Email: goldpac@goldpac.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by
law.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance and
strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going
dialogue with shareholders and in particular, through Annual
General Meetings and other general meetings. At the Annual
General Meeting, Directors (or their delegates as appropriate) are
available to meet shareholders and answer their enquiries.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year 2017, the Company has not made any changes to
its Articles of Association. An up to date version of the Company’s
Articles of Association is also available on the Company’s website
and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THE REPORT

Introduction

The Group reaffirms its commitment to sustainability with the
publication of its second Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG") Report 2017. This report is prepared in compliance with the
ESG Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange. The
purpose of the report is to present the performance of the Group
in respect of the relevant environmental and social aspects in 2017
and for better communication with stakeholders of the Group. The
Board acknowledges its responsibility to ensure integrity of the
ESG Report and to the best of its knowledge this report addresses
all material issues and fairly presents the ESG performance of the
Group and its impacts. The Board confirms that it has reviewed and
approved the report.

Reporting Period and Scope

This report supplements the annual report of the Group and
discloses performance and progress on ESG issues from 1 January
to 31 December 2017. The scope of this report covers the Group
and its major subsidiaries. The information stated in this report was
obtained from the Group’s various reports or records from daily
operations.

Feedback
The Group considers sustainability as imperative for its long-
term development. We would highly appreciate any comments on
improving the content and delivery of the information provided in
this report.

Contacts
Goldpac Group Limited

Address: Room 1301, 13th Floor,
Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre,
No.56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2838 6202

Fax: (852) 2834 6759
Email: goldpac@goldpac.com
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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ESG MANAGEMENT

To prevent systemic risk is the fundamental theme of the country’s
financial work. Ensuring transaction security and providing
sustainability edge, smart secure payment systems have been
playing a crucial factor in maintaining the stability and healthy
operation of the entire financial market. As a global leader in
offering total smart secure payment solutions, we act on our vision
“Make Transactions More Secure and Convenient” to deliver
embedded software and secure payment products for our customers
across the globe. By leveraging innovative Fintech, the Group
also provides personalized services, system platforms and other
total solutions for a broad range of customers including financial,
government, healthcare, transportation and retail sectors.

Assuring security of customers’ data being our prime objective, we
are the only one supplier to have passed the quality certification
set by big 6 credit card organizations in China. We strive to
explore and investigate our corporate operational process so that
it coheres into the Group’s sustainability development model. In
coping with the continuously growing demand for security and
convenience of payments, we have been launching “Integration
of Information Technology and Industrialization with intelligent
operation” initiative, dedicated to innovating and popularizing
smart transaction solutions for meeting the social demand.

The Group is committed to diffusing the environmental and social
orientation into its business operations, to achieve its sustainability
target. Through formulation and implementation of policies
regarding the environmental and social aspects and disseminating
the information through diverse communication channels, we
decide whether our ongoing policies are suitable, and make
amendments accordingly. In this year, employees at all levels fully
cooperated with the environmental and social management in
practice. Additionally, we keep deploying environmental and social
performance indicators’ collection and reporting from our enterprise
management department and collaboration between various
departments, e.g. human resource, administration and engineering.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

To pursue environmental protection, the Group follows all related
environmental laws, ordinances and emission standards, starting
from energy saving and waste management. As such, through
establishing a series of internal procedures and systems, our
employees can effectively handle the waste generated in the
working process. Besides enhancing productivity and operational
efficiency, we bear the greater responsibility of keeping our
environment clean.

Not only do we comply with related employment and safety
ordinances and pay considerable attention to employee welfare and
safety, but we also devote ourselves to strengthening management
procedures and training. It serves the purpose of offering sufficient
support in career development and ensure a fair, safe, healthy
and harmonious work environment, maintaining our top-notch
reputation in smart secure payment industry at the same time.

The Group proactively interacts with its stakeholders and evaluates
its own performance as always. We proceed with taking a step
forward to promote sustainability development, both inside
and outside of us, so as to bring business, environmental and
social footprints together. We will still place great importance
at stimulating business growth while optimizing measures in
accordance with sustainability development initiatives.

OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE

Our commitment to upholding the highest principles of business
ethics and integrity connects to what we do and we believe it is our
competitive advantage.

Information Security and Privacy

Security and privacy of customer information within the business
is of paramount importance since there is significant involvement
of personal data in the operations. Our confidential safety
management system is guided by the “Data Security Management
Procedure” and is widely recognized by our customers. The Group
has been striving for operational excellence, getting hold of both
ISO27001 Information Security Management System and ISO9001
Quality Management System certifications. Imposing stringent
security standards on our products and services, we are accredited
by six global credit card organizations.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BE HE8REARHRE @

The Group has established strict rules governing information
confidentiality. No employees are allowed to disseminate
information to unauthorized persons or outsiders without
authorization, and copying of information is strictly forbidden.
Through our training programmes and regular assessments,
our employees can handle confidential information properly.
“Confidentiality Agreement” and “Competition Restriction
Agreement” are signed in addition to the employment contract.
Regarding terms in contracts with our customers, we are dedicated
to providing excellent services that suit the needs of our clients.
Product and services quality and communication are highly rated by
our clients. Customers and professional institutions have conducted
strict safety scrutiny on a frequent basis, ensuring high standards of
security management that guarantee the reliability of our services.
During this year, we did not find any cases regarding our products
and services resulting from safety and health as well as privacy
issues.

We aim to uphold quality assurance, providing suitable
solutions to our clients. We implement a series of measures to
handle any products and services related complaints, following
recommendations from clients to improve internal management.
A set of client complaint management procedures is used for
addressing any cases. Complaints are documented for future
reference and followed up by a dedicated team.

Product Innovation

The Group has proactively engaged in technology exchange and
cooperation with the world’s top universities, globally leading
secure technology companies and chip manufacturers, focusing on
the future advancement of R&D of secure encryption technology
applications. At present, the Group has made progress in its
technical preparations for loT secure modules, mobile phone APP
white boxes, smart homes, machine interaction and other related
areas. In the application of electronic identity cards (elD), the Group
also possessed essential technologies and related products. In the
future, these technologies will be applied to the emerging areas of
artificial intelligence (Al) financial self-service kiosks and identity
documents for overseas markets, becoming the new driving forces
for the Group's growth.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

The Group has launched six major product categories in 24
innovative products spanning payment watches, payment jewelry,
payment mobile phone accessories and blue-tooth payment tools. In
2017, the Group launched payment wristband, payment bracelets
for VISA, mobile payment phone accessories for an internationally
recognized franchised coffee chain, GPS navigation payment
watches for a domestic leading joint-stock commercial bank during
the Shanghai Marathon, and joint development of payment jewelry
with a leading jewelry brand in the Shanghai Fashion Week. The
Group demonstrated that its core security encryption technology
has been applied to much broader and fashionable fields. The
products were well-recognized, implicating potential growth of the
Groups’ product portfolio.

Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of
business ethics in terms of information disclosure, integrity and
accountability. Our “Anti-Fraud Whistleblowing Management
System” strictly controls our business with all business partners,
including our customers, suppliers, creditors and debtors. We
encourage reporting of any suspected inappropriate behaviors and
protect the whistleblowers against any punishment for accurate
reports. The identities of whistleblowers are kept strictly confidential
unless necessary for investigation, addressing malicious intentions
or compliance with relevant laws and regulations. lllegal cash, gifts
and any forms of fraud or bribery are strictly prohibited.

Whistleblowers can report to the chairman of the Group’s audit
committee. Related information is forwarded to other audit
committee members for internal investigation, or if necessary other
departments to protect the best interests of the Group. Regular
evaluation of the system ensures compliance with all relevant laws
and regulations and its effectiveness. During this year, no issue
relating to bribery, blackmail, fraud, money laundering or any
misconduct which can pose substantial impact to the Group was
found.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BE HE8REARHRE @

Supply Chain Management

Partnerships with suppliers are regularly reviewed to ensure
excellent product quality and service provision to customers.
Continuous assessment of existing suppliers is conducted, for
evaluating procurement performance, and environmental and safety
management practices. The formulation of “Supplier Evaluation and
Control Procedures” ensures that all suppliers of the Group possess
adequate capacity and are able to maintain suitable quality.

The Group has established criteria for production raw materials,
production equipment and spare parts, IT equipment and products,
product transportation, and office equipment which are subject
to annual assessment for current suppliers and for new suppliers.
In addition to service quality, other factors related to financial
information, environmental and operational safety management are
also considered. After conducting supplier performance assessment,
we lay out evaluation reports and modifications needed on the
list of qualified suppliers to provide reference for screening our
suppliers.

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

Through diminution of usage of material and energy, optimization
of waste management, we take reduction of ecological impacts as
the main principle in implementing environmental sustainability.

The Group, as a major provider of financial payment cards and
personalisation services in China, is committed to making progress
towards a sustainable business to provide leading technology,
best-in-class products and exemplary services. The Group’s major
environmental impacts are emissions and energy consumption
required for production process of smart security payment products.
Through risk control and resources minimization in operational
practices, we will continue to monitor how the operation process
exerts impact on the wellbeing of people and environment. The
Group has strictly complied with all relevant environmental laws
and regulations in Mainland China and Hong Kong. During the
year of 2017, we were not aware of any practices significantly
influencing either environment or the Group, including exhaust gas
and greenhouse gas emissions, discharge on water and land, or
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste, etc.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Environmental management system is guided by 1SO14001
standard and certification to minimize pollution and fully utilize raw
materials and resources. Environmental factors inducing changes
in the environment are constantly identified and comprehensive
information is taken into consideration in all activities, products or
services of the Group. To mitigate pollution, we take reference from
the environmental factors for formulation of the environmental
management system. In addition, environmental management
representatives assigned by management are dedicated to
communicating with stakeholders, confirming environmental
management programmes and internal approval, and reporting to
the chief executive officer to ensure the environmental management
system is fully implemented.

Stakeholder
communication

Internal
approval

MEREHL

Programs
confirmation

At B HER

ilkaisleap sl

To maximize the value of stakeholders, the Group integrates
environmental awareness in our business continuously to
realize the vision of environmental friendliness, while achieving
our development goals simultaneously. We maintain close
communication with relevant stakeholders to understand their
opinions for improvement opportunities.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BE HE8REARHRE @

Resources Consumption

The Group has formulated and implemented the “Electricity Saving
Management and Regulations” system which sets out energy
saving management guidelines and measures for our production
plants and offices. Management responsibility is further divided
among different departments because of better understanding and
management of electricity use. Electricity supply and use, including
lighting, air-conditioning systems, ventilation and production line
facilities are regulated accordingly. Statistics are computed regularly
to analyze energy efficiency and necessary improvements are carried
out when there are any abnormal consumption situations.

Our production process does not involve massive use of water. Our
water consumption is mainly accounted for by staff’s daily working
and living. Also, we educate staff in this respect and provide
information on ways of water saving, along with reduction in water
consumption by water-saving appliances. In 2017, our Zhuhai plant
consumed municipal water supply for total of 118,508 tonnes, with
no other water consumption.
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Resource type Unit 2017
ERESR By

Electricity (Zhuhai) kWh 13,037,132
B (%8) TE -k

Liquefied petroleum gas kg 21,845
BIEABER NI

Municipal water tonnes 118,508
B 2K N

Fuel consumed from vehicles litres 24,263
BETM N
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Emissions Reduction

The Group understands the importance of environmental
protection. Throughout the operations, we strictly adhere to
applicable rules and regulations including but not limited to Law
on Prevention and Control of Water Pollution, the Law on the
Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution and other relevant
laws and regulations governing emissions discharge.

The Group’s Zhuhai plant has commissioned an independent
inspection agency for environmental testing and examining
the quality of noise and wastewater. All activities were found
to be meeting the relevant standards. “Water, Air and Noise
Pollution Control Procedures” controls the specific procedures to
treat pollution in our production plants and offices. The quality
management department is in frequent contact with accredited
inspection institutions for pollution monitoring work, by comparing
inspection results with relevant laws and regulations, and reports
to representative of environmental management. Frequency of
inspection increases proportionally to the level of equipment
utilization.

The departments are responsible for control and mitigation of
its own water, air and noise pollution while the engineering
department takes up the responsibility of regular maintenance and
management of the equipment. We have set operational procedures
and preventive regulations for all facilities and operating processes.
If there are cases breaching the allowed level, investigation by
the responsible department should follow guidelines from the
“Corrective and Preventive Measures Control Procedures” and
prepare further preventive measures.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BE HE8REARHRE @

Air ventilation systems are installed in printing workshop in Zhuhai
with capacities in tune with quantum of expected emission,
concentration, economic feasibility and relevant regulations. An
adsorption purification unit treats exhaust fumes from printing
workshop in Zhuhai before discharging into the atmosphere
from the exhaust fans. Small suspended particulates are filtered
out and organic compounds are adsorbed by activated carbon,
collecting pollutants before emitting into air. Regular checking
and replacement of the devices ensure the effectiveness of VOCs
removal. Current VOCs emissions are far below the standards of
local regulations, suggesting a good performance of the treatment
programme. For the production lines, we adopt advanced
production process of smart cards with reduced production error
and waste generation, while efficiency was raised effectively and
resources needed were reduced.

Based on our record of vehicles usage, we calculate and convert the
amount of air pollutants emissions from vehicle exhaust; SOx were
0.39 kg, NOx were 15.9 kg, and PM were 1.3 kg.
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Air pollutants emissions Unit 2017
BER5 R HE K By
Sulfur oxides (SOx) kg 0.39
maty NI
Nitrogen oxides (NOx) kg 15.9
RE/Ly NI
Particulate matter (PM) kg 1.3
BT AR

Major sources of the Group’s greenhouse gases emissions are
electricity used in factories and offices, fuel and liquified petroleum
gas used in vehicles. In 2017, the overall greenhouse gas emission
from Zhuhai plant was 7,002 tCO,e, of which Scope | emission was
130 tCO, e and Scope Il emission was 6,872 tCO_e.

96 Goldpac Group Limited  Annual Report 2017

AREBREREHRTIEREIMAMRAE
RET - EEORRREEBRER - 2017
F AEEKERENEERABERBE
B7,02—atiEgE  ERHE PR
EANBM_EtMEE  GE_HWEA
6,872 —_F(LIREE -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

h-h— N
RIR - #HERERHS #)
Scope of greenhouse gases emissions Unit 2017
BEREBHREE B
Scope | tCO e 130
SBE—HEHEN %m RE 8
Scope |l tCO e 6,872
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The Group has been treating domestic and industrial wastewater
according to applicable regulations, to mitigate the impacts to
the environment. New wastewater treatment facility was set up
to handle on-site wastewater in Zhuhai, which had just come into
operation in 2017. The wastewater treatment facility handles
domestic wastewater mainly from kitchens and toilets and a
small amount of industrial organic wastewater. The design of the
wastewater treatment facility complies with relevant environmental
laws and regulations, aiming to mitigate pollution and protect
ecosystems.

We treat wastewater from different sources by different treatment
paths, and only discharge in a regulated manner at the end of
the treatment. During the construction of the treatment facility,
environmental protection measures were imposed to reduce
impacts to the surroundings. These measures were designed to
minimize impacts to the society. For instance, noise and air impacts
were lowered by employing low sound emitting procedures and
mechanical ventilation systems respectively. Energy efficient
equipment was selected to prevent unnecessary energy use. Water
resources were monitored to minimize use.

Waste Reduction and Recycling

Waste reduction is another key focus for the Group as we are
committed to reducing pollution from the business and the
production processes of smart cards. To prevent and minimize
the impacts on the environment, the rules in the “Waste Disposal
Control Procedures” regulate the waste management. These
procedures are in compliance with requirements set out in the Law
on the Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid
Waste and the National Hazardous Waste Inventory to reduce solid
waste, making full use of recycling and control of waste generated.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BiE #HE2REARHE @

We compile a detailed list of waste annually and send it to
environmental management representative for approval and offer
a comprehensive view of the waste production and treatment.
Waste is separated into three categories, including recyclable waste,
hazardous waste and non-recyclable waste. Through collaboration
and job division among departments, we reduce overall
resources consumption. Each department is responsible for waste
categorization and collection, while the administration department
is responsible to contact respective waste management contractors
for treatment and final disposal. Recyclable waste is handed over
to recycling contractors, while hazardous waste is submitted to
external treatment companies or it is recycled by suppliers. External
waste generated from our suppliers during the procurement process
is managed by procurement department.

During this year, the hazardous waste produced was from financial
cards printing, which accounted for a small portion of the total
waste, mainly ink and developer solution. Non-hazardous waste is
divided into recyclables and non-recyclables. Most of the materials
were recycled and environmental impacts were significantly reduced
with our waste management systems.

BASFERY —DFABRDEE  JBRE
EEAKRIE 2HBERRYNELN
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BiE HE2REBRHEH

Waste type Unit 2017
BRYER B
Hazardous waste Ink litres 18
el EEEY) % 22 D
Developer solution tonnes 8
B EERER N
Non-hazardous waste Recyclable tonnes 256
—ARREEY) EINENS NI
Non-recyclable tonnes 14
AT [l A

In our production process, the main packaging materials are
composed of paper trays and cartons, adhesive tapes, and
cardboards. These materials are necessary to prevent the smart
security payment products from any damage throughout the logistic
process.

MEMEEBRERANEEDHIZERE
8 B(E - BENEARS  HARESRER
£ H

i

EXNEREEGHBRET  RXEEM

M EBEY -

Packaging type Unit 2017
BERMHER B
Paper tray Pieces 2,279,890
A 18
Paper carton Pieces 208,759
A &
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BE HE8REARHRE @

Green Product

We aim to innovate in the development of green products, realizing
the production and the use of smart card. During the year, we
continuously invested in environmentally-friendly cards with better
decomposable materials which reduce environmental impacts
during the product life cycle.

PEOPLE AND COMMUNITY

Employees are central to sustainable development. We treat our
people well to bring mutual advancement. Our operations also need
cooperation with the society; thus, we proactively contribute to the
community and endeavor for mutual prosperity.

Employment Practice

We adopt fair employment practices with no discrimination on
race, religion, gender, age, marital status and disabilities, etc. No
child labor is allowed under the employment rules of the Group.
Candidates are carefully interviewed and assessed on a set of
criteria in honesty and integrity, team working aptitude, dedication,
attitude, compliance with laws and regulations, social morality, etc.
throughout the recruitment process.

The Group employment policy is compliant with all relevant labor
laws and regulations at different locations of operations relating to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,
and other benefits and welfare. During the year of 2017, the Group
observed no violations of any applicable labor laws and regulations
including child labor and forced labor issues.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Development and Training

The Group sees employees as an important asset and emphasizes on
their performance and development. We encourage and motivate
skills and knowledge improvement within the Group so as to offer
better products and services to our customers. Comprehensive
internal and external training are provided with corresponding
allowances. Training programmes regarding skills enhancement and
risk reduction in the workplace with reference to the environment
and occupational health and safety management systems enable
employees to comply with the standards in daily operations.
Training programmes for new hires are offered to introduce the
organizational structure, policies, operational safety, and quality
management. Employees are evaluated at the end of the training to
ensure the effectiveness.

Employees are assessed on a regular basis in accordance with
work progress, quality and effectiveness, in order to set further
improvement plans and encourage better goal setting in the future.
Appraisals serve as a platform to assess employees’ performance,
providing a vital reference for determining salary, promotion and
training opportunities, as well as strengthening communication
between departments and employees. Performance is the main
consideration for internal promotion.

Occupational Health and Safety

The Group is committed to investing continuously in occupational
health and safety. Since 2011, the Group has obtained
OHSAS18001 occupational health and safety management
certification. The Group strictly adheres to relevant laws and
regulations regarding the provision of a safe working environment
and health assurance of employees. Our OHS policy, aiming to
manage risk and mitigate the operational impact on employees,
complies with all applicable legal and non-legal requirements.

BiE  HEREARARE@E)
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RIE -8 RERHRE#)

We empower employees to engage in ensuring occupational
health and safety and co-create a safe workplace. Employees have
appointed their own representatives as a communication conduit
with the management to reflect views on occupational health
and safety related matters. These employees’ representatives are
also responsible for risk identification, assessment and measures
formulation, implementation assistance. In addition, there is regular
internal monitoring by the quality management team to ensure
the effectiveness of the health and safety management system,
operational control, emergency preparation control and compliance
conditions. To promote occupational health and safety education,
the Group strictly implements employee safety training.

Community Investment

The Group is committed to growing together with the society.
We understand the importance of community engagement and
encourage our employees to participate in charity and donation
activities to strengthen our relationship with the domestic
community. During this year, the Group propels the charitable
organizations focusing on poverty alleviation through donation.

The Group also supports educational programmes through
partnerships with domestic universities, offering training
programmes and venues for educational purposes. Leveraging on
our experience and expertise, we offer support in a wide range
of areas in transportation, healthcare, retail, etc., fostering the
development of the community and giving back to our society.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RiE - -#HEBRE

ESG CONTENT INDEX

KPIs
BA R 4E MUIBE(KPI)

HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements
BERBERX S ESGHREESIER

ESGHRERR R

Section/Remarks

P

ﬁi(nﬁ

A. Environmental
ARE

Aspect A1

BmEA1

General disclosure

—RE

KPI'AT.1

KPI'A1.2

KPI A1.3

KPI'A1.4

KPI'A1.5

KPI'A1.6

Emissions

E295€7)

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges

into water and land, and generation of hazardous and

non-hazardous waste.

BRABERIORERBIN - MKk THEET - BER

BEERBVNEESFS

(@ HBE: Rk

(b) BEFHBEITABEAZENHEEERRAOEER

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

BEm R AR PR BUE -

Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity.

BERBASRE (ABTE)R(ER)BE

(A ESEN - SHERETE) -

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity

EABEREEYRE (VAN Jré)&(lzu aR)EE
(MABEEBM - BERETE

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity

FrEAERmEREMRE (UBHE) R(ER)ZE
(WNAGESEN - SESHmE) -

Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results
achieved

RS PR E IS e R TSR ©

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved.
HEEEEREZEEMN L  REELEENEE
RETEAR -

EREEEERERAA

Environmental
Management
Emissions Reduction
Waste Reduction and
Recycling

RIRER
BB
1B IRIBRE

Emissions Reduction

BABER
Emissions Reduction

A HER

Waste Reduction and
Recycling
TEER B RE

Waste Reduction and
Recycling
R

Emissions Reduction
BB
Waste Reduction and

Recycling
ERAE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RIE -HERES

A& (&)

KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
B8 52 AR S R (KP1) ERBERX 5 MESGHREESIER B HE
Aspect A2 Use of resources

[BmEA2 BERER

General disclosure

—RWE

KPI A2.1

KPI A2.2

KPI'A2.3

KPI'A2.4

KPI'A2.5

Aspect A3
fETEA3

General disclosure
—RR IR

KPI A3.1

Policies on efficient use of resources including energy,
water and other raw materials.

BRERER(BIEEIR - KEEMRME)BBOR -

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total
(kWh in '000s) and intensity

RERESNEER SREZERR(WE - Rioh) @S
(A TETERAE) LEE(MAGEEEN - FERE
tE

Water consumption in total and intensity
BREKENEE(MAGESEMN - 8BEREAHE

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results
achieved

L BE IR A st 8 M PTG AR ©

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved.

H SR BE FR KR _E AL (A R

AR SR T K e 5t B R PSR R -

Total packaging material used for finished products (in
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.

B mPrABEMEEE (UG E) R(nEh)
BEESEMGE -

The environment and natural resources

BERARER

Policies on minimizing the issuers’ significant impact on
the environment and natural resources.

BRBETABRERAABEREREAZENBEK

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken
to manage them.

i L%ﬁ%%@)ﬂﬂaiﬁ&%%é/ﬁéﬁiﬁﬁ“
ERMEEERATENTE -
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Resources Consumption

BREM
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Resources Consumption
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BRER
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Environmental
Management
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Green Product
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE g RER/ARE @)

KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
B8 R A BB AR (KPI) BERBME RS ESGHREKESIER B BE

B. Social

B.itE

Aspect B1 Working conditions

EEB1 TR

General disclosure

—RIEE

Aspect B2
fEmEB2

General disclosure

—RIEE

KPI B2.3

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

related to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and

promotion, working hours, rest periods, diversity and

other benefits and welfare.

EEHFWRERE - BERSEA - TERE - R TS5

g Znlt RERAREMFEREN

(@) BE: M

(b) BTHBITATEAZENEEEZRBROIRER -

Health and safety
REERZE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and

protecting employees from occupational hazards.

FRRHLZE2TERERREREEREBE LT

(@) BE: M

(b) BFHBETABEAXENHBEERLRDIEER

Description of occupational health and safety measures
adopted and how they are implemented and monitored.
P PTER AN B R R R L 2 - A RBRHITRER
FE e

Employment Practice

BIRHE

Occupational Health and
Safety

£

b
i

Occupational Health and
Safety
BERERELZE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE 2 REARAKRE @)

KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
B8 52 AR S R (KP1) ERBERX 5 MESGHREESIER BERE
Aspect B3 Development and training

EBEB3 B R AEF

General disclosure

—RE

KPI'B3.1

KPI'B3.2

Aspect B4
[EEB4

General disclosure

—RRIE

Aspect B5
[EEB5

General disclosure
—RRIEEE

KPI B5.2

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills
for discharging duties at work. Description of training

activities.

FRARHMEEETT TIEBE M M BB R

R DIEE)

Description of training activities provided and if relevant,
the percentage of employees trained by employee category
RUEFIREERAN (NS RERE
EoMXIMEEBDL -

The average training hours completed per employee by

employee category.

BRI REEEMNED  BREEBTAIIN TR

Labour standards

T AR

Information on:
(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child or forced labour.

BRI L E T ARSI TH -

(@) BE: K

(b) BTHEITARE

Supply chain management

HEREE

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of

the supply chain

BEEHMEENRENEERABRBUR -

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,
number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, how they are implemented and monitored.
AR AR ED - mERTHERIBENN
HERMHBE ARBBBOHNRITRERTE -
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BRE #H#E2REARAKRE @)

KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks §‘§§
B 2 4 SR R (KPI) EBBAXS MESGHERIIER B HE 554
i of
Aspect B6 Product responsibility oz Sy
fEEB6 EREME “““E
General disclosure Information on: Information Security o
(a) the policies; and and Privacy “gﬂ
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that g¥
have a significant impact on the issuer g§

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy matters relating to products and services provided

and methods of redress. é ?&g
— IR BRMRHERNBRBNEERERZS BS REEKE  BBZ2KEL §§$
EHAREK A ER
(a) BE: & 8
(b) BEFHBETABEAXENHBEERKLRADEER g ne
5 5
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and Product Innovation éi%‘;ﬂ
protecting intellectual property rights. %%zﬁﬂ
fi st B 4 T IR AR PR AN ERE B A 1B B - EmEl s
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy Information Security % .
policies, how they are implemented and monitored. and Privacy Vé %g
HIUEBEERRERLBBE - AREERTRER HELZ 2 REM 2 g*g
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE 2 REARAKRE @)

KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
B8 52 AR S R (KP1) ERBEX S TESGHREIESIER B HE
Aspect B7 Anti-Corruption

fEEB7 RES

General disclosure Information on: Anti-corruption

(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
— MR BREAPIERRES - $1R - MFFRORREM ¢ 33
(@ BE: &
(b) EFHBETABEARENHEBEERIROINER -

mp
5

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt Anti-corruption
practices brought against the issuer or its employees during
the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.
RERAANHETAIEERRLIEEENE THFARYT RER
BB MR AER -

R

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing Anti-corruption
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored.
P S R R WIET - A RABBERITRER A - RER

Aspect B8 Community investment

[EmBS HERE

General disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the Community Investment

needs of the communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.
—AR IR BNt B2 ERBREEMTHERFEENRRAEREE HRSHE
BE B F aS B

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution Community Investment
I EREES - o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Deloitte

To the Shareholders of Goldpac Group Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Goldpac
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 118 to 219, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

B % AR (@)

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

FRREEFTEE

FARETFHERBELMNERAE - BB
HARREMBRENBAR/EENE
B BEFHEERMBABRBEAMBR
REHABRBETREN  RMATEHE
LEREHEBNER -

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

FE W & SR BV R E B

We identified the estimated impairment of trade
receivables as a key audit matter due to the significant
balance of trade receivables to the consolidated
statement of financial position and the management
judgment required in identifying long-aged receivables
and determining the allowance for doubtful debt.
BB ERE R EREBNRBREAEFE A
RKREREEEMBRRPEERESR  UREERES
Z BRI RIRE B E R R R B EHE DL HI 6 -

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, management identified the long-aged items
based on aging analysis and determined allowance for
doubtful debt based on the aging of trade receivables,
credit portfolio of the debtors and default or significant
delay on payments. The carrying amounts of trade
receivables of the Group amounted to RMB417,729,000
as at 31 December 2017. Based on the management's
assessment, the allowance for doubtful debt was
RMB7,254,000 as at 31 December 2017.

WERE SRR AT IR ER - BIEERIZERE DTl
REROBKRER - WREERKRERNRRMNEEAD
EREAEREBRNBEEDRIMIORERKRER - &
E2017F12AN AL EREENERERNERAESAR
%417,729,0007T - RBEERENF 4 - BE20175F12
H318 k2 REREE#E%7,254,0007T °
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Our procedures in relation to evaluating the
appropriateness of the estimated impairment of trade
receivables included:

BMERKEFRERBNREEZFEETF RS

o Understanding the basis of the allowance for
doubtful debt adopted by the Group;
s BERESBNREREHER:

o Testing, on a sample basis, the accuracy of the
aging analysis of the trade receivables to relevant
documents;

o HABOBIGUARREE X 1 LATE R B U E K 2 BR . 0 AT Y
RN

o Testing the subsequent settlements, on a sample
basis, to the relevant documents;

o BB BREERMERNXT
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Our procedures in relation to evaluating the g
appropriateness of the estimated impairment of trade =R

receivables included (continued):
BRMEEREFREREBENREE2THREF 2T
(&) :

EERE

Chairman’s
Statement

o Evaluating the reasonableness of the s
management assessment on the identification §£§
of long-aged receivables and the recoverability §—§g’§
of trade receivables, and the sufficiency of the %;E
allowance for doubtful debt made by the Group gmﬁu
as at 31 December 2017; and =

e  FEEEEHHENREKE EBKE SR KLEFTEER g' E
ERAERENESEYE  UREEEEE2017F §§§
RANBZRERBOTRYE R g 3%

53
= W
[a]

o Evaluating the historical accuracy of the
allowance for doubt debt estimated by the
management to the actual settlement and the
actual loss incurred.

o  HERMDRIBERNMERE &M ERIBRUT
BEREATIELNRNETRERREN LR -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

B2 BRI E (@)

KEY AUDIT MATTER (continued)

FAREETEE @)

Estimated allowance for inventories

FEREMGE

We identified the estimated allowance for inventories
as a key audit matter due to the management’s
judgment required in identifying slow-moving and
obsolete inventories and determining the allowance for
inventories.

B FEREEABNAEREFFE  ANERE
HEHEAE R REFE TR EF B HIE -

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the management identifies slow-moving
inventories and obsolete inventories that are no longer
suitable for use in production or sales based on aging
analysis, and estimate the allowance for inventories
based on aging of inventories, technology changes
and current market demand. The carrying amounts of
inventories of the Group amounted to RMB207,609,000
as at 31 December 2017. Based on the management's
assessment, the allowance for inventories was
RMB50,950,000 as at 31 December 2017.

WREMBBMRMTAPTRE - EEERBERESTH
AIEHEHE TBEARNEERHENRETE - URE
FERE RMEMMERMSHEREATFTERE -
HE2017F12A3BLERENGFEREERARY
207,609,0007T - RIFEEEHFE - BE2017F12A8
MBI Z FERE A ARS50,950,0007T °
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Our procedures in relation to evaluating the
appropriateness of estimated allowance for inventories
included:

B FEREGOREE 2 EREFeE

o Understanding the basis of the allowance for
inventories adopted by the Group;
s HEREEBENTERGER:

o Testing, on a sample basis, the accuracy of the
aging analysis of inventories to the relevant
documents;

o EORBARR X AR B iRk DT H BRI |

o Evaluating the reasonableness of the management
assessment on the identification of slow-moving
and obsolete inventories and the sufficiency of
the allowance for inventories with reference to
aging of inventories, usage or sales record for
aged-inventories, current market conditions and
technology changes;

e HNEEEREERBEFERK REFENERAIHEE
FCEE - B BT 5RO A BT 3 P BB S AR B
FEZEBUEARFERENTRNL
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KEY AUDIT MATTER (continued) BARETEEH@

Estimated allowance for inventories (Continued)

FEREMGE ()
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Our procedures in relation to evaluating the
appropriateness of estimated allowance for inventories
included (continued):
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. For raw materials that no allowance have been

made, considering the subsequent usage of raw s
materials and tracing a selection of subsequent § =
usage of raw materials to the relevant documents; g—éé
and %;E
o HRARELBENRME - ZERERMESOHERER g“’ﬁ
B RS R e AV ER S - & -
% oo
o For finished goods that no allowance have been § %@
made, considering the subsequent selling prices of g gg
finished goods and comparing the unit costs of a §§m

selection of finished goods with their subsequent
selling prices.

o  HRRELBENNR ZRADOPERHEEER
KA L $ A B E AL AT ER IR SHE (B AE o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

B % EE S (|)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

114  Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group'’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

B % EE S (|)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

116

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Wu Ka Ming.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

16 March 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REREBEREMEZEBAR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 REZE2017F12A318 L2 FE

2016
Notes RMB’000
Bt et ARBTIT
Turnover =E 2] 5 1,400,842 1,393,713
Cost of sales SHER AR (983,661) (974,711)
Gross profit EF 417,181 419,002
Other income H A 6 78,274 63,256
Other losses or gains HEM B 7 (40,446) 30,939
Research and development costs R AR (109,053) (98,050)
Selling and distribution costs SHE KD A (105,719) (132,105)
Administrative expenses TR X (35,919) (32,981)
Share of losses of associates FE(RES =R R EE 17 (5,554) (5,495)
Profit before taxation Bt A 8 198,764 244,566
Taxation Ia 10 (34,287) (39,666)
Profit for the year FEFME 164,477 204,900
Other comprehensive (expense) income  FEHMEE(Fx) WA
for the year
Item that may be subsequently reclassified AJREf#% B2 7482
to profit or loss: Bz HE -
— exchange differences arising on — ME BN EBEERE
translation of foreign operations HERE (1,021) 1,553
Total comprehensive income for FEZHEWALLE
the year 163,456 206,453
Earnings per share BRAER 12
— Basic — HAK 20.0 cents &  24.6 cents 7
— Diluted — s 20.0 cents &  24.6 cents &

7118  Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2017



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRRER

At 31 December 2017 720178 12H31H

2016 ;;ﬁ
Notes RMB'000 §gd
BfaF AREET T =
58
3 g
Non-current assets EREEE ek
Property, plant and equipment YRR LR 13 335,921 167,579 g
Land use rights b {50 PR A 14 26,665 620 éﬂ
Goodwill R 15 1,375 1,375 gh:
Intangible assets BAE 16 8,966 11,256 =R
Interests in associates RELE N T 2R 17 27,475 33,052 -
Amount due from an associate JE UK B 2 N IR 21 819 869 Etq
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, FEEW% HE &RE £ é%
plant and equipment BENER 22 — 29,456 o
Deferred tax assets FEIETRIHE E 27 8,730 — s
Pledged bank deposit BEMBITIER 23 — 100,000 2. %
Fixed bank deposits RITEBER 23 100,000 110,000 2%
& & B
509,951 454,207 é f
Current assets RBEE ; @
Inventories ety 18 207,609 211,212 ¢ i%
Trade receivables FElRE = 19 417,729 339,970 § éﬁ
Other receivables and prepayments =SS S EENEN 20 45,197 32,647 £ m
Amount due from an associate NI B 21 9,422 8,409 o
Pledged bank deposits EHERRITIFR 23 111,309 39,707 g EE
Fixed bank deposits fﬁﬁ*ﬁﬂﬁx 23 830,234 687,988 g5k
Bank balances and cash TERMES 23 575,424 825,442 S
2,196,924 2,145,375 U ;?
Current liabilities REBAE 3
Trade and bills payables BN & ?A&F’Eﬁmﬂﬁ 24 550,703 515,101 .
Other payables H th F& A5 5118 25 157,981 137,410 58
Government grants IEgiaR 1 26 17,700 14,700 ééﬁ
Taxation PR 30,737 48,931 ge®
Esm
757,121 716,142 -
Net current assets REBEERE 1,439,803 1,429,233 gg
SR
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBERE 1,949,754 1,883,440 £

SHEHABZRERAT —T—tEFH 1719



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

e RN IR (|)

At 31 December 2017 #2017 12H31H

2016
Notes RMB’000
k=3 ARBEFIT
Non-current liability FEREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFHIEE F 27 19,871 10,111
Net assets EERE 1,929,883 1,873,329
Capital and reserves ERK#E
Share capital [N 28 1,192,362 1,191,941
Reserves B 737,521 681,388
Total equity TR 1,929,883 1,873,329

The consolidated financial statements on pages 118 to 219 were

EFE20N2018F3 16 HE XL EBE

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 16 118E £219B A MWK K%M - W i

March 2018 and are signed on its behalf by:

LU RUN TING
EEE
Chairman and Executive Director

EFRTERNTEF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE2017F 128318 IEZFE

Shares
held
under
Shares shares Share
Share award award  options Translation Other  Statutory  Retained
capital  reserves  scheme  reserves  reserve  reserve  reserves profits Total
kit
Rb%E  REHE Bk xAR
R i  HERf B EXRE HBEE LERE il ait
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
(Note i) (Note i)
(Wet) (W)
At 1 January 2016 01651 71H 1,190,419 — (74) 42,956 3,347 42,631 67,157 467,718 1814214
Other comprehensive income EEEM2EUA
for the year - - - - 1553 - — — 1553
Profit for the year FEAE - - - - - - — 204900 204,900
Total comprehensive income FEEAMA
for the year ] - - - = 1,553 = — 04900 206,453
Repurchase of shares B - - - - - - - (1,135) (1,135)
lssue of shares upon exercise of RAPEREMRTY
share options (note 26) Riahiz8) 1,52 = = (700) = = = = 822
Recognition of equity-settled share-based ~ MEREEHRATA
payments (note 29) (Hii29) = = — 1050 = = = — 1050
Forfeiture of share options ERELN = = = (172) = = = 1m =
Purchase of shares under shares RERG %D
award scheme EBERD - - (2503 = = = = — (2503
Transfers et - - - - - - 14516 (14516) -
Dividends recognised as ARREMt11)
distribution (note 11) - - - - - - —  (132489)  (132.489)
150 — 588 960 - — W16 (47968  (147.338)
At 31 December 2016 201612 A31H 1,191,941 — (25,112) 52,586 4,900 42,631 81,673 54,710 13873329
SHEERERERIA —T—tFFH 1271
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)
mERETESHR @

For the year ended 31 December 2017 REZE2017F12A318 L2 FE

Shares
held
under
Shares shares Share
Share award award  options Translation Other  Statutory  Retained
capital  reserves  scheme  reserves  reserve  reserve  reserves profits Total
ki
RO%E  #@d8  BhE xAE

R it HERf B EXRE AtBE TRk i) &it
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETL ARETR ARETn ARETRT ARETn ARETR ARETT ARETn ARETR
(Note i) (Note i)
(heh) (W)

Other comprehensive income EEEMREUA

for the year - - - - (1,021) - - - (1,021)
Profit for the year EBHE - - - - - - — 164471 164477
Total comprehensive income EE2EMA

for the year Eek | - - - - (1,021) - — 164477 163,456
lssue of shares upon exercise of L

share options (note 26) Riyhitzs) m - - (189) — = - - 3
Recognition of equity-settled share-based LI EREENRAZ

payments (note 29) (Hi29) - nn - 4,426 - - - - 17163
Forfeiture of share options BREXT - - - (19 = = = 1,991 -
Transfers gh - - - - - - 2,114 (20,714) -
Dividends recognised as ARRE(Wit11)

distribution (note 11) - - - - - - — (123475 (123475)
Shares vested under the shares RERA %D

award scheme Ri5E - (185 79% - = = o (987) (822)

an 4912 1,990 2,246 — - 20,714 (143,185  (106,902)

At 31 December 2017 20175128318 1,192,362 4912 (17,122) 54,832 3819 42,631 102,387 546,002 1,929,883
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Notes:

@)

(ii)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)

MEREZSEH R @)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE2017F 128318 IEZFE

Other reserves represent the aggregate of capitalisation of statutory reserves
into capital of a subsidiary of the Company, Goldpac Limited in 2011 and
contribution from a shareholder and share of other reserves of associates.

Under the relevant regulations in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”),
certain subsidiaries of the Company which established in the PRC are required
to make appropriation to the statutory reserves at 10% of their profit after tax
based on their statutory financial statements. The statutory reserves may only be
used, upon approval by the relevant authorities, to offset accumulated losses or
to increase the capital of those subsidiaries.

Kt

(i)

(1)

H A FEHER 2011 F LT MBRAEEHEFR
RA[RRE G2 HERERERAA])AE
FAEFIR — 5 RV B FIE B E R AR -

WRIBFFEARHKFE([FE ) FEZHE - ET
Vil AV NI el o N L b U
X BB AR FFEE)10% 5 HOETE @1 © 2%
ERFEEREFERREBRAPIMER - AREEZ
ZE L RIA BT F R R A A S IR A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 REZE2017F12A318 L2 FE

2016
RMB’'000
ARET T
Operating activities FEENEE)
Profit before taxation AT FE 198,764 244,566
Adjustments for: KT SIEAE -
Investment income from Hith e mEE
other financial assets JEWA (3.815) (3,245)
Interest income F B U A (23,374) (16,269)
Depreciation of property, plant and WE - BB REE
equipment e 44,475 39,704
Amortisation of intangible assets B A EEHE 2,290 2,290
Operating lease rentals in respect of T AREEEHE
land use rights He 624 135
Loss on disposal of property, plant and BEEBM*  BE R
equipment HiEEE 15 —
(Reversal of) impairment loss FEN R SORIE
recognised on trade receivables (B B (9,384) 10,393
Allowance for inventories FEEE 4,925 12,015
Equity-settled share-based payments VARE 22 45 H IR (0 ST 1 17,163 10,502
Share of losses of associates FELEE & A RIESE 5,554 5,495
Operating cash flows before movements in =& & & # 871 &)
working capital KERERE 237,237 305,586
(Increase) decrease in inventories FEGEM) D (1,322) 97,709
(Increase) decrease in trade receivables FEWE TR (0 ) s (68,375) 142,540
Increase in amount due from an associate & UgHit & A 7 Z03E 0 (963) (4,311)
Increase in other receivables and Hoqth e SR IE K
prepayments TE A SRIEIE AN (20,560) (13,058)
Increase (decrease) in trade and EAE RN ENEE
bills payables BANCRAD) 35,602 (52,216)
Increase (decrease) in other payables HipprftaEig iR d) 7,650 (10,252)
Decrease in government grants TR el AR = (4,020)
Cash generated from operations LEEBFISHRE 189,269 461,978
Taxation paid BERRIE (40,923) (39,473)
Net cash from operating activities KEEBFEIRE T 148,346 422,505
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
BERERER @A

For the year ended 31 December 2017 REHZE2017F12A318 L FE

2016 ;;%
RMB'O00  §s4
ARET T —
&
Investing activities & SE & ge
Redemption of other financial assets BEoEMemEE 765,600 1,324,000 . -
Withdrawals of fixed bank deposits REVIRATE BBFER 160,850 67,313 o
Withdrawals of pledged bank deposits IRENE IR ERTITIF 5K 73,789 22,430 e
Interest received R, 23,374 16,269 g
Investment income received from other EREMEREERE =2
financial assets WA 3,815 3,245 R
Receipt of government grants WA B B T 4 B 3,000 — @
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant ~ EEBW¥% - KEREBE Sig
and equipment WA 95 — 550
Placement of fixed bank deposits FRERTTEBTERR (912,084) (38,962) o
Purchase of other financial assets BEAMERMEE (765,600) (1,324,000) -
Placement of pledged bank deposits FHREERRITIFR (45,391) (40,073) 7w
Purchase of property, plant and BEYEREZER 28R
equipment and land use rights b E A (202,174) (4,695) £ 2E
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, BEEYERE KL XE sEm
plant and equipment EfES = (29,456) g W
=
Net cash used in investing activities KB EEFTAE S F5 (894,726) (3,929) 8 L&
Financing activities BhE EE o ?f[
Dividends paid B S (120,601) (134,706)  §5&
Increase in payable to employees FEfH B T RZRIEE A0 1,498 — z ™
Shares repurchase &1 Bl 88 — (1,135) .
Purchase of shares under shares award BRI EETEIEE g gﬁ
scheme ek = (25,038) gig
Proceeds from issue of shares upon AT EMm TR
exercise of share options OEEES 232 822 g
S 4
Net cash used in financing activities BB RS AT € F R (118,871) (160,057) S ‘é;ﬁ
fey
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash R4 RIBLSEEWCRL) % h
equivalents AN FRE (865,251) 258,519 -
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January  1A1BEE&MREZEY 1,513,430 1,251,358 g
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes  [EXREFH )5/ & (3,755) 3,553 z gg
3t
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 12 A31BH & RELFEY 644,424 1,513,430 %i;
& O g
Analysis of the balances of cash and ReERBEEEEYD -
cash equivalents R AT 5
Bank balances and cash RITFEREES 575,424 825,442 éﬂu
Fixed bank deposits which matured 318 A A I HR R R 17 7E HA A%
within three months EE=N 69,000 687,988 '§§
644,424 1,513,430
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M AR MY

For the year ended 31 December 2017 REZE2017F12A318 L2 FE

126

GENERAL AND BASIS OF PREPARATION
OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in
Hong Kong and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Company
acts as an investment holding company while the Group is
principally engaged in delivering embedded software and
secure payment products for global customers and leveraging
innovative Fintech to provide personalisation service, system
platform and other total solutions for customers in a wide
business range including finance, government, healthcare,
transportation and retails.

The address of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are set out in the corporate
information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in

Renminbi (“"RMB"), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

b A B

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & E2017F 128318 IEZFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to

HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised
Losses

Amendments to HKFRS 12 As part of the Annual

Improvements to
HKFRSs2014 - 2016 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact
on the Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

5T R ASHE ST B B M 4R
2 3% B 49 R A
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F12% 2 1857] 20164 A HA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

o)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 REZE2017F12A318 L2 FE
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Bt 75 ¥R R B &E (8

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("H KFRSS") (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time
in the current year. The amendments require an entity to
provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes. In addition, the
amendments also require disclosures on changes in financial
assets if cash flows from those financial assets were, or future
cash flows will be, included in cash flows from financing
activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to be
disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flows; (ii) changes
arising from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or other
businesses; (iii) the effect of changes in foreign exchange
rates; (iv) changes in fair values; and (v) other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of these items is provided in note 30. Consistent with the
transition provisions of the amendments, the Group has not
disclosed comparative information for the prior year. Apart
from the additional disclosure in note 30, the application
of these amendments has had no impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
GEMIEHRRMEEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 REHZE2017F12A318 L FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("H KFRSS") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers and
the related Amendments!
HKFRS 16 Leases?
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts*

HK(IFRIC) - Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and

Advance Consideration!
HK(IFRIC) - Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based
Payment Transactions'
Applying HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments with
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts’

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets

and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture3
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint Ventures?
As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014 - 2016 Cycle!

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property!

Amendments to HKFRSs ~ Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2015 - 2017 Cycle?
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 3% R MY R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 REZE2017F12A318 L2 FE
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

1

2

3

4

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs
and Interpretations will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities,
general hedge accounting and impairment requirements for
financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group

are:

all recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and
that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms
that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI").
All other financial assets are measured at their fair value
at subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e HRERNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 REHZE2017F12A318 L FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("H KFRSS") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

o in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The
expected credit loss model requires an entity to account
for expected credit losses and changes in those expected
credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is
no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 December 2017, the directors
of the Company anticipates the following potential impact on
initial application of HKFRS:

Classification and measurement

Debt instruments classified as loan receivables carried at
amortised cost as disclosed in note 35: these are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding. Accordingly, these financial assets
will continue to be subsequently measured at amortised cost
upon the application of HKFRS 9.

All other financial assets and financial liabilities will continue
to be measured on the same basis as are currently measured
under HKFRS 9.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("H KFRSS") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Impairment

In general, the director of the Company anticipate that the
application of the expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9 may
result in early provision of credit losses which are not yet
incurred in relation to Group's financial assets measured at
amortised cost and other items that subject to the impairment
provision upon application of HKFRS 9 by the Group.

Based on the assessment by the director of the Company,
if the expected credit loss model were to be applied by
the Group, the accumulated amount of impairment loss
to be recognised by Group as at 1 January 2018 would be
increased as compared to the accumulated amount recognised
under HKAS 39 mainly attributable to expected credit losses
provision on trade receivables and amount due from an
associate. Such further impairment recognised under expected
loss model would reduce the opening retained profits and
increase deferred tax assets as at January 2018.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising
from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the
current revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
Interpretations when it becomes effective.
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REE]EBUBR

5] kA4S
ZE B BV BR 4 ()

I FRE

)
i
g
¥

=
o
i

mEmMs  AAFREEHEFIRAETE
HHREENFIRNIEREEHER
AAEEERHABREZEEBER
R - ZFEERBRELN AEH
AT ENASEESBEENRAK
A 2 7 B 765 e o 2 R 55 O 55 T B HERRURK
EREHEMEAR -

BRIEBEARNBEEFNTMG  AAEERE
WIEHEEBSEERERN - 12201841
R1BMEAFREEBIERABE S
ERIE 3R ATFER K RETR(E R KR
b s EEm e ZIERFESANE
2 W SRIE & — @& A &) /) UG
HMEENEBREERBRBRE - 5Lk
FIMEREREREHEZE2018F1H
B R )R B8 R BDR D A IR IE R I8 B
EEIE AN o

ERMKREER 1555 H
BEEEHZWA

TRV BHREERF 15K EMALZE
YT HAE-NEEEE - IARERRK
BEFPAENKA - EEEV KRS
R E 155 AR - AR
MU ATERIE S| B RE RS ERE
185 - BB ERIE115R[ 2
LER I REENRE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e HRERNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 REHZE2017F12A318 L FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("H KFRSS") (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (continued)

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,
the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

. Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued clarification to HKFRS 15 in
relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations as well as licensing
application guidance.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("H KFRSS") (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in future may result in more disclosure, however,
the directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 will have a material impact on the
timing and amounts of revenue recognised in the respective
reporting periods.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis
of whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer.
Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are
removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model
where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have
to be recognised for all leases by lessees except for short-term
leases and leases of low value assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e HRERNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 REHZE2017F12A318 L FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("H KFRSS") (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease
liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the
lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as
well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For
the classification of cash flows, the Group currently presents
operating lease payments as operating cash flows. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease
liability will be allocated into a principal and an interest portion
which will be presented as financing cash flow by the Group.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised assets for
prepaid lessee payment for leasehold lands where the Group
is a lease. The application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential
changes in classification of these assets depending on whether
the Group presents right-of-use assets separately or within the
same line item at which the corresponding underlying assets
would be presented if they are owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosure are required by HKFRS 16.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("H KFRSS") (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group as lessee has non-
cancellable operating lease commitment of approximately
RMB7,047,000 as disclosed in note 31. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet the
definition of a lease. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the Group
will recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability
in respect of all these leases unless they qualify for low value
or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits paid of HK$1,559,000 and refundable rental deposits
received of HK$346,000 as rights and obligations under leases
to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the definition of lease
payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments
relating to the right to use the underlying assets, accordingly,
the carrying amounts of such deposits may be adjusted
to amortised cost and such adjustments are considered as
additional lease payments. Adjustments to refundable rental
deposits paid would be included in the carrying amount of
right-of-use assets. Adjustments to refundable rental deposits
received would be considered as advance lease payments.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements may result
in changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as
indicated above.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e HRERNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 REHZE2017F12A318 L FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("H KFRSS") (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and
Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions

The amendments clarify classification and measurement of
cash-settled share-based payment under certain specific
circumstances and share-based payments in which the Group
is required by local tax law or regulation to withhold certain
number of equity instruments for settlement of the employee’s
tax obligation.

Where tax law or regulation requires an entity to withhold a
specified number of equity instruments equal to the monetary
value of the employee’s tax obligation to meet the employee’s
tax liability which is then remitted to the tax authority, that is,
the share-based payment arrangement has a ‘net settlement
feature’, such an arrangement should be classified as equity-
settled in its entirety, provided that the share-based payment
would have been classified as equity-settled had it not
included the net settlement feature.

The director of the Company anticipate that the application
of withholding tax requirements on share-based payment may
result in withholding shares under shares award scheme for
the purpose of employee’s tax liabilities classified as equity-
settled in its entirety.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
("Companies Ordinance”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair-value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 REHZE2017F12A318 L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses

and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 REHZE2017F12A318 L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except
that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed as at acquisition date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business (see the accounting policy above) less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGUs") (or
groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
when there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the
CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit (or group of CGUs). Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Goodwill (continued)

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of
profit or loss on disposal (or any of the CGU with group of
CGUs in which the Group monitors goodwill).

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an
associate is described below.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associate. Changes in net assets of the associates other
than profit or loss and other comprehensive income are not
accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest
in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Interests in associates (Continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment,
is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in
which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group’'s investment in an associate. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e HRERNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 REHZE2017F12A318 L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable the future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria
have been met for each of the Group’s activities as described
below:

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when there
has been a transfer of risks and rewards to the customer,
no further work or processing is required by the Group,
the quantity and quality of the goods has been determined
with reasonable accuracy and standard, the price is fixed or
determinable, and collectability is reasonable assured. This is
generally when title passes and the goods have been delivered
to the designated locations for the sales of magnetic strip
cards, smart cards and the related personalisation services.
Revenue from the sales of on-site card issuance equipment
and the related revenue from the provision of on-site card
issuance system solutions are recognised when the equipment
are delivered and the services are provided at the designated
locations and after inspection of the equipment.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments in subsidiaries is recognised
when the owners’ rights to receive payment have been
established (provided that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of revenue
can be measured reliably).

Rental income from operating lease is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on straight-line basis over the term of the relevant leases.
Lease incentives provided to the lessees are amortised on a
straight-line basis over the respective term of the lease.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 REZE2017F12A318 L2 FE

146

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Such construction in progress
are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property, plant and equipment commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight line method, at
the following rates per annum:

2% — 5%
20% — 33'/3%
10% — 20%
10%

Buildings

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Motor vehicles

Plant and machinery

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e HRERNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 REHZE2017F12A318 L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Research and development costs

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development (or from the development phase of an internal
project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the following have
been demonstrated:

o the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

o the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or
sell it;

o the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

o how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

o the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell
the intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable
to the intangible asset during its development.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 REZE2017F12A318 L2 FE

148

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on
a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis.

Impairment losses on tangible and
intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e HRERNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 REHZE2017F12A318 L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and
intangible assets (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
(if applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in unit. The
carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest
of its fair value less cost of disposal (if measurable), its value in
use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is
allocated pro rata to other assets of the unit. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a CGU) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a CGU) in prior periods. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 REZE2017F12A318 L2 FE

150

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grant will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants
whose primary condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-currents are recognised as
government grants in the consolidated statement of financial
position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and
rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable.

Warranties

Provisions for the expected cost of warranty obligations under
local sale of goods legislation are recognised at the date of
sale of the relevant products, at the directors’ best estimate of
the expenditure required to settle the Group’s obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the ended of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value
of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of
money is material).

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e HRERNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 REHZE2017F12A318 L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time
of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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152

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method (Continued)

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade and other receivables, amount
due from an associate, pledged bank deposits, fixed bank
deposits and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment loss.

Impairment of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of the reporting period. Loans and
receivables are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the loans and receivables have
been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e HRERNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 REHZE2017F12A318 L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of loans and receivables (Continued)

For certain categories of loans and receivables, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period and observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

The amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the loans and receivables are reduced
by the impairment loss directly with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit
or loss. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified either as financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the group entity are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
in recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to
the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e HRERNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 REHZE2017F12A318 L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade, bills and other payables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in
profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation” as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
periods and it further excludes items that are not taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interests in associates, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2017

3.

FESTER@

BIE ()

BREMBRGAMBRRMINEER
BERREEREBAEERRSAED
BEREZHNEREZRER - —
REeEMBENERNEREZRER
BERERIBAE - —REAAE AN
ERMUZRERRTCHEEE - R
15 SRAR 7] 62 6 & SR B AT A8 LA 3 85
ZEAHRERFEZERRR - WER
HERDANERER BRI
ERRAGMNBREANNBENEERE
BEMEL  ATSERBEREERA

& o

HEMBARMBALERARERED
EARNEFEEERRS/ELHR AR
B BEAREAZEHZEREER
MR BZEREEZRET AR
A R R R RSN - B EARE &R
BEHBANERNEREZEMELN
RERIBEE BeRARERERE
SR 8RB E R S E S E A
Ma o BZEFERUEEZRBHSER
R R B 5 THERR o

RBEESHREBHRETEHAEENK
E{E - WHETBAIER EHERTA
BRI E 2B ELEHRREE
B MBI AREE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 REHZE2017F12A318 L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax
liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the
end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities. Current and deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 REZE2017F12A318 L2 FE

158

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the functional currency of the
Company and the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
RMB) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each
reporting period, and their income and expenses are translated
at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case,
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (the
translation reserve).

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments including the cost of acquiring land
held under operating leases are recognised as an expense
on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant leases.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into
an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental
expense over the lease term on a straight line basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 REHZE2017F12A318 L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest
which includes both leasehold land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element separately
based on the assessment as to whether substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element
have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that
both elements are operating leases in which case the entire
property is accounted as an operating lease. Specifically,
the entire consideration (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the leasehold land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and building
element at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for
as an operating lease is presented as “land use right” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised
over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans,
government-managed retirement benefit scheme and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF"”) are recognised as
an expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-
market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to the share options reserve.
For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant,
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share capital. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 REHZE2017F12A318 L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Share-based payment arrangements
(Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (Continued)

Share award scheme

For share award schemes, the fair value of services received,
determined by reference to the fair value of awarded shares
granted at the grant date, is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in
shares award reserve. The cost of acquisition of the Company’s
share held for the share award scheme is recorded as treasury
shares (shares held for share award scheme). At the time
when the awarded shares are vested, the amount previously
recognised in shares award reserve and the amount of the
relevant treasury shares will be transferred to accumulated
profits.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of awarded shares that are expected
to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates
during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss,
with a corresponding adjustment to the shares award reserve.

Tax laws or regulations may oblige an entity to withhold an
amount for an employee’s tax obligation associated with a
share-based payment and transfer that amount, normally
in cash, to the tax authority on the employee’s behalf. To
fulfil this obligation, the terms of the share-based payment
arrangement may permit or require the entity to withhold the
number of equity instruments equal to the monetary value
of the employee’s tax obligation from the total number of
equity instruments that otherwise would have been issued to
the employee upon exercise (or vesting) of the share-based
payment (ie the share-based payment arrangement has a ‘net
settlement feature’).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Share-based payment arrangements
(Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (Continued)

Share award scheme (Continued)

The Group accounts for the withholding of shares to fund
the payment to the tax authority in respect of the employee’s
tax obligation associated with the share-based payment
as repurchase of vested equity instruments, therefore, the
payment made shall be accounted for as a deduction from
equity for the shares withheld, except to the extent that the
payment exceeds the fair value at the net settlement date of
the equity instruments withheld.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

The directors of the Company review the aging analysis of
trade receivables at the end of each reporting period and
identify the long-aged receivables that are no longer probably
to be recovered in the future. The Group considers the aging
of trade receivables, credit portfolio of the debtors, default or
significant delay on payments and makes necessary allowance
for doubtful debt where appropriate. Where the future cash
flows are less than expected, or being revised downward due
to changes in facts and circumstances, a further impairment
loss may arise.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 REHZE2017F12A318 L FE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimated impairment of trade receivables
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amounts of trade
receivables were RMB417,729,000 (net of allowance for
doubtful debt of approximately RMB7,254,000) (2016:
carrying amounts of RMB339,970,000 net of allowance for
doubtful debt of approximately RMB17,431,000).

Estimated allowance for inventories

The Group carries out inventory review at the end of each
reporting period and provides allowance for inventories.

The directors of the Company reviews the inventory aging
analysis at the end of each reporting period and identifies the
inventories that are no longer suitable for use in production or
sales. The directors of the Company estimate the allowance for
inventories based on aging of inventories, technology changes
and current market demand. Where the future cash flows
are less than expected, or being revised downward due to
changes in facts and circumstances, a further impairment loss
may arise. The carrying amounts of inventories of the Group
amounted to RMB207,609,000 (2016: RMB211,212,000)
and allowance for inventories was RMB50,950,000 as at year
ended 31 December 2017 (2016: RMB46,025,000).
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TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information has been identified on the basis of
internal management reports which are reviewed by the
Chairman of the Company, being the chief operating decision
maker, in order to allocate resources to the operating and
reportable segments and to assess their performance.

The Group's operating and reportable segments under HKFRS
8 are as follows:

— Embedded software and secure
and secure payment products for smart secure
payment products payment
Platform and service — Provision of personalisation service,
system platforms and other
total solutions for customers in
a wide business range including
financial, government, healthcare,
transportation and retails by
leveraging innovative Fintech

Embedded software

Each operating and reportable segment derives its turnover
from the sales of products or provision of services. They are
managed separately because each product requires different
production and marketing strategies. For segment reporting,
these individual operating segments have been aggregated
into a single reportable segment due to similar nature of the
products and services.

Turnover represents the fair value of the consideration
received or receivables for goods sold or services rendered to

outside customers during the year.

Segments results represent the gross profit earned by each
segment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

(Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results

by reportable segment:

e HRERNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 REHZE2017F12A318 L FE

Sales to external parties of

— embedded software and

RESLIPIRN S Y
2 SHE
— BRATEAFA

EEERDHBER @)

AT BASEZA HREDFE D E

FERBNEENDNT
Turnover Results
B E

2016 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTIT

secure payment products ZETNEM 1,149,968 1,164,688 312,315 321,454
— platform and service — F & MR 250,874 229,025 104,866 97,548
1,400,842 1,393,713 417,181 419,002
Research and i N
development costs (109,053) (98,050)
Other operating expenses HiEZEEH (141,638) (165,086)
Other income, expenses, HaA - &84 -
gains or losses W sk Eia 60,454 33,349
Interest income FIEUWA 23,374 16,269
Operating profit (Note) KR (B aE) 250,318 205,484
Investment income from HEMemEEL
other financial assets BEWA 3,815 3,245
Exchange (loss) gain b 5, (1825 ) Wz (49,815) 41,332
Share of losses of associates — FE{5E#: <A 5] &5 18 (5,554) (5,495)
Profit before taxation R AE 198,764 244,566

Note: To better describe the Group’s current and future operating results
and understanding of the Group’s profitability by the users of financial

statements, “operating profit” is disclosed from current year.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.

The management of the Company makes decisions according
to the operating results of each segment. No information of
segment assets and liabilities is available for the assessment
of performance of different business activities. Therefore, no

Miat © BEAFHRBAEE T R EEE
AE - ERERRAE A B A IERR L A] A 2 7
I ARFRREITIN T EEF) BRI

BREE D B2 GRS B R 37
MARREZ @R —2 -

ARAEEEBREBEZ DAL EREALF
HARE - BESHEERABERT
RAFEIREBHESHHRR
It WEEFSHEERABEER -

information about segment assets and liabilities are presented.

SHEHABZERERAT —B—tFFH 165

Corporate
Information
EER

Review
Since IPO

EHEFERE

2017 £FRER

2017 Major Events

EERE

Chairman’s
Statement

and Analysis
BEBH AR

Management
EREERE

BER

Directors and Senior | Management Discussion

Report of
Directors
EEERE

Report
DEEREE

Corporate Governance

CHERER

Environmental,
Social and Governance

BE

BMBH®E

»
3]
=
9]
=
9]
2
©
o
%]
=
v
c
]
=
i



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 3% R MY R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 REZE2017F12A318 L2 FE

166

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

(Continued)

Other information

Turnover from external customers attributed to the Group by
location of the operations of the customers is presented as
follows:

EEENRDTHBER @)

Hft &

AEBRANBECPNERBEREP
MG EREEI D250

2016
RMB’000
ARBFIT
Turnover -
— Mainland China — A 1,312,173 1,290,826
— Overseas and the special administrative ~ — J@9N R BB RIFTHE
regions of Hong Kong(“Hong Kong*) (ITEB AR R
and Macau (“Macau”) 1TE R ([RPT ) 88,669 102,887
1,400,842 1,393,713

Information about the Group’s non-current assets except for
financial instruments and deferred tax assets by location of
assets is presented as below:

AEBKReMITARBEERIBEEEN
INZFBIERBEERMEME D 2
TR -

2016
RMB'000
ARETT

Hong Kong BB
Mainland China P
Philippines JFEE

179,342 11,946
221,060 230,692
— 700

400,402 243,338

Information about major customers

For the year ended 31 December 2017, there was one
customer with turnover of RMB151,473,000 in aggregate
(2016: one customer with turnover of RMB181,739,000) from
the segments of both embedded software and secure payment
products and platform and services which accounted for more
than 10% of the Group's total turnover.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR @

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & E2017F 128318 IEZFE

OTHER INCOME 6. HW A

Corporate
Information
EER

2016 =
RMB'000 2
ARBTRE  gind
T
Government grants BUR 52 B 23,304 U9, 558 %ﬁ
Interest income GIEEVION 23,374 16,269  g¥
Investment income from other Hit R &EE =R
financial assets ZIZREWA 3,815 3,245 =
Value-added tax refund 18 (EF R T 24,905 24,081 tEaq
Others Hfth 2,876 1302 S5E
78,274 63,256 5
o
gé@
OTHER LOSSES OR GAINS 7. HttERS K= cEa
£ 'D%E
& © B
2016 g m
RMB'000  —
ARBTTT g
3 Zin
£ g%
g o
Impairment loss reversed (recognised) on U E R E *éé’m
trade receivables o () 9,384 (10,393) °
Loss on disposal of property, plant and Hj%%%_ BB & Egg
equipment RiEEE (15) = gl
Exchange (loss) gain BE 3, (B K)oz (49,815) 41,332 i
(40,446) 30,939 5 &
S2h
T =k
s 4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 3% R MY R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 REZE2017F12A318 L2 FE

8.

168

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

8. FiAIAE

2016
RMB’000
ARETTT
Profit before taxation has been arrived HRIFEE 0Bk -
at after charging:
Directors’ emoluments (note 9) BEMe(Mi7E9) 20,672 17,470
Other staff costs HEmiEEMS 167,468 164,275
Other staff's equity-settled Hibg B AR EE
share-based payments A% 1D 2 A~ 11,329 7,866
Other staff’s retirement benefits H e BRIKET
scheme contributions FEE TN 5,903 5,044
205,372 194,655
Allowance for inventories ST ASHE R AR
included in cost of sales FEREE 4,925 12,015
Amortisation of intangible assets I 2,290 2,290
Auditor’s remuneration ZE BB & 1,508 1,528
Depreciation of property, plant and Y BB NREITE
equipment 44,475 39,704
Operating lease rentals in respect of KEHERS
— land use rights — T fFE A 624 135
— office premises — WAE 7,685 7,571
Cost of inventories recognised as expense EREBRIZ 2 FEKA 810,877 810,375
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

b A B

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & E2017F 128318 IEZFE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9.
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES

2016

RMB’'000

AREETTT

Directors’ fees E=E 676 572
Other emoluments to executive directors Hi FHITESFES

— basic salaries and allowances — BRI, 8,445 7,916

— bonus — D4 5,629 6,278

— retirement benefits scheme contributions — iRKiE R EH 245 88 68

— equity-settled share-based payments — UEREE
BV AR 1 < A 5,834 2,636
20,672 17,470

The bonus of the directors was determined with reference
to the Group’s performance, individual performances and
comparable market statistics.

Mr. Hou Ping is also the chief executive (“the Chief Executive”)
of the Company and his emoluments disclosed below include
those for services rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

B0 AKBASEEE  BEAX
BRI LT SR EHETE -

EFEELRARBERNITE @ fb
MBEE TREE  BRMEETE
FBHITE TR RF RS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 3% R MY R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 R&EE2017F12A31HIEZFE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9. EE  HEHTEHEAN
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID Eﬁ%%ﬁ@ﬂﬁﬁ@ﬂ%(%)
EMPLOYEES (continued)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments for the year, WEE A2 EE B &R B &G BT
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and BEENERRTEAFE ZHNE
Companies Ordinance is as follows: wm
2016
RMB'000
ARET T
A) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS HITES
Mr. Lu Run Ting EFELE
— basic salaries and allowances — BEAFEFER, 3,617 3,621
— bonus — D4 2,574 3,032
— retirement benefits scheme contributions — RIRBFFTEIMER 16 16
— equity-settled share — based payments — DESEENRO M 669 1,189
6,876 7,858
Mr. Lu Runyi EEGEE
— basic salaries and allowances — EARF S FER, 1,071 1,074
— bonus — D4 625 736
— retirement benefits scheme contributions — RIREFFTEI 3R 16 16
— equity-settled share — based payments — WERGEENRN I 1,373 643
3,085 2,469
Mr. Hou Ping BEEEE
— basic salaries and allowances — EAFEMERL 2,377 2,457
— bonus — D4 2,059 2,426
— retirement benefits scheme contributions — RIREFETEI R 16 16
— equity-settled share — based payments — DEREENROZA 1,787 482
6,239 5,381

170  Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2017



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
GEMEHRMEE (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & E2017F 128318 IEZFE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9. B HE
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EESEME
EMPLOYEES (Continued)

g
I
Corporate

Information
EER

&
(]
2016 25k
RMB'000 =
AREFTT gu
5
3
=n
A) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued) BTESE(R) a5
Mr. Lu Xiaozhong NS
— basic salaries and allowances — EXFEMER 767 764 sof
— bonus — 54 71 84 sEE
— retirement benefits scheme contributions ~ — EREMET 24t 20 20
— equity-settled share — based payments — DEREENRN X 813 322 &
T
8 5
1,671 1190  zZF
€ T [
& © B
2 fum
Mr. Wu Sigiang REBRALE s
(appointed on 18 May 2017) (2017658 18AEZT) 5
— basic salaries and allowances — EARH S EEE, 613 = 8 é;‘ﬁ
— bonus — D4 300 — 5 SR
— retirement benefits scheme contributions ~ — EREFIFTEIHEE 20 - g Sk
— equity-settled share-based payments — WERGEENRMH M 1,192 — s ™
2,125 = 28
g
19,996 16,898
S 4
s5%
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for FHMTEE e AEER AR gég‘;
their services in connection with the management of the RARGKEEHZRIGE - i
affairs of the Company and the Group. S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e R R (|)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 R&EE2017F12A31HIEZFE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9. X . TEHEAN
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 55 & @)
EMPLOYEES (continued)

2016
RMB'000
AREF T
B) NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS FHTES
Mr. Christophe Jacques Pagezy Christophe Jacques Pagezy %t 4
(resigned on 18 May 2017) (R2017F5 A 18 AEHT)
— directors’ fees — 8% —
Mr. Ting Tao | TE—%4%
(resigned on 18 May 2017) (R2017%5 18 B EHT)
— directors’ fees — e —
Mr. Ling Wai Lim ERRLE
(appointed on 18 May 2017) (R201745 R 18HEZ )
— directors’ fees — e 106
Total NaE 106

The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services as directors of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR @

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & E2017F 128318 IEZFE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 9. E
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID B
EMPLOYEES (continued)

Corporate
Information
EER

&
A3
3 oM
< S
_I_'
5
4
C) INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BYFHTES £
Ms. Ye Lu Bzt =
(appointed on 18 May 2017) (2017518 B EZR(T) £Ey
— directors’ fees — % 106 — £ é%
Mr. Mak Wing Sum Alvin BoKFRAAE 5
— directors' fees — g 228 230 gzﬁ
gt
sz
Mr. Zhu Lijun RIERE STE
(resigned on 18 May 2017) (201745 B 18 HEHE) 5§ "
— directors’ fees — e 65 171 =
.g o
3 eH
5 gl
M. Liu John Jianhua Bl 5
— directors’ fees — e 171 171 SsR
_é_f T
Total IINEE 570 572 3 gg
The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown LB IERTES I HEEERHE o
above were for their services as directors of the Company. EARRNRIEEZ RIEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e R R (|)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 REZE2017F12A318 L2 FE

174

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES (continued)

The five highest paid individuals for the year ended 31
December 2017 included three (2016: three) directors of the
Company, details of whose emoluments are set out above.
The remuneration of the remaining highest paid individuals
who are neither a director nor chief executive of the Company
during the year were as follows:

9.

EE - AFEYOTERAN
e ESME @

REE2017F12A3MBZ2EERUE
BHMATBE=((2016%F : ={1)
EE O HMEeHFBIER LR KBRES
FERUTEN  XFEERTHES
A THBE0T

2016
RMB'000
AREFIT

Employees EE
— basic salaries and allowances — EARE S MER 2,393 2,380
— bonus — D4L 990 1,166
— retirement benefits scheme contributions — R4K1EFIEH I 20 63 63
— equity-settled share-based payments — DESEENRGO M 1,975 643
5,421 4,252

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the
directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

BREEUINIESHEMALOABET
RBENA :

Number of employees

BEAR

2016

Up to HKD 1,000,000
HKD1,000,001 to HKD 1,500,000
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000

1,000,000/8 ¥ LA T
1,000,0018 % % 1,500,000/8 ¥ = =
1,500,0018 % Z22,000,000/% & — =

HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000 2,000,001 &% 22,500,000/% & — 2
HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,000,000 2,500,001 % Z=3,000,00078 ¥ — =
HKD3,000,001 to HKD3,500,000 3,000,00178 % % 3,500,0005%5 % 2 =

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the directors or the five highest paid individuals (including
directors and employees) as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. There
was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during
the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e HRERNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 REHZE2017F12A318 L FE

TAXATION 10. $i18§
2016
RMB'000
ARBFIT
The (charge) credit comprises: () AEEE :
Mainland China Enterprise Income Tax R A RS
("EIT") ([E3fEH]) (31,180) (29,544)
Underprovision of EIT in prior years BEFEMESFHERETE (1,906) (2,525)
(33,086) (32,069)
Mainland China withholding tax on dividend %8 %3k & /R B A 10, T8 307
distribution — (20,234)
Hong Kong Profits Tax BBMEFH (405) —
Overprovision of Hong Kong Profits Tax BEFENEHZRE
in prior years 234 =
(33,257) (52,303)
Deferred taxation (note 27) BEIEFRIB (M 7E27)
Current tax AEFHE (10,429) 12,637
Underprovision in prior years BAEFEIRTR 9,399 =
(1,030) 12,637
(34,287) (39,666)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% on the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

The EIT is calculated at the applicable rates in accordance with
the relevant laws and regulations in the Mainland China.

The Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are subject to
EIT at 25% except that Goldpac Limited is approved for 3 years
as enterprise satisfied as a High-New Technology Enterprise
and entitles the preferential tax rate of 15% in 2017, 2018
and 2019.

According to a joint circular of Ministry of Finance and the
State Administration of Taxation, Cai Shui (2008) No. 1, only
the profits earned by Goldpac Limited prior to 1 January 2008,
when distributed to foreign investors, can be grandfathered
with the exemption from withholding tax. Whereas, pursuant
to Articles 3 and 27 of the EIT Law and Article 91 of its
Implementation Rules, dividend distributed out of the profit
generated thereafter, shall be subject to EIT at 10% or
reduced tax rate if tax treaty or arrangement applies. Under
the relevant tax arrangement, withholding tax rate on dividend
distribution to the qualifying Hong Kong resident companies is
5%. Deferred tax liability on the undistributed profits earned
since 1 January 2008 have been accrued at the tax rate of 5%.

EREEEERERAA

BANEGHRFEMETERFIEN
16.5%5T&

TR HRIE EFgl WwHRERE

H
b

2
&

E’wﬁ% A% 25%
Bh - EAER
AT E W
8&&2019¢;x

&l
H
=)
=
&

iles
DD
Il ¢ ol

ZI

ﬂﬁézowi
15% 1B R 2

R IR B BER & B R AR 7548 2 B #4(2008)
%mme\@ﬂ EAWR&M&;&%V%
DR - RS HEARR A AFR2008
¢1 A1 EIZHIJ ﬁéﬁiﬁxa’ﬁu;ﬁﬁﬁa%ﬁﬁm
oo A - IRBEEAMBRIEEIKR
27IESKE B AR EINIERTE - UE
BELMMEDKEEE - BiR10%
&(hw&zﬁmd‘cwﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ)?ﬂiﬁm%ﬁ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e M RERNE ®)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 REZE2017F12A318 L2 FE

10.

176

TAXATION (continued) 10. ﬁIE(%E)
Tax charge for the year is reconciled to profit before taxation FERBX EEFATFBAERNAT
as follows:
2016
RMB’'000 %
ARBT T

Profit before taxation BRI AT A 198,764 244,566
Tax at the applicable income RER BT ETE

tax rate (Note) RRIE (M 7E) (49,691) (25.0) (61,142) (25.0)
Tax effect of expenses not AT H0HL 3 2 BB 7S

deductible for tax purpose wE (17,905) (9.0) (6,682) (2.7)
Tax effect of income not BEMBWATH

taxable for tax purpose T 3,787 1.9 13,968 5.7
Tax effect of deductible RHESR A HR T A

temporary difference not ERNNBETE

recognised — — (5,538) (2.3)
Utilisation of tax losses F ARER

previously not recognised M ER 1,248 0.6 — =
Tax effect of tax concession ¥ —KPE RN

granted to a Mainland China B2 T EE =

subsidiary miEE 31,193 15.7 31,310 12.8
Tax effect of tax losses not AERZ BB EED

recognised M E . — (86) (0.0)
Tax effect of different tax rate FEEMIIE A ER

of subsidiaries operating in LB AR

other tax jurisdiction TR EMN T G2 503 0.2 — —
Tax effect of share of losses  FE(LEt & A FIEE

of associates 2B (1,389) (0.7) (1,374) (0.6)
Mainland China withholding 72> B2 8 #9 = B ;R 3

tax on undistributed earnings FE¥071 (9,760) (4.9) (7,597) (3.1
Over(under) provision in BEFECEMSH

prior years BEZIR(TR) 7,727 3.9 (2,525) (1.0)
Tax charge and effective tax FEMBIEX H K&

rate for the year EEREME (34,287) (17.3) (39,666) (16.2)
Note: The rate applied is the applicable tax rate in the Mainland China where Bia - BTFRE SR 57N 55 B B B8 & o (B 9 1 Y

the operation of the Group is substantially based. EAHE -
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11.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

b A B

For the year ended 31 December 2017 REHZE2017F12A318 L FE

TAXATION (Continued)

At 31 December 2017, the Group has no unused tax
losses available for offset against future profits (2016:
RMB4,993,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
relation to the unused tax losses due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. Losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

At 31 December 2017, the Group has deductible temporary
differences of RMB58,204,000 (2016: RMB62,663,000) in
relation to allowance for doubtful debt and inventories.
Deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to such
deductible temporary differences as it is probable that the
temporary differences can be utilized in foreseeable future.

10. BiIE (@)

MR2017F 128318 A& B ETH
REH R R B F| 2 K 6 R 75 B 18
(2016 : 4,993,0007T) ° AR I HF
BRI TRRIE - ER KRR 2B
EEBERECHIBEE - Z/B1ENE
FO0 4 [ 7E HARR o

MN2017F 128318 XEBRER
FERBENAMBREREZEAA
R # 58,204,000 7T (2016 : A R
62,663,0007T) ° N BRI Z5EEES
ERAIRRRRWER - WZ TR
TR EZBCERSELERIBEE

DIVIDENDS 11. R E
2016
RMB’000
ARBTTT
2017 Interim — HK4.0 cents per ordinary share 2017 &EEHH— Tk
(declared on 17 August 2017 and TR E4.01L
based on 833,561,000 shares) (201748 B17HEIR
£4833,561,0008%)
2016 Interim — HK4.0 cents per ordinary share ~ 2016EEEH #— Tk
(declared on 16 August 2016 and TR A4 01l
based on 834,029,000 shares) (7201658 H16BHEIE
£71834,029,000/%) 28,105 28,322
2016 Final — HK7.0 cents per ordinary share 2016 FEARH-ER
(declared on 21 March 2017 and LB B 701l
based on 833,561,000 shares) (201743 A21HEIR
£4833,561,0008%)
2015 Final — HK11.0 cents per ordinary share 2015 FE KRB —FR
(declared on 16 March 2016 and EEAEE 11,01l
based on 834,029,000 shares) (F2016F3H16HF K
£71834,029,000/% ) 51,353 76,389
SHERSERERAR —B—tEER 177
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 3% R MY R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 REZE2017F12A318 L2 FE

11.

178

DIVIDENDS (Continued)

1. RE @)

2016 Special — HK6.0 cents per ordinary share
(declared on 21 March 2017 and
based on 833,561,000 shares)

2015 Special — HK4.0 cents per ordinary share
(declared on 16 March 2016 and
based on 834,029,000 shares)

2016

RMB’000
AR®ETT

2016FEERHRIRE —BR

TERE .01l

(R2017%F3821BEK -

H%833,561,0000%)

2015 FERFIRE Bk

LBALEEEA. 01l

(20163 A 16HE K °

£74834,029,0000%) 44,017 27,778

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend
of HK10.0 cents (2016: HK7.0 cents) and a special dividend of
HK6.0 cents (2016: HK6.0 cents) per ordinary share in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2017 have been proposed
by the Board of Directors and is subject to approval by the
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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12.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
GEMEHRMEE (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & E2017F 128318 IEZFE

EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. B REF
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share EBRAANTME ANTIRERKE#
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the SERFTIBENTNEUETHE -

following data:

2016
RMB'000
ARBTTT
Earnings &7
Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings T E&ME KRR FIFTEEH
per share (profit for the year attributable to BV &K (A QT HA A
owners of the Company) FE(EEEFE) 164,477 204,900
‘000
TA%
Number of shares BRoHAE
Weighted average number of ordinary STEFRERZFIFTEAR
shares for the purpose of basic earnings NG R B (A 7E)
per share (Note) 822,949 833,856
Note: The weighted average number of ordinary shares adopted in the Biat - FHE R EGRE K G 458 B pnagE 1 &
calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share for both years have AIRERF  HEHIG R ZEGEEE T
been arrived at after deducting the shares held in trust for the Company BB ZiE N i BB iR B (7 -
by an independent trustee under the share award scheme of the
Company.
The computation of diluted earnings per share does not B B0 B B B A B IR R e 1T RE (B
assume the exercise of the Company’s Pre-IPO share options BIARBHOEZBEOALBES SN
and share awards because the exercise price of those options 2016%F 2017 F D FHTIHERS
and the fair value of those share awards were both higher than EESRBERNEBE Y ABREST
the average market price for shares for both 2017 and 2016. PRz 8RR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 3% R MY R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 REZE2017F12A318 L2 FE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

180

13. 9% - RERRE

Furniture,
fixtures and Motor Plantand  Construction
Buildings equipment vehicles machinery  in progress Total
B 2B

B¥ R&f RE  BEREE RBIE )
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

cost R
At 1 January 2016 R2016E1A1A 57,732 40,147 5,041 238,117 25972 367,009
Currency realignment BEEE - 38 58 - = 9%
Additions NE = 447 173 3,929 2,608 1,127
Disposals RE - (127) (199) (44) = (370)
Transfers & - — — 6,029 (6,029) =
At 31 December 2016 #R2016E12A318 57,732 44 475 5,073 248,031 22,551 377,862
Currency realignment BiEEE - (42) (61) = = (103)
Additions RE 174,181 8,699 268 5116 24,707 212,971
Disposals RE = (578) (216) (7.860) — (8,654)
Transfers & - — - 18,557 (18,557) -
At 31 December 2017 R2017%128318 231913 52,554 5,064 263,844 28,701 582,076

DEPRECIATION g
At 1 January 2016 R201651 718 21,242 19,064 1,889 128,706 — 170,901
Currency realignment MERE - 28 2 - - 48
Provided for the year EEEE 2,900 6,215 543 30,046 = 39,704
Eliminated on disposals RERE - (127) (199) (44) — (370)
At 31 December 2016 #2016%128318 24,142 25,180 2,253 158,708 — 210,283
Currency realignment BERR - (36) (23) = = (59)
Provided for the year EERE 7314 10,303 503 26,355 — 44,475
Eliminated on disposals RERHE - (578) (216) (7,750 — (8,544)
At 31 December 2017 20175127318 31,456 34,869 2517 177313 = 246,155

CARRYING VALUES REE

At 31 December 2017 R2017412 8318 200,457 17,685 2,547 86,531 28,701 335,921
At 31 December 2016 R2016%12A318 33,590 19,295 2,820 89,323 22,551 167,579

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2017



13.

14.

15.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

b A B

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & E2017F 128318 IEZFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

The Group’s buildings are erected on land held under
medium-term land use rights in the PRC.

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are depreciated over their estimated
useful lives and after taking into account their estimated
residual values, using the straight-line method, as follows:

2% - 5%
20% - 33'/3%
10% - 20%
10%

Buildings

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Motor vehicles

Plant and machinery

LAND USE RIGHTS

The balance represents the prepayments of rentals for
medium-term land use rights situated in the Mainland China
for a period of 50 years.

13.

14.

M - BERKRE®=

AEERBTENTERA - HEFH
THUE PR

BREZIRN  LlWE BERR
BIHREREBARER - RfAEA
ERERAZRTIIFRIAFTREER
e

EgF 2% — 5%
R~ HENEE 20% - 33/4:%
RE 10% — 20%
5 i es 10%

1 3t {6 A 4

AEERFE AL AP B A 3t 4 PR 50 4F #O P 28
TiERENANESE -

GOODWILL 15. B &
RMB'000
ARBFIT
COST AND CARRYING VALUE FAS K BR T B
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016 and 2017 M20165F1H1H » 2016512 H31H
’20174%12 8318 1,375

Management of the Group determined that there was no
impairment in the CGU (i.e. embedded software and secure
payment products) containing the goodwill during the year
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

EREEEERERAA

EIRBRA  BHE2016F K2017412
A318 -  BEmEzReEXEM(A
BRARBHENLZ 2 NER) WEESE
A o

—=2-tggg 187
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e M RERNE ®)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 REZE2017F12A318 L2 FE

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

16. B & &E

Trademarks
Bz
RMB’000
ARET T
CoST A
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016 and 31 7R2016F1A18 + 20165 12A31H
December 2017 K2017%F12H31H 18,318
AMORTISATION ey
At 1 January 2016 20161 A1H 4,772
Charge for the year FEEH 2,290
At 31 December 2016 2016F12H31H 7,062
Charge for the year FEEN 2,290
At 31 December 2017 MW2017F12A31H 9,352
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2017 MW20179F12A31H 8,966
At 31 December 2016 2016F12HA31H 11,256

The amount represents the trademarks registered in Hong
Kong, Macau and the PRC, with finite useful lives and are
amortised on a straight line basis over the periods of 5 to 9

years (2016: 5 to 9 years).

182  Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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17.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
GEMEHRMEE (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & E2017F 128318 IEZFE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 17. REFE QN T 2 =

2016
RMB’000
ARBTTT

Unlisted investments in associates, at cost ENIE LT 2B L NF]
B 32,120 32,120
Exchange realignment ME H R 193 216
Share of post-acquisition results and reserves &/ & Was M FEE (4,838) 716
27,475 33,052

Details of the Group’s associates at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

RABEHRANEER E QR 2 FH
SR

Proportion of issued
ordinary share
capital indirectly
held by the Group

Country
of incorporation
and operation

Name of entity Principal activity

HZALD T
FEEFEN
BEEE R MELER ERTEBR2ELE FEXEH
Kaixin Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 45% 45% Investment holding
JEBERERAR EEERRES el NS
Goldpac ACS Technologies Inc. Philippines 45% 45% Personalisation service
FEE & AMERRS
Sichuan Zhongruan Technology Ltd.  Mainland China 19.68% 19.68% Smart city platform
("SCZR") (Note) (Note)
) EEHRAR AR ([ FER])  PEAM (H7t) (HfiE) B2WHTA

Note: The Group is able to exercise significant influence over SCZR because it
has the power to appoint two out of the seven directors of that company
under the Article of Association of that company.

Biet - KEEBEE D) PR MEXZE BB
RIFDIIFE 2 RAIETE - AEB B
IREHEFEPAHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e R R (|)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 R&EE2017F12A31HIEZFE

17.

18.

184

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Aggregate information of associates that

are not individually material

17. REEE RN T 2 = @)

BRIGFEARKE N ARNER

=2

2016

RMB’000

AREFTT

The Group’s share of losses of associates NEE FE(E BT (5.554) (5,495)

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s Et& R A1z 2

interests in these associates RS East 27,475 33,052
INVENTORIES 18. 7§

2016

RMB’000

AR¥EFTT

Raw materials R 150,625 162,974

Work in progress K 5,316 4,939

Finished goods X 51,668 43,299

207,609 211,212

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2017



19.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

b A B

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & E2017F 128318 IEZFE

TRADE RECEIVABLES

19. BEIRE R

2016

RMB’'000

ARBFIT

Trade receivables FEUE R 401,079 323,709
Retentions held by customers EPEAENREH 16,650 16,261
417,729 339,970

Payment terms with customers are mainly on credit. Invoices
are normally payable in 30 to 150 days by the customers
from date of issuance while retentions held by customers
are normally payable between 6 months to 1 year by the
customers from the date of issuance of invoices. The following
is an aged analysis of trade receivables net of allowance for
doubtful debt presented based on the date of delivery of
goods which approximated the respective dates on which
revenue was recognised:

HEPHNRIGEREZRGEK - BR
—RRI I B HES30A =150H A
BEEXM  MEFPHKANRER R
RELEZAHMEANEAAZ—FRA
AT e REWRA B H(EE 5 WK E
RABEE) 250K E R (R R
IREE) REDITIAT ¢

2016
RMB’000
AREFTT

Age AR
0 - 90 days 0-90H 297,292 223,697
91 - 180 days 91 -180H 56,046 58,413
181 — 365 days 181£2365H 34,794 36,801
Over 1 year (Note) il —F (KT) 29,597 21,059
417,729 339,970

Note: Included in the above balance aged over one year at 31 December 2017
were retentions held by customers for sales of goods of RMB7,553,000
(2016: RMB7,256,000).

The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

BiaE : _FR201749F 12 431 H BRER 848 — F A9 45
BRFEEEFPHEYHEE M AHIRE
F AR 553,000 (20164 « AR
7,256,0007T) °

AR B E L L T A A B AR

O
AR °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e R R (|)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 REZE2017F12A318 L2 FE

19.

186

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

At 31 December 2017, included in the Group's trade
receivable balances are trade receivables with aggregate
carrying amount of RMB21,251,000 (2016: RMB16,800,000)
which are past due at the reporting date for which the Group
has not provided for impairment loss as counterparties have
sound financial background.

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired
is as follows:

19. EWE K

M2017F 128318 » KEEEK
ERAEBRTERERAEARAR
# 21,251,000 ot ( 2016 : A R #&
16,800,0007T) MBI E R » 2 S 7H
REBHEEE  BEXASEHAR
BEBERTIRE®  WIHHERE A
RIFMBBE= -

£ %8 H118 RORL B ) R W S 3R Y BR e 1A
T

2016
RMB'000
ARETTT

Age BRER
91 - 180 days 91-180H 8,796 2,959
181 — 365 days 181%365H 6,042 8,184
Over 1 year HBiE—F 6,413 5,657
21,251 16,800

In determining the recoverability of the trade receivables, the
Group monitors change in the credit quality of the debtors
since the credit was granted and up to the reporting date.

No interest is charged on trade receivables. Allowance on
trade receivables are made based on estimated irrecoverable
amounts from the sales of goods or provision of services by
reference to past default experience, and by aging and credit
portfolio of each debtor.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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19.

20.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
GEMEHRMEE (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & E2017F 128318 IEZFE

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 19. B E K )
Movements in the allowance for doubtful debt are as follows: REBEEHMT :
2016
RMB’000
AR¥EFTT
At 1 January R1A1H 17,431 7,226
(Reversal of) impairment loss recognised FE U R IE A (B E)
on receivables Bt (9,384) 10,393
Bad debts written off B iEER (793) (188)
At 31 December M®12A31H 7,254 17,431
At the end of the reporting period, the allowance for doubtful R EER - RERBEEERNRERE
debt represented individually impaired trade receivables which WER  ZEFBEDEH—KREE
have been overdue for a long time and the directors of the B BXARREERAE  BREBEL
Company consider that the recoverability of these debts are B WEZERENEE DK o
low based on historical experience.
OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 20. H BN R FE A4S K
PREPAYMENTS
2016
RMB"000
ARBTTT
Rental and utility deposits e MKERS 1,747 1,936
Tender deposits BERES 5,561 16,793
Deposits paid to suppliers XA EENE ® 12,014 9,243
Prepayments to the Trustee (ERSEUNEN
(as defined in note 29(c)) (2R M5E29(c)) 2,792 1,342
Other prepayments and deposits HEmBENTKEES 23,083 3,333
45,197 32,647
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 3% R MY R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 REZE2017F12A318 L2 FE

21.

22.

23.

188

AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE

The balance is unsecured, interest-free. An amount of
approximately RMB819,000 (2016: RMB869,000) is expected
to be repayable after one year, and the amount is therefore
shown as non-current. For the remaining amount of
approximately RMB9,422,000 (2016: RMB8&,409,000), the
amount is repayable on demand.

DEPOSITS PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group entered
into a provisional sale and purchase agreement with Junefield
(Beijing Hong Kong) Development Company Limited (the
“Vendor”), an independent third party, to acquire 13th floor
of Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre on No.56 Gloucester
Road, Hong Kong (the “Property”) at a consideration of
HKD 178,000,000 (equivalent to RMB154,174,000). As at
31 December 2016, deposits amounted to HKD32,930,000
(equivalent to RMB29,456,000) was placed to the Vendor.
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the acquisition was
completed and the property is included in property, plant and
equipment as at 31 December 2017.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, FIXED BANK
DEPOSITS AND BANK BALANCES AND
CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and
short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less. The pledged bank deposits are pledged for bills
payables and carry interest at the prevailing market interest
rate ranging from 0.36% to 4.13% (2016: 0.3% to 4.13%)
per annum.

Bank balances held by the Group carry interest at the rate of
0% t0 0.3% (2016: 0% to 1%) per annum.

Fixed bank deposits held by the Group and the Company are
denominated in RMB and carry interest at the rate of 2%
to 4% (2016: 0.42% to 3.77%) per annum. Included in the
balance as at 31 December 2017, RMB100,000,000 of fixed
bank deposits are carried with original maturity over one year
(2016: RMB110,000,000).

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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22.

23.

FE W Bt & A B RK

EHAEER 8  c ERFHARKE
819,000 7t (2016 : A K ¥ 869,000
TO) MM FREE  REAIER
BEE - HH#H ARYKL22,0007T
(2016 : AFR#£8,409,0007T) EEE K
Bg -

BEYE BERRED
NEE

HZE2016F12A31B2FE - AEH
HEB(RB)ERERAB(ER)
—ABIE RN EE I
UG B F S & R FT B 5657 SR an iR 1778 /&
FLIBEBZHAR(ZWE)  REA
7 # 178,000,000 T (HEE R A R
154,174,0007C ) ° &, £2016 % 12 A
3181k EXRfJE&#E%32,930,000
T(MAENARM29,456,0007T) T &
B REE2017F12A31BZ2EE -
ZXHETHK ZUWEEBEEREE
2017512 A31AWME - BE k&
A 2 SRR o

SIEPRITER  RITE
HER  RITERREE

BITERERSREAEEMBEAEN
We&MN=EARE=MEA AR N
RETR BMERT TR AEEE
NEE  EFEFNEERTMENEN
7K0.36% £4.13% (2016 F B0.3% &
4.13%)FF8 °

AEEFENRITERIZENERORE
0.3%(2016F B0%E1% )58 °

AEERFANRITEBRTRAARE
FHE - 2% £4% (2016 F £0.42%
E377%)MFFEEGTE - B E2016
F12H318 - H BB —FORITE
B3 77 R & 62 A A R 100,000,000 7T
(20164 A AR®110,000,0007T) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
GEMEHRMEE (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & E2017F 128318 IEZFE

24. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 24. BEHERKRENEE
2016
RMB’000
ARBTF 5
Trade payables FERTER
— Subsidiaries of Gemalto N.V. — Gemalto N.V.([ Gemalto |)
("Gemalto”) (Note) B BB A R (AaE) 85,258 126,157
— Related company of Gemalto — Gemalto®) @ A &)
— DataCard Corporation — DataCard Corporation 10,066 16,331
— Third parties — =4 319,403 190,848
414,727 333,336
Bills payables - secured EERENER
— Subsidiaries of Gemalto — GemaltoWHi @B A &) 78,383 88,290
— Third parties —%=5 57,593 93,475
135,976 181,765
550,703 515,101
Note: Gemalto is a company incorporated under the laws of the Netherlands Hiat - Gemalto R K B E# K 7 + R R 17
and whose shares are listed and traded on NYSE Euronext Amsterdam TE B A — 2 B3 5 X 5 BT 2 B 48 5
and NYSE Euronext Paris. It controlled Gemplus International S.A., a ARG HMERE G LIRS
substantial shareholder of the Company throughout both years, which is Gemplusinternational S.A. B Gemalto #%
a limited liability company incorporated in Luxembourg. B B —RREREBEMEEREE L

7] - FEREFE A2 R AIRIE BRR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

=g e NEESE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 R&EE2017F12A31HIEZFE

24. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (continued)

The Group normally receives credit terms of 60 to 180 days
from its suppliers. The following is an aged analysis of the
Group's trade and bills payables based on invoice date and bill
issuance date respectively at the end of the reporting period:

24. BENERRENEE @)

AEE—MREHENIZE60R E£180R
MEEH - THASREPRAEER
BRHERREMNERREZHBNE
B A B HMERER DT -

2016
RMB’000
ARETTT

Age BRER
0 - 90 days 0&90H 391,592 414,616
91 - 180 days 91£180H 129,681 87,678
181 — 365 days 181%365H 27,579 8,637
Over 1 year HBiE—F 1,851 4,170
550,703 515,101

25. OTHER PAYABLES 25. H i B FNIE

2016
RMB’000
ARETTT
Customers’ deposits ZERES 35,475 32,398
Payroll and welfare payables R TE KiEF| 45,925 48,272
Value-added tax payables FETIGET 61,903 47,444
Warranty provision REBESBE 4,775 4,775
Delivery and postage payables ENEERBE 4,411 1,923
Other tax payables H i FEA LR 2,137 843
Other payables H th A~ I8 3,355 1,755
157,981 137,410

790  Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2017



26.

27.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

b A B

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & E2017F 128318 IEZFE

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

26. BT Bh

2016
RMB’000
ARETTT

CARRYING VALUE fREE
At 1 January W1A1H 14,700 18,720
Government grants received during the year XTI AT 6 Bh 3,000 700
Released to profit or loss during the year FRFARBR — (4,720)
At 31 December MW12A31H 17,700 14,700

Goldpac Limited received government grants throughout the
year from the relevant China local authorities as an incentive in
relation to technical know-how on the development of smart
cards and solutions services. Such government grants were
recognised in the profit or loss as other income, expenses,
gains or losses when the research was completed and the
related verification procedures have been completed and
approved by the China local authorities.

DEFERRED TAXATION

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred
taxation balances at the end of the reporting period:

EHBEERAFFAMBEE & HER
b BT #78 BE R AE R B BE R R BRIR TS
R E R ER - HWEBAHRE
MEK - HEARIEEFELER
B A B B PTHL /IR AR R EL A
WA~ X FISRIBRFE AR

27. JEFET IR

RAEMBIOR MR T IDELETHE
EMBEBERBELEE - U TR/RK
SHREETLIBREON

2016
RMB'000
ARETIT

BEERAEE
EEHIRAE

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

=g e NEESE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 REZE2017F12A318 L2 FE

27. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 27.

The following is the deferred taxation recognised and
movements thereon during the year:

iR AE B IE (@)

ATREEANELEHREREFAH

=
Temporary
differences Mainland
arising from China
allowance withholding
for doubtful tax on
debt and  undistributed
inventories earnings Total
HRIER Ko EFIEH
FERBEEN HE R
ERMER B &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARET T ARBTTT
At 1 January 2016 20161418 — 22,748 22,748
Charged to profit or loss during FREABR(AET10)
the year (note 10) — 7,597 7,597
Credited to profit or loss during BRARTEE 2 RS MR
the year on dividend distribution &R AR (A7 10)
in prior years (note 10) — (20,234) (20,234)
At 31 December 2016 72016512 A31H = 10,111 10,111
(Credited) charged to profit or loss 4 RP BT (3Z )%
during the year (note 10) (Ktz%10) (8,730) 9,760 1,030
At 31 December 2017 R2017F12A31H (8,730) 19,871 11,141
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
GEMEHRMEE (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & E2017F 128318 IEZFE

28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. R i3
Number of =
ordinary 5 g%
shares Amount % gﬂ:
ZERHE EX 28
Notes ‘000 HKD’000 £
B T BEFT
Sw
Sr
Issued and fully paid: EETEMR - S~
At 1 January 2016 M2016F1H1H 833,667 1,497,123 ;
Issue of shares upon exercise of RIT{EREIRERTETT é ééﬁ;ﬂ
share options En (a) 362 1,872 BEN
Shares repurchased and cancelled o % K sE SR (b) (565) = o
At 31 December 2016 720165 12H31H 833,464 1,498,995 é _zﬁ
Issue of shares upon exercise of HITE AR P 31T S5E
share options Coliten) (©) 97 503 g;ﬁ
At 31 December 2017 M2017F12A31H 833,561 1,499,498 =
g.E
RMB'000 2k
IS
Shown in the financial statements as R TN SRR °
— at 31 December 2017 — R2017%F12A31H 1,192,362 “agg
— at 31 December 2016 — R2016%F12A31H 1,191,941
Notes: Htet § t*?g
15
(a)  During the year ended 31 December 2016, 362,000 share options were (a) HREF2016F12HA318ILZEE B ‘% o
b = o . o
exercised and converted into 362,000 ordinary shares at the conversion 362,000/R fE R HE1Z B R BB, 71 T 1T 1 g
price of HKD2.71. 0% 73362,000/8 ZiAR ° Y
(b)  During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company repurchased (b) REZ2016F12A31H.2FF + KL AIH T‘EU Ezngn
and cancelled a total of 565,000 ordinary shares of the Company at WA AT B 0 it 45 T #£51565,000 88 78 22 Z éﬁ
an aggregate cost of HKD1,351,000 (equivalent to approximately B Ay EAAR - ElEE AL K B 1,351,000 _é o #
RMB1,135,000) on the Stock Exchange. T (HHERARKT,135,0007T) ° g %’gﬁ
() During the year ended 31 December 2017, 97,000 share options were (c) REZ2017F12A31HILZFE © A
exercised and converted into 97,000 ordinary shares at the conversion 97,0002 i R #E1Z 2 iR B 162. 71 L 7T (€ I8
price of HKD2.71. 597,000 ZiEAR

41
b
B
[=

Financial Statements
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 3% R MY R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 REZE2017F12A318 L2 FE

28.

194

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company
repurchased its own ordinary shares through the Stock
Exchange as follows:

28. X7 (@)

REZE2016F12A31HZEE * AR
AR BERZ PRI B AR B @A

No. of Price per share Aggregate

ordinary BRE®S consideration

shares Highest Lowest paid

Month of repurchase E# A % LEREAE BS BIK T ITHE
HKD HKD HKD'000

B B BT

June 2016 20166 A 565,000 2.41 2.37 1,351
1,351

The above ordinary shares were cancelled upon repurchase.

None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during both
years.

All the shares which were issued during the year ended 31

December 2017 rank pari passu with the existing shares in all
respects.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was adopted pursuant
to a written resolution passed by the shareholders of the
Company on 15 November 2013 for the primary purpose
of recognise the contribution of certain employees and
directors made or may have made to the growth of the
Group and/or the listing of the Group on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, and will expire on 3 December
2019.

At 31 December 2017, the number of shares in respect
of which options had been granted and remained
outstanding under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was
28,117,000 (2016: 30,126,000), representing 3.37%
(2016: 3.61%) of the shares of the Company in issue on
that day.

Options granted must be taken up on 19 November
2013, upon payment of HKD1.0 by the grantee.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

g e NEESE §)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 REHZE2017F12A318 L FE

29. LR BERNINRS

(a)

EREEEERERAA

E)ﬂ’&ﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂi%

Bl

BRXAFABEABRETERN
201311 B15HE 2R E U
EmAZEE  BEEEELAEE
ETEERESHENIBETRE
EREARBEEE K SHRHER
BERFT TR ERL - WigR2019
F12H3B3H -

MR2017F12A831H - EEXR
FZEERBEREFSTERER
RITERMDAEE 528,117,000
(2016 : 30,126,000 ) © 14 A
ANRIFR2017F12 A31HE 1T
HIRE D 8 &= H3.37% ( 2016 :
3.61%) °

BB ENEE2013F11A4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

=g e NEESE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 REZE2017F12A318 L2 FE

29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

29. LR BERIINRS

(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

The following table discloses details of the Company’s
share options held by directors and employees and
movements in such holding for both years ended 31

December 2016 and 2017:

(#)

(a) BRARMBEmBRE

HET 3

TRBEBEANTEENREEE
EREREREREE2016 K
201712 A3 B EE 2 &

Number of share options
BRERA
Exercise At1  Exercise Forfeiture A1 Transfer  Exercise Forfeiture At31
price  January during during  January during during during  December
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period per share 2016 theyear  the year 2017 theyear  theyear the year 2017
20165 20178 20175
RIHBH RS 8 BRTERE 1B1B ERfR EAKRY 1A1B FRER FAGE  FRER 128318
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(H#1)  (K#2)
Directors
j £
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 to  From 4 December 2014 to HKD2.71 200,000 — — 200,000 200,000 - — 400,000
3 December 2014 3 December 2019
20135115198 B2013%11A19R2 B2014512A4R% R
2014%12A3A 2019%12A3A
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 to  From 4 December 2015 to HKD2.71 1,640,000 - — 1,640,000 200,000 = — 1,840,000
3 December 2015 3 December 2019
0135114198 8201351181982 820155128482 EELIT
201551238 2019512438
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 to  From 4 December 2016 to HKD2.71 1,640,000 - — 1,640,000 200,000 - — 1,840,000
3 December 2016 3 December 2019
2013115198 E13E11A19AZ B2016512A4R % RELIT
2016512838 2019512838
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013to  From 4 December 2017 to HKD2.71 1,640,000 - — 1,640,000 200,000 - — 1,840,000
3 December 2017 3 December 2019
20135115198 B2013511A19A2 B2017512840Z R
2017512838 2019512838
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 to  From 4 December 2018 to HKD2.71 1,640,000 — — 1,640,000 200,000 - — 1,840,000
3 December 2018 3 December 2019
0135115198 B2013511A19AZ B2018512A4R% R
2018%12A3A 2019%12A3A
6,760,000 - — 6,760,000 1,000,000 = — 7,760,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2017

29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

e M wERMNME

29. LR BEBINR

(%)

(Ilg)

NEZE2017FE 128318 1L EE

2

(a) BRARMBERBRE

HEC 3

Number of share options
BHERA
Exercise At1  Exercise Forfeiture A1 Transfer  Exercise Forfeiture At31
price  January during during  January during during during  December
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period per share 2016 theyear  the year 2017  theyear  theyear the year 2017
20165 20175 R2017%
RiHEH BRE 8 SREE 1818 EmfiE  FAXY  1B1B ERER  ERTE  ERAM 128318
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(Ht1)  (K#2)
Employees
B8
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 to  From 4 December 2014 to HKD2.71 3,086,000 (47,0000 (33,000) 3,006,000  (200,000) (9,000)  (148,000) 2,649,000
3 December 2014 3 December 2019
20135115198 H2013511A19RZ B2014812A4R% AELIT
2014512538 2019F1283A
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 to ~ From 4 December 2015 to HKD2.71 4,871,000  (315,000)  (48,000) 4,508,000  (200,000) (4,000)  (312,000) 3,992,000
3 December 2015 3 December 2019
0135115198 B2013511A19AZ B01551274R% AL
2015%12A3A 2019%12A3A
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 to  From 4 December 2016 to HKD2.71 5,448,000 —  (164,000) 5284000  (200,0000  (84,000)  (484,000) 4,516,000
3 December 2016 3 December 2019
20135115198 H2013511A19RZ B2016812A4R% AELIT
201651283A 2019F1283A
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 to  From 4 December 2017 to HKD2.71 5,448,000 — (164,000 5,284,000  (200,000) — (484,000 4,600,000
3 December 2017 3 December 2019
0135115198 B2013511A19AZ B217%1284R2 AL
2017%12A3A 2019%12A3A
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 to  From 4 December 2018 to HKD2.71 5,448,000 —  (164,000) 5,284,000  (200,000) —  (484,000) 4,600,000
3 December 2018 3 December 2019
20135115198 B2013511A19RZ B2018812A4R2 AELIT
2018F1283A 2019F1283A
24,301,000 (3620000  (573,000) 23,366,000 (1,000,000)  (97,000) (1,912,000) 20,357,000
Total 31,061,000  (362,0000  (573,000) 30,126,000 - (97,000) (1,912,000) 28,117,000
&t
Note 1:  The transfer during the year represents share options held by Mat1 . FREBEEHESR B ER
a newly appointed director, who was previously an employee. BEBREZHEFHFHER
e ZEESRFANEZEK
Note 2:  The weighted average share price at the dates of exercise is Hiitz - RTHREH B INE-TFHER 2E
HKD2.35. #2.357T ©
SHEERERERIA —T—tFFH 197

Corporate
Information
EER

EHEFERE

Review
Since IPO

&

A

2017 Major Events
2017 EAE

EERE

Chairman’s
Statement

and Analysis
BE V&

EEE

Management Discussion

Management
EREERE

BER

Report of Directors and Senior
Directors
EEERE

Report
DEEREE

Corporate Governance

CHERER

Environmental,
Social and Governance

BE

BMBH®E

»
3]
=
9]
=
9]
2
©
o
%]
=
v
c
]
=
i




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 3% R MY R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 REZE2017F12A318 L2 FE

29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

198

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

The share options shall vest in 5 tranches subject to
specific period of services of certain of employees,
executives and officers for the Group and/or the listing of
Shares on the Stock Exchange. Due to the resignation of
certain of employees, executives and officers during the
year ended 31 December 2017, part of the share options
were forfeited.

The fair values of the share options granted during
the year ended 31 December 2013 were calculated at
RMB69,935,000 (equivalent to HKD88,954,000) using
the Binominal Option Pricing pricing model. The inputs
into the model were as follows:

Share price HKD4.52
Exercise price HKD2.71
Expected life 6 years
Expected volatility 46.9963%
Expected dividend yield 1.0822%
Risk-free interest rate 1.2426%

Fair value per option HKD2.4250 to HKD2.4791

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the selected comparable companies in the
same industry. The expected life used in the model has
been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate,
for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions
and behavioural considerations.

The Group recognised the total expense of
RMB4,426,000 (2016: RMB10,502,000) for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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(&)

(a)

BEXNRBERNERE

HET 3

BELLET  EHEENBE Y
AEBE RAEE LTS E
RIEHERM - BRES> AILE
B - H=2017F12A318 1k
HRFEELET  BEEERBEN
BB - S MEARAE R -

REZE2013F12A8318 1t 25
B BEENBREQCEARERE
Bo-EXEEERAFEL A
AR #69,935,000 T (& B
88,954,0007T) * KA T -

i & B4 52T
TEE B2 717
SEECE=T 64F
TEHAR i 46.9963%
TEHARR B M e 1.0822%
2 [ e ) =R 1.2426%
HMhERE S, B%2.4250FE

~RfEE B2 47917T

T8 HA R 08 R 1R PR R SRR K% P
7T R AT LR IERTER) © iR
AFMAZEARSPERREERE
ERLIFEEME - (TERSI TR
AR ENRELGELETHE

REZE2017F 128318125
B AEEHRAZAARE
4,426,000 (2016 F : AR¥
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
GEMIEHRRMEEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 REHZE2017F12A318 L FE

29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Share Option Scheme

The principal terms of the share option scheme,
approved by the shareholder’s resolution passed on
15 November 2013 (the “Share Option Scheme”), are
substantially the same as the terms of the Pre-IPO Option
Scheme except that:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

the maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted shall not exceed 10% of
the total number of shares in issue at the date of
listing of the shares of the Company on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange;

the maximum entitlement of each eligible
participant in any 12-month period up to the date
of offer to grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares
in issue as at the date of offer to grant; and

the exercise price is determined by the directors
of the Company at their discretion and will not
be lower than the highest of: (a) the closing price
of the ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange at
the offer date, which must be a trading day; (b)
the average closing price of the ordinary shares
on the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the offer date; and (c) the
nominal value of the Company’s share.

On 7 September 2016, 20,000,000 share options were
granted and all share options were forfeited during the
year ended 31 December 2016. As at 31 December 2016
and 2017, no shares in respect of which options had
been granted are remained outstanding under the Share
Option Scheme.

29. LR BERNINRS
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RLHENTSRBEAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 3% R MY R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 REZE2017F12A318 L2 FE

29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 29. UBRBAERNZINRS
TRANSACTIONS (continued) (&)
(b) Share Option Scheme (continued) (b) BB RS E (@)
The following table discloses details of the Company’s TREBEARAEENESNE
share options held by directors and employees and BRI RENEE2017F12H
movements in such holding for the year ended 31 BNAEFENES :

December 2016 and 2017:

Number of share options
EhiaR
A Grant  Forfeited A Grant ~ Forfeited At
Exerdse 1 January during during 1 January during during 31 December
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period price 06 theyear  theyear W7 theyear  the year i)
HateE Hung Hung
RhAg 585 i fRE BB ERRE  ERRM (BB ERRE BN 1A3A
HKD
i
Directors
£
7 September 2016 From 7 September 201610 From 3 April 2017 to 161 — 390000 (390,000) - - - -
2 Aprl 207 31 December 203
N1659A78 EN1659ATRE ENTEA3EE
WNTE4RA ABENR3NA
7 September 2016 From 7 September 201610 From 3 April 2018 to 161 — 390000 (390,000 - - - -
2 April 2018 31 December 2013
1659578 EN16E9ATRE ENIBELA3RE
I8ERA A3ENA3NA
7 September 2016 From 7 September 201610 From 3 April 2019 o 161 — 390000 (390,000 - - - -
2 Apil 2019 31 December 2013
WIEFIATE AINGEIRTRE AINGEAR3RE
WI9F4RE NBENAYIE

1,170,000 (1,170,000} = = = =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

b A B

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & E2017F 128318 IEZFE

29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Share Option Scheme (continued)

29.

URBBERNZATRE

(48)
(b) &R HESTE (@)

Number of share options
Elhesn
At Grant  Forfeited A Grant  Forfeited At
Brerdse  Jamvary  dwing  duing  flanuary  during  during 31December
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period price W6 theyear  theyear W7 theyear  the year il
0168 Rurg Rutg
kil 5RE k8 ¥ 118 EREE  ERRM 1A1R ERRE  ERER AR
HKD
i
Employees
kg
7 September 2016 From 7 Seotember 201610 From 3 April 2017 to 161 — 6276000 (6,276,000) - - - -
2 April 2017 31 December 203
Wi6EIATA EN16E9ATRE ENTEA3EE
WELAIA ABENR3IA
7 September 2016 From 7 September 201610 From 3 April 2018 to 261 — 6277000 (6,277,000) - - - -
2 April 2018 31 December 2023
1659A78 EN1659ATRE ENIBELA3EE
WI8FLFIR AENRIA
7 September 2016 From 7 September 201610 From 3 April 2019 o 261 - 6277,000  (6,277,000) - - - -
2 Apiil 2019 31 December 2023
1659A7H BN16E9A7AE BNI9E4A3AE
W19EAR2A AENRIA
— 18,830,000 (18,830,000) - - - -

The share options shall vest in 3 tranches subject to
achievement of certain performance targets by the
relevant directors and employees and/or the Group.
During the year ended 31 December 2016, due to the
failure of their performance targets, the share options
could not be vested, thus the share options were
forfeited.

BIEREBES BT R AL
ERTREREMEIZ - B
=4 FEB - Bl Z220164F12
A3181  ARERBZLEE
K BRETEEEES - EitiE
A& e LKA o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 3% R MY R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 REZE2017F12A318 L2 FE

29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

202

(b) Share Option Scheme (continued)

(c)

The fair values of the share options granted during
the year ended 31 December 2016 were calculated at
RMB15,463,000 (equivalent to HKD17,852,000) using
the Binominal Option Pricing pricing model. The inputs
into the model were as follows:

Share price HKD2.61
Exercise price HKD2.61
Expected life 7.3 years
Expected volatility 49.86%
Expected dividend yield 4.21%
Risk-free interest rate 0.72%
Fair value per option HKDO0.8926

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the selected comparable companies in the
same industry. The expected life used in the model has
been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate,
for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions
and behavioural considerations.

Share Award Scheme

The Company adopted a share award scheme (the
“Share Award Scheme”) on 30 November 2015
(the "Adoption Date”) with a duration of 15 years
commencing from 11 December 2015. The objective of
the Share Award Scheme are to (i) align the interests of
any employee, adviser, consultant, agent, contractor,
client or supplier of any member of the Group whom the
directors in its sole discretion considers may contribute
or have contributed to the Group (the “Participants”);
(ii) recognise and motivate the contribution of the
Participants and to provide incentives in retaining the
Participants for future operation and development of
the Group; and (iii) attract suitable personnel for the
long-term growth and further strategic expansion of the
Group.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
GEMIEHRRMEEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 REHZE2017F12A318 L FE

29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 29. LR AEBRNIARS
TRANSACTIONS (continued) (&)

Corporate
Information
EER

(c) Share Award Scheme (continued) (c) BinREF 8w g&%
ZoH
The Company has engaged BOCI-Prudential Trustee NATEEFE R EBERA M'“%f
Limited (the “Trustee”) to administer and hold EEARAR([ZIEA]l) &1 g
the Company’s shares before they are vested and EEEARAATZEG  AEED %ﬂ
transferred to the Participants. The Trustee purchases BREEAIRGEEFTE AL BB é%h:
the Company’s shares being awarded from the open B&fp G eEsE TPt HE A o F3E gé

market with funds provided by the Company by way of
contributions.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, no
ordinary shares of the Company have been acquired
(2016: 10,814,000 ordinary shares at an aggregate
cost of HKD29,776,000, equivalent to approximately
RMB25,038,000). As at 31 December 2017, 10,374,000
shares have been granted or agreed to be granted to
the Participants (2016: nil). The share awarded shall vest

ARBEHBREARTIBEA
ARBERD - BARAARR
fit o

REZE2017F12A3181E2
FE - AREREBALAR
AIAE D (2016 © LA 48 Bk R 78 ¥
29,776,000 7T & A K R & K
10,814,000k @A + HHE R
# AN R #25,038,0007T ) A&
E2017F12A31BIEZFE -

EERE

Chairman’s
Statement

and Analysis
BEBHRRDNT

o
in 3 years on each anniversary of the first vesting date 10,374,000 EBRE LHE T éaﬁ
in equal portions. The first vesting date is 26 November FEEETLREE (2016 - ?E
2017. The estimated fair value of the awards granted m) o BEIRMMEFEEB A %’m

are RMB24,239,000 (equivalent to HK$27,564,000)
based on the market price of the relevant shares at the
grant date. The Group recognised the total expenses of
RMB12,737,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017
(2016: nil) in relation to the share awards granted by
the Company. There are 7,867,000 (2016: 10,841,000)
shares held by the Trustee and RMB2,792,000
(2016: RMB1,342,000) was placed to the Trustee as
prepayments at the end of reporting period.

EREEEERERAA

DIFH EFEBOREME
B - 5E%ERA2017F11A
268 - KR F AN MIHER
HE BERONAAEBELY
B ANR#24,239,0007T (&5
#27,564,0007T) ° B = 20174
12A318 » X"EERARQRFH
HEERMERNERASTAA
R ¥ 12,737,000 7T ( 2016 4 :
) c RBEHER  SHEAF

Directors and Senior | Management Discussion

Report of
Directors
ESERE

Corporate Governance
Report
SEEREE

%5 7,867,000 A% & 3@ A% (2016 : :%ﬂ
10,841,000) F1 A K #52,792,000 =
7T(2016 : AER#1,342,0007T) se®
2R Eéﬁ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 3% R MY R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 REZE2017F12A318 L2 FE

30.

204

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or the future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statements of cash
flows from financing activities.

30.

&2

up
OHH

RETHELZ AN
B

TREAMIBAEERARERZDEL
MEEZS  BRASLIFRESE
B -ARMELTPEEINREREAE
BSEEReRERTHAOBRAKE
BOBEAREETHNRSRICRREI
ERERNEE -

Dividend

payable

EARE

RMB’'000

ARBTIT

At 1January 2017 20171 A1H —
Financing cash flow MEEEIRER (120,601)
Dividend declared FIKRE 123,475
Foreign exchange translation INEHRE (2,874)
At 31 December 2017 2017%12H31H —

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2017



31.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

b A B

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & E2017F 128318 IEZFE

OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group was committed
to make the following future minimum lease payments for
office premises under non-cancellable operating leases which
fall due as follows:

31.

REHE
FEBEREBEA
RARE R - AREEHEHTTH

HNRLHESFBYEMBRRER
EEENREE - BIHmT

2016

RMB’000

ARBFIT

Within one year R—FR 6,093 3,558
In the second to fifth year inclusive RE_ZFREF 954 2,247
7,047 5,805

Leases are negotiated for a term of 1 to 5 years and rentals
are fixed for an average of 2 years (2016: 1 to 5 years for an
average of 2 years).

The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with a tenant for the following future minimum lease
payments:

HE R HeFOMFEREERN
(20164 : HEN 254 - He F1IMm
FREFEH)

AEBESLHEA

RABEHRR - NEBEEABADE
7 B RH AR R SEEREERER -

2016

RMB’000

AR¥EFTT

Within one year R—FR 751 675
In the second to fifth year inclusive RE_ZEFERF 352 —
1,103 675
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 3% R MY R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 REZE2017F12A318 L2 FE

32.

33.

206

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

32. EARKIE

2016
RMB’000
ARBTIT

Capital expenditure contracted for but
not provided in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of acquisition of

property, plant and equipment BARRX

BERWEDE - BE M
REHETHERTIA
ENGR=Np s E )

14,804

146,178

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group participates in MPF for its qualifying employees in
Hong Kong. Under the rules of MPF Scheme, the employer and
its employees are required to contribute 5% of the employee’s
salaries, up to a maximum of HKD1,500 per employee
per month. The assets of MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the group companies in an independently
administered fund.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme
operated by the PRC government. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll
to the retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The
only obligations of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefits scheme are to make the required contributions under
the scheme.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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34.

35.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

b A B

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & E2017F 128318 IEZFE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group
entities will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to owners through the optimisation of
the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained profits
as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure
on a regular basis. The Group considers the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital and will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues as well as the raising of bank loans.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments

34. EXERERE

35.

AEEEEEANBNSEAESEE
BOAHELE  AREEBRILES
KESREFERERERKIADE -

AEENEARBEERERRES
BY  ROEREARRAAEEE RS
o BRESAVHEBRRTAREN
BEEITBRA - FERRENE) -

AR IR B MR R 1 o AR
&= BAANARRE RE A AR
B LEBE RS  BTHR
RERRITER - REEBEAGE
48 -

€@MIT A
SRITEER

2016
RMB’000
ARBTTT
Financial assets SMEE
Loans and receivables (including cash and EZREKZE(BIERS
cash equivalents) EIREEEY) 2,072,558 2,134,828
Financial liabilities k=R
Amortised cost BESEAAR 558,469 518,778
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 3% R MY R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 REZE2017F12A318 L2 FE

35.

208

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include amount due
from an associate, trade and other receivables, pledged bank
deposits, fixed bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade,
bills and other payables. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk (currency
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause
a financial loss to the Group due to failure to perform an
obligation by the counterparties at the end of the reporting
period in relation to each class of recognised financial assets
is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position of the Group.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade
and other receivables. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group continuously monitors the level of
exposure to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the long-
aged receivables and the recoverability of trade receivables
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk has adequate
procedures in place.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 76% of the total

trade receivables as at 31 December 2017 (2016: 79%) which
was due from customers engaged in the banking industry.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

b A B

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & E2017F 128318 IEZFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
poIicies (Continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group also have concentration of credit risk on fixed bank
deposits which are deposited with banks with high credit
rating. Other than the above, the Group does not have any
other significant concentration of credit risk. The credit risk on
pledged bank deposits and bank balances is minimal as such
amounts are placed at banks with good reputation.

Market risk

(i) Currency risk
Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which expose the Group to
risk of United States dollar (“USD"). The percentage of
the Group's sales and purchases that are denominated in
USD, currency other than the functional currency of the
relevant group companies are as follows:

35. Rt T H (@)

B R EE B REBUR
()

EERE @

AEENEEREAESERSHE
AHEATHEREEERER - B
b2 AEETEEEAEE
EhEK CEBRTERIRETHE
HREERRE BT EENRT - K
EERBRE -

™5 ELER

(i) EXERE
ARRTFETHERRBAINEE
BNEE AR BEBKEERTH
Rk - REBEAET(ANEBA
SERRINEEEAINEE)
ARAEMHEERKENA DL

Sales HE

Purchases REE

T
2016
5.2% 2.0%
15.2% 20.1%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

=g e NEESE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 R&EE2017F12A31HIEZFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i)  Currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at
the end of the reporting period are as follows:

35. Rt T H (@)

B R EE B R EBUR

(%)

5 Bk ()

(i) EHEE &)
AR 2 AN £ M 7 AN 3R 45 B3 SR A S
ML BN EEEERSEABE
HE

Assets

2016
RMB’'000
ARBTIT
Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") B (B ) 38,763 102,046
usD ETT 831,393 764,618
RMB AR 909 9,291
Euros (“EUR") B ([BoTl) 842 79
Singapore dollars (“SGD") N (T s 1) 650 —
British Pound Sterling (“GBP") ATFIBER S GE ([ 24E ]) 672 =

Liabilities

=Fi

2016
RMB’'000
ARBTIT
HKD 7B 2,183 982
usb =TT 47,027 31,377
GBP e — 59
SGD N3 22 —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

b A B

For the year ended 31 December 2017 REHZE2017F12A318 L FE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
poIicies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)  Currency risk (Continued)
The sensitivity analysis below includes the Group’s
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items where the denomination of the balances is in
a currency other than the functional currency of the
respective group companies at the end of the reporting
period and has been determined based on the exposure
to exchange rates against the functional currency of
relevant group companies. For a 5% weakening of these
currencies against the functional currency of relevant
group companies and all other variables being held
constant, the Group’s profit for the year is as follows:

35. Rt T H (@)

B R EE B REBUR
()

5 Bk ()

(i) EHEE &)
TREINNGRESH T OEAE
B 3 7 3R 45 B 5K 0 5 (8 38 (0 NS
HEEKEA REEARRNES
HHEASEM AR I EE
HRIEBRES B REBFMAS
MEXHEBEBERFNINEY
WA - BEL L EREE
BRI SRR ES% - 2
WA S ERETE  AEEF
EFIEB RN -

(Decrease) increase in profit for the year £ & F8 () 1%

— HKD — Bk

— UsD — X

— RMB — AR%
— EUR — BT

— SGD — Fhn
__ GBP — g

2016
RMB'000

ARETIT

(1,372) (3,766)
(29,414) (27,812)
(34) (348)
(32) 3)
(24) —
(25) 2

There would be an equal and opposite impact on the
profit for the year where the respective currencies
strengthens against the functional currency of relevant
group companies by 5%.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as
at the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.

FHEEBHESEERRYE
HEETES% - HEHFEHN
BEERFRRTE -

BEEERR  ARFRNEER
BEETERRFAZERS
B ALBRESMTAEEREK
1 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 3% R MY R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 REZE2017F12A318 L2 FE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

212

Financial risk management objectives and
pO“CiES (Continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate pledged bank deposits and fixed
bank deposits (see note 23 for details).

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
through the impact of rate changes on interest bearing
financial assets, mainly interest bearing bank deposits
and balances. The Group cash flow interest rate is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of interest rates quoted
by the People’s Bank of China arising from the Group’s
RMB denominated bank deposits and balances. The
Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging

policy.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for interest
bearing bank balances at the end of the reporting period
and assumed that the amount of assets and liabilities
outstanding at the end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year. 50 basis points were
used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management'’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates. The management does not anticipate a decrease
in interest rate in the next financial year having regard to
the trends in market interest rates and global economic
environment. Accordingly, sensitivity analysis on a
decrease in interest rates is not presented.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

b A B

For the year ended 31 December 2017 REHZE2017F12A318 L FE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
poIicies (Continued)

Market risk (continued)

(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued)
If interest rates on bank balances had been 50 basis
points higher and all other variables were held constant,
the potential effect on profit for the year is as follows:

35. Rt T H (@)

B R EE B REBUR
()

™ i5 B B (E)
(i) FIEE ()
WERITIZ EF = FHSOERE -

FEMBER

Increase in profit for the year

WEMBEETE  HAFEF
RBENTZEWT

2016

RMB'000

ARETT

2,158 3,095

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest risk as at the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.

Liquidity risk management

The management of the Group has built an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the management
of the Group’s short, medium and long-term funding and
liquidity management requirements. The Group manages
liquidity risk by maintaining banking facilities and by
continuously monitoring forecasted and actual cash flows and
the maturity profiles of its financial liabilities.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. The maturity dates for other
non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.

EEERS  ARFEROMER
REBTERERBRFAZARSR
B ASRESMTAEERSRK
o

BN MR B
AEENEEERASENEH - F
- REESNRSESEEZ R
HWTHEENRBDESRRERER -
AEBREBEFRITRE  HEZA
BHNRERORSR  UREHE
BENIHEAREERDESER °

TRHAVNWAEEIFTESRBENS
MHER - ZRDVERARB AL
fHEFAMRESRBENRTEH
RERERH - HMFITESRER
B EBENNERS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 REZE2017F12A318 L2 FE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

214

Financial risk management objectives and

pO“CiES (Continued)

Liquidity risk management (Continued)

35.

@I Eum

B R EE B R EBUR

(%)

RBHEREEE)

Over
3 months but Over
Weighted not more 6 months but Total
average On  Lessthan than  not more Over undiscounted  Carrying
Financial liabilities interest rate demand 3month 6 months than 1 year Tyear  cash flows amount
6EAZT 10T AR
SHAE METRI= BEX  OWER  3fEANL  6@ANME 180 REREE BEE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  AREBTn  ARETR ARETR ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
At 31 December 2017 R2017512A31R
Financial liabilities SREE
Trade and bills payables ~ EFEHRERZR — 550,703 - - - — 550,703 550,703
Other payables AR - 1.766 - - - - 7,766 7,766
358,469 - - - - 558,469 558,469
At 31 December 2016 #2016£12A31R
Financial liabilities SREE
Trade and bills payables ERETRENER — 515,101 — — — - 515,101 515,101
Other payables HiERF - 3677 - - - - 3677 3,677
518,778 - — — - 518,778 518,778
Fair value of financial instruments ERTEZAAREBE

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values at the end of the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
GEMEHRMEE (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & E2017F 128318 IEZFE

e @25
36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. Bt X5 g‘gﬁ
554
U c
Other than the transactions and balances with related parties MM T IEREBE TS & =
disclosed in respective notes, during the year, the Group had EERIN MAFER - ANEEEBEE ;2
the following significant transactions with related parties: TBUTEARRS : ggn
T
Relationship and name of 2016 B
related parties Nature of transactions RMB’000 “gﬂ
_ ‘ot
B LA XHME AREFTT Sr
é ~N
Companies controlled by Gemalto (Note): € Ean
e Gemalto A1 0 A 7 (A2 31
S&
Gemalto Pte. Ltd. Purchase of materials 62 36 <
B R ER:
82
2 o
Gemalto Technologies (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.  Purchase of materials 229,015 233,992 g;‘,ﬁéﬁ;
(AR ER(EBBRAR) R BHEREE S &
s
Sales of materials and = 518 S
provision of services A58
SR /5 S oF
B R4 85 TSR L PR :Be
o
Note: Gemalto is a company incorporated under the laws of the Netherlands Wi : Gemalto R IE/A B )£ 7 + AR % °
and whose shares are listed and traded on NYSE Euronext Amsterdam TR A — 2 BB 5 A2 P 55 5 5%
and NYSE Euronext Paris. It controlled Gemplus International S.A., a ARXEGHAERESZH FHTRXE - é@m
substantial shareholder of the Company throughout both years, which is Gemplusinternational S.A. B Gemalto & e m
a limited liability company incorporated in Luxembourg. b E—FRREGFERAMHEREER

7] - FEREFRE AR AR RIAE BRR -

Corporate Governance
Report
LEERRE

The details of compensation of key management personnel, AAFXNGEEEREBAERES

representing the remuneration of the directors of the REKEN S BB A S AMIFE9 o

Company during the year are set out in note 9.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 3% R MY R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 REZE2017F12A318 L2 FE

37. SUBSIDIARIES 37. B A F]
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, all of which 2017912 A31H K2016F12 A 31
are wholly-owned by the Company, at 31 December 2017 and H BARAa2EHEE0EB AR
31 December 2016 are as follows: BENRTE
Nominal value
Place/Country of of issued and Proportion of
incorporation/ fully paid issued ordinary
establishment/ share capital/ shares capital held
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital by the Company  Principal activities
DARY/E& BETRBMZREN KAREERST
(if PNGES BE- B ROEE/ &S EERLA TERH
N 06
Goldpac Datacard Solutions Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Sales of smart cards carrying
Company Limited (Note i) — HKD500,000 personal identity and other
payment solution services
e HEUBERRA (M) B LERD HERAATHERR
— %500,0007 IRBALR
Goldpac Limited (Note i) Mainland China Registered capital 100% 100%  Manufacture and sales
for a term of 50 — USD43,000,000 of smart cards carrying
years as a wholly personal identity and
foreign owned other payment solution
enterprise services
commencing
21 June 1995
SHRERRARAML i) REL 3, AR HENHEERAL
5199556 A — %7143,000,0007 FHERRINBATR
PALEY: ) iR
HEBEELE
Goldpac Smart Card Mainland China Registered capital 100% 100%  Sales of smart cards
(Guangzhou) Limited limited liability — RMB1,000,000 carrying personal
company identity and other
payment solution
Services
BNmE AERRERARAT FE R, HMER HERAARMER
BREFAF — AR%1,000,0007C RIABRAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e HRERNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 REHZE2017F12A318 L FE

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

37. & 2 3 @)

Nominal value
Place/Country of of issued and Proportion of
incorporation/ fully paid issued ordinary
establishment/ share capital/ shares capital held
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital by the Company  Principal activities
NARY/ B8 BRTRBEREH RARECET
WELRER W BX ROEE/ ZRES EERLA TEXB
0 ot
Goldpac Fintech Singapore Singapore Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Sales of smart cards
Private Limited —SGD 100 carrying personal
identity and research
and experimental
development on
information technology
eAEERMRGIMR)ERAA AR Lk HERAARHER
— FEE 1007 EERMHERAR
Goldpac Investment Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Property holding
Limited (Note ) — HKD1
L AERERRAA(MF) &k Lk FHERE
—BEIT
Secure Tech Holding Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary shares 100% — Investment holding
(Note ii) —UsD100
ERARARMS EEl ) PR
— XTL1007T

Notes:
(i) Directly held by the Company.
(i) The entity is incorporated during the year ended 31 December 2017.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or
assets of the Group.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

EREEEERERAA

() HAARAEEFE -
(i)  REL2017F12H31 HFEIALEEE -

EERBULINRPAKSENHE L
FAEHAKRENXEALEEENER
-7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 3% R MY R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 REZE2017F12A318 L2 FE

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

218

38. M IIRRBEK

2016
RMB’000
ARBFIT

Non-current assets ERBEE
Intangible assets A E 8,966 11,256
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB REE 350 466
Investments in subsidiaries RITB AT ZI%E 317,570 300,407
326,886 312,129

Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS BT B A 7 518 531,134 600,712
Other receivables H b Uk R 13,794 1,342
Fixed bank deposits IRITEHFER 741,632 687,988
Bank balances RITER 8,496 221,436
1,295,056 1,511,478
Current liabilities wREBEE

Other payables HAtb FERT R 2,561 982
Amounts due to subsidiaries NG ] 234,389 281,900
236,950 282,882
Net current assets REBEEFE 1,058,106 1,228,596
Net assets EEFHE 1,384,992 1,540,725

Capital and reserves EXRRE
Share capital R% 2 1,192,362 1,191,941
Reserves s 192,630 348,784
Total equity SRR 1,384,992 1,540,725

The Company’s statement of financial position was approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 16 March

2018 and are signed on its behalf by:

Lu Run Ting
EFE

Chairman and Executive Director

EFCTRRNTEF

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2017

FEESDN2018F3A16HEZX LB
BARNBMEA R REANER - W H

NTEZERREE

Hou Ping
&F

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

HITEFREEHNTE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 REHZE2017F12A318 L FE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Continued)

38. B AR ;TR (an)

Corporate
Information
EER

Movement in the Company’s reserves AR ZREEEER q;@%
g g
Shares =5
held under Z
Shares shares Share gu
award award option Retained 5K
reserve scheme reserve profits Total Zc
R/ R-
Rp @R SHEMEE BiE ROE .
4] 2B EXE] Bl k] s
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 BEN
ARBTLE ARETT ARBTE ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2016 $20164181H — (74) 42,956 15606 58488 il
Profit and total comprehensive  FEAEMEE WA EEE
income for the year — — — 439,156 439,156 Stm
Shares repurchase 17 188 = = = (1,135) (1,135) é .
Issue of shares upon exercise of  E{T{FBEAEM 31T -
share options (note 28) gz (B7eF28) = — (700) — (700) A
Recognition of equity-settled RS EEARD B 2 %‘@
share-based payments HEM S AHE ; ?&E
(note 29) (Kts#29) — — 10,502 — 10,502 g=
Forfeiture of share options g PN — — (172) 172 — °
Purchase of shares under shares 1R % 7 22 Eh=T 21 el
award scheme BARMD —  (25,038) — —  (25,038) g‘gzgg
Dividends recognised as BRADENRE e
distribution (note 11) (Haz11) — — —  (132,489) (132,489)
At 31 December 2016 72016512 A31H — (25,112) 52,586 321,310 348,784 8 éﬁ
Loss and total comprehensive FEBANZAER & ‘%%
expense for the year — — — (52,630) (52,630) %
Issue of shares upon exercise of  E1T{FE B M 3TT -
share options (note 28) KRR (Hat28) — — (189) — (189) B
Recognition of equity-settled g E m R H :Ei §*§
share-based payments (note 29) X {F(f1:£29) 12,737 — 4,426 — 17,163 ESH
Forfeiture of share options = N — — (1,991) 1,991 — % E e
Re-charge from a subsidiary BLIENGILE — — 3,799 — 3,799 Yo
Dividends recognised as ERAE Rk E m
distribution (note 11) (Hizt11) — — — (123,475) (123,475) g
Shares vested under the share  1R#BM (7 2 Eh =12l s
award scheme of the Company BB (7.825) 7,990 — (987) (822) §§
At 31 December 2017 2017912 A31H 4,912 (17,122) 58,631 146,209 192,630 =

EREEEERERAA

—2-tggH 219



FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MIEHE

Year ended 31 December

BIEMN12A3MBZEE
2013 2014 2015 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARBTT ARETE ARBTT

RESULTS ES
Turnover S ] 1,112,260 1,521,069 1,684,632 1,393,713 = 1,400,842
Profit before taxation & %54 A A1 RS 183,330 256,552 296,179 244,566 198,764
Taxation 1B (42,505) (43,045) (54,341) (39,666) (34,287)
Profit for the year FEFHE 140,825 213,507 241,838 204,900 164,477
At 31 December
M12A31H8
2013 2014 2015 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBTFT AR®TT ARETT ARETT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEMARZ
Total assets BEE 1,945,875 2,317,297 2,606,841 2,599,582 = 2,706,875
Total liabilities wEE (548,763)  (706,459)  (792,627)  (726,253)  (776,992)
Net assets FEE 1,397,112 1,610,838 1,814,214 1,873,329 (1,929,883)
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